BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

R)
)
)
)
)
) PCB 09-
) (Permit Appeal – Air)
)
j
j
j
j

NOTICE OF FILING

To:

John T. Therriault, Assistant Clerk Illinois Pollution Control Board James R. Thompson Center, Suite 11-500 100 West Randolph Chicago, Illinois 60601 Division of Legal Counsel Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 1021 North Grand Avenue, East P.O. Box 19276 Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that we have today filed with the Office of the Clerk of the Pollution Control Board APPEARANCES RENEE CIPRIANO and JOSHUA R. MORE and APPEAL OF CAAPP PERMIT, copies of which are herewith served upon you.

Joshua R. More

Dated: April 24, 2009

Renee Cipriano Joshua R. More SCHIFF HARDIN LLP 6600 Sears Tower 233 South Wacker Drive Chicago, Illinois 60606 312-258-5567

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD			
AMERENUE and RACCOON CREEK POWER PLANT)))		
Petitioner,)		
v.) PCB 09		
ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY,))		
Respondent.)		
APPEARANCE I hereby file my appearance in this proceeding, on behalf of AmerenUE and Raccoon Creek Power Plant.			
Schi 6600 233 Chic	Joshua R. More Schiff Hardin LLP 6600 Sears Tower 233 South Wacker Drive Chicago, Illinois 60606 (312) 258-5500		

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD		
AMERENUE and RACCOON CREEK POWER PLANT	()	
Petitioner,)	
v.) PCB 09 (Permit Appeal – Air)	
ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY,))	
Respondent.)	
,		
<u>APPEARA</u>	NCE	
I hereby file my appearance in this proceeding. Creek Power Plant.	ng, on behalf of AmerenUE and Raccoon	
Ronee Cipriano A WWW		
Schiff Hardin LLP 6600 Sears Tower		
233 South Wacker Drive		
Chicago, Illinois 60606		
Dated: April 24, 2009	12) 258-5500	
Dawa. April 47, 4007		

BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

AMERENUE and RACCOON CREEK POWER PLANT)
Petitioner,)
v.)
ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL))
PROTECTION AGENCY,)
Respondent.)

APPEAL OF CAAPP PERMIT

NOW COMES Petitioner, AmerenUE and Raccoon Creek Power Plant ("Petitioner" or "Ameren"), pursuant to Section 40.2 of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act ("Act") (415 ILCS 5/40.2) and 35 Ill.Adm.Code § 105.300 *et seq.*, and requests a hearing before the Board to contest certain conditions contained in the Clean Air Act Permit Program ("CAAPP") renewal permit¹ (the "permit") issued on March 20, 2009, pursuant to Section 39.5 of the Act (415 ILCS 5/39.5) and attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 35 Ill.Adm.Code §§ 105.210(a) and (b). *See* Exhibit 1. Pursuant to Section 40.2(a) of the Act and 35 Ill.Adm.Code §§ 105.302(e), this Petition is timely filed with the Board.

In support of its Petition to appeal Conditions 3.1.3, 4.0, 5.6.2, 5.7.2, 5.9.2, 7.1.3(f)(iv), 7.1.3(g), 7.1.5(a)(iii)(A), 7.1.6(b), 7.1.6(f), 7.1.8(a)(iii), 7.1.9(n), 7.1.9(o), 7.1.10(e), 7.1.12(e)(ii), and 7.2 and its request to stay these Conditions, Petitioner states as follows:

¹ Application No. 02100010; I.D. No. 025803AAD

I. <u>BACKGROUND</u> (35 III.Adm.Code § 105.304(a))

1. The Raccoon Creek Power Plant ("Raccoon Creek"), Illinois Environmental Protection Agency ("Agency") I.D. No. 025803AAD is an electric generating station owned and operated by Ameren. Raccoon Creek Power Plant operates as a peaking station, generating electric power when sufficient electric power is not available from other sources. The Raccoon Creek Power Plant electrical generating units ("EGUs") are combustion turbines and subject to the CAAPP (415 ILCS 5/39.5). The Raccoon Creek Power Plant is located at 676 Cypress Drive, Clay County, Flora, Illinois. Clay County is attainment for all National Ambient Air Quality Standards. The Agency issued the permit on March 20, 2009.

II. REQUEST FOR PARTIAL STAY OF THE PERMIT

2. Historically, the Board has granted partial stays in permit appeals where a petitioner has so requested. See, e.g., Midwest Generation, LLC, Will County Generating Station v. Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, PCB 06-156 (July 20, 2006) (granted stay of the effectiveness of contested conditions of a construction permit); Dynegy Midwest Generation, Inc. (Vermilion Power Station) v. Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, PCB 06-194 (October 19, 2006) (granted stay "of the portions of the permit Dynegy contests"); Dynegy Midwest Generation, Inc. (Havana Power Station) v. Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, PCB 07-115 (October 4, 2007) (same); Hartford Working Group v. Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, PCB 05-74 (November 18, 2004) (granted stay of the effectiveness of Special Condition 2.0 of an air construction permit); Community Landfill Company and City of Morris v. Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, PCB 01-48 and 01-49 (Consolidated) (October 19, 2000) (granted stay of effectiveness of challenged conditions for two permits of two parcels of the landfill); Allied Tube & Conduit Corp. v. Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, PCB 96-108

(December 7, 1995) (granted stay of the effectiveness of Conditions 4(a), 5(a), and 7(a) of an air permit).

3. Ameren requests in this instance that the Board exercise its inherent discretionary authority to grant a partial stay of the CAAPP permit, staying only those conditions or portions of conditions indicated in Exhibit 2, *i.e.*, Conditions 3.1.3, 4.0, 5.6.2, 5.7.2, 5.9.2, 7.1.3(f)(iv), 7.1.3(g), 7.1.5(a)(iii)(A), 7.1.6(b), 7.1.6(f), 7.1.8(a)(iii), 7.1.9(n), 7.1.9(o), 7.1.10(e), 7.1.12(e)(ii), and 7.2 during the pendency of this appeal.

III. <u>ISSUES ON APPEAL</u> (35 Ill.Adm.Code §§ 105.304(a) (2)-(4))

Following are the issues that Ameren appeals and seeks a stay for, presented sequentially.

4. Condition 3.1.3 Insignificant Activities

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is arbitrary and capricious to the extent that it fails to include all activities that are insignificant based upon their type or character. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

5. <u>Condition 4.0 Significant Emission Units</u>

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is arbitrary, capricious, and unauthorized by law to the extent it imposes conditions on sources that are not significant emission units. As set forth in Condition 3.1.3, the emergency diesel fire pump is listed as an insignificant activity under Section 3.1.3 and thus inappropriate for listing in the table in Condition 4.0 as a significant emission unit. This condition is, therefore, in excess of the Agency's authority, unauthorized by law, arbitrary and capricious, and unreasonable. Accordingly, this Condition should be deleted and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

6. Condition 5.6.2 Emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is arbitrary, capricious, and unauthorized by law to the extent it imposes an emission limit to ensure that the source is not a major source of hazardous air pollutant emissions. As set forth in Condition 5.1.1, the source is not a major source for hazardous air pollutant emissions and the permit was not issued based on the source being a major source for hazardous air pollutant emissions. This condition is, therefore, in excess of the Agency's authority, unauthorized by law, arbitrary and capricious, and unreasonable. Accordingly, this Condition should be deleted and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

7. Condition 5.7.2 HAP Testing to Verify Minor Source Status

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unnecessary given the fuel and emission limitations contained within the permit and therefore is arbitrary, capricious, unauthorized by law and unreasonable. This Condition requires the source to verify compliance with Condition 5.6.2, which for the reasons set forth above should be deleted. Accordingly, this Condition should be deleted and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

8. Condition 5.9.2 Records for HAP Emissions

Petitioner objects to this Condition because is it arbitrary, capricious, unauthorized by law and unreasonable. This Condition requires the source to record emissions to demonstrate compliance with Condition 5.6.2, which for the reasons set forth above should be deleted. Accordingly, this Condition should be deleted and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

9. <u>Condition 7.1.3(f)(iv) Startup Provisions</u>

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is arbitrary, capricious, unauthorized by law and unreasonable. This Condition requires the source to fulfill the reporting requirements of

Condition 7.1.10(e), which for the reasons set forth below should be deleted. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

10. Condition 7.1.3(g) Malfunction and Breakdown Provisions

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unauthorized by law, unreasonable, arbitrary and capricious, to the extent it inappropriately omits and fails to allow for the exceedance of hourly limits. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

11. Condition 7.1.5(a)(iii)(A) Control Requirements and Work Practices

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it unreasonable, arbitrary and capricious. The permit contains a quarterly inspection requirement of emission related components that is not reflective of actual operating conditions. The units do not operate on a regular schedule, thus the imposed schedule may require inspections on a non-operating unit. Therefore, this Condition is arbitrary and capricious, unauthorized by law and unreasonable. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

12. Condition 7.1.6(b) Hourly Emission Limitations

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unauthorized by law, unreasonable, arbitrary and capricious, and vague and ambiguous to the extent it conflicts with the compliance obligations or compliance methods in the original construction permit, including conditions in the original construction permit that allow for the exceedance of hourly limits in Condition 7.1.6. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

13. Condition 7.1.6(f) Emission Limitations – Compliance

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unauthorized by law, unreasonable, arbitrary and capricious to the extent it conflicts with or fails to include compliance obligations

and compliance methods in the original construction permit. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

14. Condition 7.1.8(a)(iii) Monitoring Requirements

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unauthorized by law, unreasonable, redundant, arbitrary and capricious. The Agency may not require a source to operate a unit when the unit is otherwise not operating in order to assess compliance. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

15. <u>Condition 7.1.9(n) Recordkeeping Requirements - Shutdowns</u>

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unauthorized by law, unreasonable, redundant, arbitrary and capricious. The source maintains records of the date, time and duration of the shutdown. The additional records required by this Condition are redundant and not necessary to ensure compliance with applicable requirements. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

16. Condition 7.1.9(o) Recordkeeping Requirements – Start Ups

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unauthorized by law, unreasonable, vague, redundant, arbitrary and capricious to the extent it requires the source to maintain records that go beyond those necessary to ensure compliance with applicable requirements. This Condition is not limited to maintaining records for startups resulting in an opacity exceedance and requires records that are not necessary to ensure compliance with applicable requirements. The requirement that the unit achieve "normal operation" within thirty minutes does not reflect current operating conditions. It is unclear what information must be included when describing the startup and there is no basis for requiring the source to provide the Agency with a reason for the startup. Furthermore, records related to exceedances of limitations during startups should not

be required unless conditions exist which could result in a deviation from the applicable requirements. Therefore, this Condition is unauthorized by law, unreasonable, vague, redundant, arbitrary and capricious. Accordingly, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

17. Condition 7.1.10(e) Reporting Startups

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unauthorized by law, redundant, unreasonable, arbitrary and capricious. Several other Conditions, including 7.1.10(a) and 7.1.10(b) require the necessary reporting to ensure compliance with applicable requirements. The information required by this Condition is not necessary to ensure compliance with applicable requirements. Therefore, this Condition is unauthorized by law, redundant, unreasonable, arbitrary and capricious. Accordingly, this Condition should be deleted and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

18. Condition 7.1.12(e)(ii) Compliance Procedures

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is unauthorized by law, unreasonable, redundant, arbitrary and capricious to the extent it conflicts with the compliance obligations in the original construction permit and Condition 7.1.6. According, this Condition should be modified and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

19. <u>Condition 7.2 Engines</u>

Petitioner objects to this Condition because it is arbitrary, capricious, and unauthorized by law to the extent it imposes an emission limit or conditions on sources that are not significant emission units. For the reasons set forth above, the emergency diesel fire pump is listed as an insignificant activity under Section 3.1.3 and thus is not subject to the conditions and limitations of "affected diesel engine" under Condition 7.2. This condition is, therefore, in excess of the

Agency's authority, unauthorized by law, arbitrary and capricious, and unreasonable.

Accordingly, this Condition should be deleted and stayed during the pendency of this appeal.

20. The Company has met with the Agency and believes the majority, if not all, of the above issues and conditions can be resolved. However, any such resolution could not occur within the time frame required for appeal. So that the parties have sufficient time to resolve issues and conditions in dispute, including if necessary the filing of an amended CAAPP permit application, Ameren requests that the conditions set forth herein be stayed.

WHEREFORE, for the reasons set forth above, Ameren appeals Conditions 3.1.3, 4.0, 5.6.2, 5.7.2, 5.9.2, 7.1.3(f)(iv), 7.1.3(g), 7.1.5(a)(iii)(A), 7.1.6(b), 7.1.6(f), 7.1.8(a)(iii), 7.1.9(n), 7.1.9(o), 7.1.10(e), 7.1.12(e)(ii), and 7.2 of the CAAPP renewal permit issued March 19, 2009, for the Raccoon Creek Power Plant and requests that the Board order the Agency to delete or modify the conditions as set forth above. Additionally, Ameren requests that the Board stay Conditions 3.1.3, 4.0, 5.6.2, 5.7.2, 5.9.2, 7.1.3(f)(iv), 7.1.3(g), 7.1.5(a)(iii)(A), 7.1.6(b), 7.1.6(f), 7.1.8(a)(iii), 7.1.9(n), 7.1.9(o), 7.1.10(e), 7.1.12(e)(ii), and 7.2 during the pendency of this appeal as set forth in Exhibit 2. Ameren will extend its current practices under the CAAPP permit replaced by this permit issued March 20, 2009, where the Board stays Conditions appealed herein and will, of course, comply with all requirements of the Board's regulations applicable to Raccoon Creek Power Plant during the pendency of this appeal.

Respectfully submitted,

AmerenUE and Raccoon Creek Power Plant

by:

One of Its Attorneys

Dated: April 24, 2009

Renee Cipriano Kathleen C. Bassi Joshua R. More SCHIFF HARDIN, LLP 6600 Sears Tower 233 South Wacker Drive Chicago, Illinois 60606 312-258-5500 Fax: 312-258-2600 jmore@schiffhardin.com

CH2\7232980.1

EXHIBIT 1

CAAPP PERMIT ISSUED (MARCH 19, 2009)

217/782-2113

RENEWAL CLEAN AIR ACT PERMIT PROGRAM (CAAPP) PERMIT

PERMITTEE:

Ameren UE Raccoon Creek Power Plant

Attn: Michael Menne 1901 Chauteau Avenue Post Office Box 66149

St. Louis, Missouri 63166-6149

<u>I.D. No.</u>: 025803AAD <u>Date Received</u>: October 16, 2007 <u>Application No.</u>: 02100010 <u>Date Issued</u>: March 20, 2009 <u>Expiration Date</u>: March 20, 2014

Operation of: Raccoon Creek Power Plant

Source Location: 676 Cypress Drive, Flora, Clay County, Illinois, 62839 Responsible Official: Michael Menne, Vice President Environmental Services

This permit is hereby granted to the above-designated Permittee to OPERATE a electric power generation plant, pursuant to the above referenced permit application. This permit is subject to the conditions contained herein.

If you have any questions concerning this permit, please contact Kaushal Desai at 217/782-2113.

Edwin C. Bakowski, P.E. Manager, Permit Section Division of Air Pollution Control

ECB: KKD: psj

cc: Illinois EPA, FOS, Region 3

CES

Lotus Notes

Except as provided in Conditions 1.5 and 8.7 of this permit.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		TABLE OF CONTENTS	
			<u>Page</u>
1.0	INTRO	DDUCTION	4
	1.1	Source Identification	
	1.2	Owner/Parent Company	
		Operator	
		Source Description	
		Title I Conditions	
2.0	LIST	OF ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS COMMONLY USED	6
3.0	COND	TIONS FOR INSIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES	7
	3.1	Identification of Insignificant Activities	
	3.2	Compliance with Applicable Requirements	
	3.3	Addition of Insignificant Activities	
4.0	SIGNI	FICANT EMISSION UNITS AT THIS SOURCE	9
5.0	OVERA	ALL SOURCE CONDITIONS	10
	5.1	Applicability of Clean Air Act Permit Program (CAAPP)	
	5.2		
	5.3	· · ·	
	5.4		
	5.5 5.6	Source-Wide Control Requirements and Work Practices Source-Wide Production and Emission Limitations	
	5.7		
	5.8	Source-Wide Monitoring Requirements	
	5.9	Source-Wide Recordkeeping Requirements	
	5.10		
	5.11		
	5.12		
6.0	CONDI	TIONS FOR EMISSIONS CONTROL PROGRAMS	17
	6.1	Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) Program	
	6.2	Acid Rain	
7.0	UNIT	SPECIFIC CONDITIONS FOR SPECIFIC EMISSION UNITS	22
	7.1		
	7.2	Fire Pump	
8.0	GENER	AL PERMIT CONDITIONS	57
	8.1	Permit Shield	
		2	

			Page
	8.2	Applicability of Title IV Requirements	
	8.3	Emissions Trading Programs	
	8.4	Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios	
	8.5	Testing Procedures	
	8.6	Reporting Requirements	
	8.7	Title I Conditions	
9.0	STAND	DARD PERMIT CONDITIONS	62
	9.1	Effect of Permit	
	9.2	General Obligations of Permittee	
	9.3	Obligation to Allow Illinois EPA Surveillance	
	9.4	Obligation to Comply with Other Requirements	
	9.5	Liability	
	9.6	Recordkeeping	
	9.7 9.8	Annual Emissions Report	
	9.0	Requirements for Compliance Certification Certification	
	9.10	Defense to Enforcement Actions	
	9.11		
	9.12		
	9.13		
	9.14		
	9.15	General Authority for the Terms and Conditions of this	
		Permit	
10.0	ATTAC	HMENTS	
	1	Example Certification by a Responsible Official	1-1
	2	Emissions of Particulate Matter from Process Emission Units	2-1
	3	Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan	3-1
	4	Guidance	4-1
	5	Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) Permit	5-1
	6	Acid Rain Permit	6-1

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Source Identification

Raccoon Creek Power Plant 676 Cypress Drive Flora, Illinois 62839 816/527-1354

I.D. No.: 025803AAD

County: Clay

Standard Industrial Classification: 4911, Electrical Power Production

1.2 Owner/Parent Company

Ameren UE 1901 Chouteau Avenue Post Office Box 66149 St. Louis, Missouri 63166-6149

1.3 Operator

Ameren UE 1901 Chouteau Avenue Post Office Box 66149 St. Louis, Missouri 63166-6149

Michael Menne, VP Environmental Services 314/544-4908

1.4 Source Description

Ameren UE Raccoon Creek Power Plant is located at 676 Cypress Drive, Flora. The source utilizes four natural gas fired turbines to generate electricity. In addition, the turbines control NO_x with a dry low NO_x combustion system.

Note: This narrative description is for informational purposes only and is not enforceable.

1.5 Title I Conditions

As generally identified below, this CAAPP permit contains certain conditions for emission units at this source that address the applicability of permitting programs for the construction and modification of sources, which programs were established pursuant to Title I of the Clean Air Act (CAA) and regulations thereunder. These programs include PSD and MSSCAM, and are implemented by the Illinois EPA pursuant to Sections 9, 9.1, 39(a) and 39.5(7)(a) of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act (Act). These conditions continue in effect, notwithstanding the expiration date specified on the first page of this permit, as their authority derives from Titles I and V of the CAA, as well as Titles II and X of the Act. (See also Condition 8.7.)

a. This permit contains Title I conditions that reflect Title I requirements established in permits previously issued for this source, which conditions are specifically designated as "T1".

2.0 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS COMMONLY USED

ACMA	Alternative Compliance Market Account		
Act	Illinois Environmental Protection Act [415 ILCS 5/1 et seq.]		
AP-42	Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission Factors, Volume 1,		
	Stationary Point and Other Sources (and Supplements A		
through F), USEPA, Office of Air Quality Planning and			
	Standards, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711		
ATU	Allotment Trading Unit		
BACT	Best Available Control Technology		
BAT	Best Available Technology		
CAA	Clean Air Act [42 U.S.C. Section 7401 et seq.]		
CAAPP	Clean Air Act Permit Program		
CAM	Compliance Assurance Monitoring		
CEMS	Continuous Emission Monitoring System		
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations		
CO	Carbon Monoxide		
ERMS	Emissions Reduction Market System		
HAP	Hazardous Air Pollutant		
IAC	Illinois Administrative Code		
I.D. No.	Identification Number of Source, assigned by Illinois EPA		
ILCS	Illinois Compiled Statutes		
Illinois EPA	Illinois Environmental Protection Agency		
LAER	Lowest Achievable Emission Rate		
MACT	Maximum Achievable Control Technology		
MSSCAM	Major Stationary Sources Construction and Modification (35		
IAC 203, New Source Review for non-attainment areas)			
NESHAP	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants		
NOx	Nitrogen Oxides		
NSPS	New Source Performance Standards		
PM	Particulate Matter		
PM ₁₀ Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than o			
	equal to a nominal 10 microns as measured by applicable test		
	or monitoring methods		
PM _{2.5}	Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or		
	equal to a nominal 2.5 microns as measured by applicable		
	test or monitoring methods		
PSD	Prevention of Significant Deterioration (40 CFR 52.21, New		
	Source Review for attainment areas)		
RMP	Risk Management Plan		
SO ₂	Sulfur Dioxide		
Tl	Title I - identifies Title I conditions that have been		
	carried over from an existing permit		
TlN	Title I New - identifies Title I conditions that are being		
	established in this permit		
TlR	Title I Revised - identifies Title I conditions that have		
	been carried over from an existing permit and subsequently		
	revised in this permit		
USEPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency		
VOM	Volatile Organic Material		

3.0 CONDITIONS FOR INSIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES

3.1 <u>Identification</u> of Insignificant Activities

The following activities at the source constitute insignificant activities as specified in 35 IAC 201.210:

3.1.1 Activities determined by the Illinois EPA to be insignificant activities, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(1) and 201.211, as follows:

Natural Gas Heater <10 mmBtu/hr

3.1.2 Activities that are insignificant activities based upon maximum emissions, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(2) or (a)(3), as follows:

None

3.1.3 Activities that are insignificant activities based upon their type or character, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(4) through (18), as follows:

Direct combustion units designed and used for comfort heating purposes and fuel combustion emission units as follows: (A) Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 2.5 mmBtu/hr that fire only natural gas, propane, or liquefied petroleum gas; (B) Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 1.0 mmBtu/hr that fire only oil or oil in combination with only natural gas, propane, or liquefied petroleum gas; and (C) Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 200,000 Btu/hr which never burn refuse, or treated or chemically contaminated wood [35 IAC 201.210(a)(4)].

Storage tanks of organic liquids with a capacity of less than 10,000 gallons and an annual throughput of less than 100,000 gallons per year, provided the storage tank is not used for the storage of gasoline or any material listed as a HAP pursuant to Section 112(b) of the CAA [35 IAC 201.210(a)(10)].

Storage tanks of any size containing virgin or re-refined distillate oil, hydrocarbon condensate from natural gas pipeline or storage systems, lubricating oil, or residual fuel oils [35 IAC 201.210(a)(11)].

3.1.4 Activities that are considered insignificant activities pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(b). Note: These activities are not required to be individually listed.

3.2 Compliance with Applicable Requirements

Insignificant activities are subject to applicable requirements notwithstanding status as insignificant activities. In particular, in addition to regulations of general applicability, such as 35 IAC

- 212.301 and 212.123 (Condition 5.3.2), the Permittee shall comply with the following requirements, as applicable:
- 3.2.1 For each particulate matter process emission unit, the Permittee shall comply with the applicable particulate matter emission limit of 35 IAC 212.321 or 212.322 (see Attachment 2) and 35 IAC Part 266. For example, the particulate matter emissions from a process emission unit shall not exceed 0.55 pounds per hour if the emission unit's process weight rate is 100 pounds per hour or less, pursuant to 35 IAC 266.110.
- 3.2.2 For each organic material emission unit that uses organic material, e.g., a mixer or printing line, the Permittee shall comply with the applicable VOM emission limit of 35 IAC 215.301, which requires that organic material emissions not exceed 8.0 pounds per hour or, if no odor nuisance exists, do not qualify as photochemically reactive material as defined in 35 IAC 211.4690.
- 3.2.3 For each open burning activity, the Permittee shall comply with 35 IAC Part 237, including the requirement to obtain a permit for open burning in accordance with 35 IAC 237.201, if necessary.

3.3 Addition of Insignificant Activities

- 3.3.1 The Permittee is not required to notify the Illinois EPA of additional insignificant activities present at the source of a type that is identified in Condition 3.1, until the renewal application for this permit is submitted, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.212(a).
- 3.3.2 The Permittee must notify the Illinois EPA of any proposed addition of a new insignificant activity of a type addressed by 35 IAC 201.210(a) and 201.211 other than those identified in Condition 3.1, pursuant to Section 39.5(12)(b) of the Act.
- 3.3.3 The Permittee is not required to notify the Illinois EPA of additional insignificant activities present at the source of a type identified in 35 IAC 201.210(b).

4.0 SIGNIFICANT EMISSION UNITS AT THIS SOURCE

Emission		Date	Emission Control
Unit	Description	Constructed .	Equipment
CT01-04	Four 85 MW Natural Gas Fired	May 2001	Dry Low NOx
	Turbines (1,082 mmBtu/hr)		Combustors
Engine	Diesel Firepump	2002	None
#1	Distillate: 208 Hp		

5.0 OVERALL SOURCE CONDITIONS

5.1 Applicability of Clean Air Act Permit Program (CAAPP)

- 5.1.1 This permit is issued based on the source requiring a CAAPP permit as a major source of $NO_{\mathbf{x}}$ and CO emissions.
- 5.1.2 This permit is issued based on the source requiring a CAAPP permit as an "affected source" for the purposes of Acid Deposition Control, Title IV of the Clean Air Act, pursuant to 40 CFR 70.3(a)(4).

5.2 Area Designation

This permit is issued based on the source being located in an area that, as of the date of permit issuance, is designated attainment or unclassifiable for the National Ambient Air Quality Standards for all criteria pollutants (CO, lead, NO₂, ozone, $PM_{2.5}$, PM_{10} , SO_2).

5.3 Source-Wide Applicable Provisions and Regulations

- 5.3.1 Specific emission units at this source are subject to particular regulations as set forth in Section 7 (Unit-Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units) of this permit.
- 5.3.2 In addition, emission units at this source are subject to the following regulations of general applicability:
 - a. No person shall cause or allow the emission of fugitive particulate matter from any process, including any material handling or storage activity, that is visible by an observer looking generally overhead at a point beyond the property line of the source unless the wind speed is greater than 40.2 kilometers per hour (25 miles per hour), pursuant to 35 IAC 212.301 and 212.314.
 - b. Pursuant to 35 IAC 212.123(a), no person shall cause or allow the emission of smoke or other particulate matter, with an opacity greater than 30 percent, into the atmosphere from any emission unit other than those emission units subject to the requirements of 35 IAC 212.122, except as allowed by 35 IAC 212.123(b) and 212.124.

5.3.3 Ozone Depleting Substances

The Permittee shall comply with the standards for recycling and emissions reduction of ozone depleting substances pursuant to 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart F, except as provided for motor vehicle air conditioners in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 82:

a. Persons opening appliances for maintenance, service, repair, or disposal must comply with the required practices pursuant to 40 CFR 82.156.

- b. Equipment used during the maintenance, service, repair, or disposal of appliances must comply with the standards for recycling and recovery equipment pursuant to 40 CFR 82.158.
- c. Persons performing maintenance, service, repair, or disposal of appliances must be certified by an approved technician certification program pursuant to 40 CFR 82.161.

5.3.4 Risk Management Plan (RMP)

Should this stationary source, as defined in 40 CFR 68.3, become subject to the federal regulations for Chemical Accident Prevention in 40 CFR Part 68, then the owner or operator shall submit the items below. This condition is imposed in this permit pursuant to 40 CFR 68.215(a)(2)(i) and (ii).

- a. A compliance schedule for meeting the requirements of 40 CFR Part 68 by the date provided in 40 CFR 68.10(a); or
- b. A certification statement that the source is in compliance with all requirements of 40 CFR Part 68, including the registration and submission of the RMP, as part of the annual compliance certification required by Condition 9.8.

5.3.5 Future Emission Standards

- a. Should this stationary source become subject to a new or revised regulation under 40 CFR Parts 60, 61, 62, or 63, or 35 IAC Subtitle B after the date issued of this permit, then the owner or operator shall, in accordance with the applicable regulation(s), comply with the applicable requirements by the date(s) specified and shall certify compliance with the applicable requirements of such regulation(s) as part of the annual compliance certification, as required by Condition 9.8. This permit may also have to be revised or reopened to address such new or revised regulations (see Condition 9.12.2).
- b. This permit and the terms and conditions herein do not affect the Permittee's past and/or continuing obligation with respect to statutory or regulatory requirements governing major source construction or modification under Title I of the CAA. Further, neither the issuance of this permit nor any of the terms or conditions of the permit shall alter or affect the liability of the Permittee for any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time of permit issuance.

5.3.6 Episode Action Plan

a. Pursuant to 35 IAC 244.141, 244.142, and 244.143, the Permittee shall maintain at the source and have on file with the Illinois EPA a written episode action plan (plan) for reducing the levels of emissions during yellow alerts, red alerts, and emergencies, consistent with safe operating procedures. The plan shall contain the information specified in 35 IAC 244.144 and is incorporated by reference into this permit.

- b. The Permittee shall immediately implement the appropriate steps described in this plan should an air pollution alert or emergency be declared by the Director of the Illinois EPA or his or her designated representative.
- c. If an operational change occurs at the source which invalidates the plan, a revised plan shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA for review within 30 days of the change, pursuant to 35 IAC 244.143(d). Such plans shall be further revised if disapproved by the Illinois EPA.

5.4 Source-Wide Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern

Source-wide non-applicability of regulations of concern are not set for this source. However, there are terms for unit specific non-applicability of regulations of concern set forth in Section 7 of this permit.

5.5 Source-Wide Control Requirements and Work Practices

Source-wide control requirements and work practices are not set for this source. However, there are requirements for unit specific control requirements and work practices set forth in Section 7 of this permit.

5.6 Source-Wide Production and Emission Limitations

5.6.1 Permitted Emissions for Fees

The annual emissions from the source, not considering insignificant activities as addressed by Section 3.0 of this permit, shall not exceed the following limitations. The overall source emissions shall be determined by adding emissions from all emission units. Compliance with these limits shall be determined on a calendar year basis. These limitations (Condition 5.6.1) are set for the purpose of establishing fees and are not federally enforceable (see Section 39.5(18) of the Act).

Permitted Emissions of Regulated Pollutants

Pollutant	Tons/Year
Volatile Organic Material (VOM)	49.1
Sulfur Dioxide (SO ₂)	10.1
Particulate Matter (PM)	49.1
Nitrogen Oxides (NO _x)	245.0
HAP, not included in VOM or PM	4.0
Total	357.3

5.6.2 Emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants

Pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(a) of the Act, the emissions of HAPs from the source shall be less than 10 tons/year for each individual HAP and 25 tons/year for all HAPs combined. Compliance with annual limits shall be determined on a monthly basis from the sum of the data for the current month plus the preceding 11 months (running 12 month total). This condition is being imposed so that the source is not a major source of HAP emissions. The Permittee shall fulfill the applicable testing, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements of Conditions 5.7.2, 5.9.2, and 5.10.2.

5.6.3 Other Source-Wide Production and Emission Limitations

Other source-wide emission limitations are not set for this source pursuant to the federal rules for PSD, state rules for MSSCAM, or Section 502(b)(10) of the CAA. However, there may be unit specific emission limitations set forth in Section 7 of this permit pursuant to these rules.

5.7 Source-Wide Testing Requirements

- 5.7.1 Pursuant to 35 IAC 201.282 and Section 4(b) of the Act, every emission source or air pollution control equipment shall be subject to the following testing requirements for the purpose of determining the nature and quantities of specified air contaminant emissions and for the purpose of determining ground level and ambient air concentrations of such air contaminants:
 - a. Testing by Owner or Operator: The Illinois EPA may require the owner or operator of the emission source or air pollution control equipment to conduct such tests in accordance with procedures adopted by the Illinois EPA, at such reasonable times as may be specified by the Illinois EPA and at the expense of the owner or operator of the emission source or air pollution control equipment. All such tests shall be made by or under the direction of a person qualified by training and/or experience in the field of air pollution testing. The Illinois EPA shall have the right to observe all aspects of such tests [35 IAC 201.282(a)].
 - b. Testing by the Illinois EPA: The Illinois EPA shall have the right to conduct such tests at any time at its own expense. Upon request of the Illinois EPA, the owner or operator of the emission source or air pollution control equipment shall provide, without charge to the Illinois EPA, necessary holes in stacks or ducts and other safe and proper testing facilities, including scaffolding, but excluding instruments and sensing devices, as may be necessary [35 IAC 201.282(b)].

c. Any such tests are also subject to the Testing Procedures of Condition 8.5 set forth in the General Permit Conditions of Section 8.

5.7.2 HAP Testing to Verify Minor Source Status

Pursuant to Condition 5.7.1 and to verify compliance with the requirements of Condition 5.6.2, that is that this source is not a major source of HAPs, the following testing requirements are established:

- a. If in the previous calendar year, emissions of HAPs exceeded 80% of major source threshold for individual or total HAPs (greater than 8 tons of a single HAP or greater than 20 tons of total HAPs), then testing for HAPs shall be conducted as follows:
 - i. Testing shall be conducted using methods that would be acceptable under the federal National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines, 40 CFR 63 Subpart YYYY. Specifically, the testing procedures detailed at 40 CFR 63.6120 of the performance tests section shall be used. For multiple turbines, the source owner or operator shall test largest turbine which makes the largest contributions to individual and total HAP emissions.
- b. The calculation as to whether the 80% of major source threshold was exceeded shall be based on records and procedures in Condition 5.9.2 and shall be completed by January 31 for the previous calendar year. If testing is required it shall be completed by September 30th.
- c. Any such tests are also subject to the Testing Procedures of Condition 8.5 set forth in the General Permit Conditions of Section 8.

5.8 Source-Wide Monitoring Requirements

Source-wide monitoring requirements are not set for this source. However, there are provisions for unit specific monitoring set forth in Section 7 of this permit.

5.9 Source-Wide Recordkeeping Requirements

5.9.1 Annual Emission Records

The Permittee shall maintain records of total annual emissions on a calendar year basis for the emission units covered by Section 7 (Unit Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units) of this permit to demonstrate compliance with Condition 5.6.1, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act.

5.9.2 Records for HAP Emissions

- a. The Permittee shall maintain records of individual and combined HAP emissions on a monthly and annual basis for the emission units covered by Section 7 (Unit Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units) of this permit to demonstrate compliance with Condition 5.6.2, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act.
- b. If testing is required by Condition 5.7.2, the Permittee shall keep records of the testing, including the test date, conditions, methodologies, calculations, test results, and any discrepancies between the test results and formulation specifications of Condition 5.9.2(c) below.
- c. The Permittee shall keep a record of the applicability determination for 40 CFR 63, Subpart YYYY, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines, at the source for a period of five years after the determination. This determination shall include a detailed analysis that demonstrates why the Permittee believes the source is not subject to 40 CFR 63, Subpart YYYY [40 CFR 63.10(b)(3)].

5.9.3 Retention and Availability of Records

- a. All records and logs required by this permit shall be retained for at least five years from the date of entry (unless a longer retention period is specified by the particular recordkeeping provision herein), shall be kept at a location at the source that is readily accessible to the Illinois EPA or USEPA, and shall be made available for inspection and copying by the Illinois EPA or USEPA upon request.
- b. The Permittee shall retrieve and print, on paper during normal source office hours, any records retained in an electronic format (e.g., computer) in response to an Illinois EPA or USEPA request for records during the course of a source inspection.

5.10 Source-Wide Reporting Requirements

5.10.1 General Source-Wide Reporting Requirements

The Permittee shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit, of deviations of the source with the permit requirements within 30 days, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(f)(ii) of the Act. Reports shall describe the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventive measures taken. There are also reporting requirements for unit specific emission units set forth in Section 7 of this permit.

5.10.2 Annual Emissions Report

The annual emissions report required pursuant to Condition 9.7 shall contain emissions information for the previous calendar year.

5.11 Source-Wide Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios

Source-wide operational flexibility is not set for this source.

5.12 Source-Wide Compliance Procedures

5.12.1 Procedures for Calculating Emissions

Except as provided in Condition 9.1.3, compliance with the source-wide emission limits specified in Condition 5.6 shall be addressed by the recordkeeping and reporting requirements of Conditions 5.9 and 5.10, and compliance procedures in Section 7 (Unit Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units) of this permit.

6.0 CONDITIONS FOR EMISSIONS CONTROL PROGRAMS

6.1 Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) Program

6.1.1 Applicability

This source is an affected source for purposes of the Clean Air Interstate Rule ("CAIR") Program and the following emission units at the source are affected CAIR units:

Turbines CT01-04

Note: Under Section 110 of the Clean Air Act (CAA), the USEPA adopted the Clean Air Interstate Rule or CAIR, 40 CFR Part 96, to reduce and permanently cap emissions of sulfur dioxide (SO₂), and nitrogen oxides (NO_x) from electric power plants that significantly contribute to fine particulate and ozone in the ambient air in the Eastern United States. To implement CAIR in Illinois, the Illinois EPA adopted 35 IAC Part 225 Subparts A, C, D and E. For purposes of this permit, these requirements are referred to as CAIR provisions.

6.1.2 Applicable CAIR Requirements for SO₂ Emissions

The owners and operators of this source shall not violate applicable CAIR provisions, in 35 IAC Part 225, Subpart C. SOmemissions from the affected CAIR units shall not exceed the equivalent number of allowances that the source lawfully holds under these CAIR provisions.

Note: CAIR affected sources must hold CAIR SO_2 allowances to account for the emissions from the affected CAIR units. Each CAIR SO_2 allowance is a limited authorization to emit during the respective CAIR SO_2 annual period or subsequent period. The possession of SO_2 allowances does not authorize exceedances of applicable emission standards or violations of ambient air quality standards.

6.1.3 Applicable CAIR Requirements for NO_x Emissions

The owners and operators of this source shall not violate applicable CAIR provisions, in 35 IAC Part 225, Subpart D. $NO_{\rm x}$ emissions from the affected CAIR units shall not exceed the equivalent number of allowances that the source lawfully holds under these CAIR provisions.

Note: CAIR affected sources must hold CAIR NO_x allowances to account for the emissions from the affected CAIR units. Each CAIR NO_x allowance is a limited authorization to emit during the respective CAIR NO_x annual period or subsequent period. The possession of NO_x allowances does not authorize exceedances of applicable emission standards or violations of ambient air quality standards.

6.1.4 Applicable CAIR Requirements for NO_x Ozone Season Emissions

The owners and operators of this source shall not violate applicable CAIR provisions, in 35 IAC Part 225, Subpart E. Seasonal $NO_{\rm x}$ emissions from the affected CAIR units shall not exceed the equivalent number of allowances that the source lawfully holds under these CAIR provisions.

Note: CAIR affected sources must hold CAIR $\mathrm{NO_x}$ ozone season allowances to account for the emissions from the affected CAIR units. Each CAIR $\mathrm{NO_x}$ ozone season allowance is a limited authorization to emit during the respective CAIR $\mathrm{NO_x}$ ozone season or subsequent season. The possession of $\mathrm{NO_x}$ allowances does not authorize exceedances of applicable emission standards or violations of ambient air quality standards.

6.1.5 Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Reporting

The owners and operators of the source and, to the extent applicable, their designated representative, shall comply with applicable requirements for monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting specified by 35 IAC Part 225 Subparts C, D and E.

Note: As further addressed by Section 7 of this permit, the following emission determination methods are currently being used for the affected CAIR units.

6.1.6 CAIR Permit

The owners and operators of the source shall comply with the terms and conditions of the source's CAIR permit (attached).

Note: This source is subject to a CAIR permit, which was issued pursuant to 35 IAC Part 225.320, 225.420 and 225.520. CAIR sources must be operated in compliance with their CAIR permits. This source's CAIR permit is incorporated into this CAAPP permit with a copy of the current CAIR permit included as an attachment to this permit. Revisions and modifications to the CAIR permit are governed by Section 39.5 of the Act. Accordingly, revision or renewal of the CAIR permit may be handled separately from this CAAPP permit and a copy of the new CAIR permit may be included in this permit by Administrative Amendment.

6.1.7 Coordination with other Requirements

a. This permit does not contain any conditions that are intended to interfere with or modify the requirements of 35 IAC Part 225 C, D, and E, 40 CFR Part 96; or Title IV of the CAA. In particular, this permit does not restrict the flexibility of the owners and operators of this source to comply with CAIR provisions, including the ability to obtain CAIR NO_x allowances from Illinois' Clean Air Set Aside (CASA) for qualifying projects.

b. Where another applicable requirement of the CAA is more stringent than an applicable requirement of 35 IAC Part 225, Subparts C, D, or E; 40 CFR Part 96; or Title IV of the CAA, all requirements are incorporated into this permit and are enforceable and the owners and operators of the source shall comply with both requirements.

6.2 Acid Rain

6.2.1 Applicability

Under Title IV of the CAA, Acid Deposition Control, this source is an affected source and the following emission units at the source are affected units for acid deposition:

Turbines CT01-04

Note: Title IV of the CAA, and other laws and regulations promulgated thereunder, establish requirements for affected sources related to control of emissions of pollutants that contribute to acid rain. For purposes of this permit, these requirements are referred to as Title IV provisions.

6.2.2 Applicable Emission Requirements

The owners and operators of the source shall not violate applicable Title IV provisions. SO_2 emissions of the affected units shall not exceed any allowances that the source lawfully holds under Title IV provisions [Section 39.5(7)(g) and (17)(l) of the Act].

Note: Affected sources must hold SO_2 allowances to account for the SO_2 emissions from affected units at the source that are subject to Title IV provisions. Each allowance is a limited authorization to emit up to one ton of SO_2 emissions during or after a specified calendar year. The possession of allowances does not authorize exceedances of applicable emission standards or violations of ambient air quality standards.

6.2.3 Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Reporting

The owners and operators of the source and, to the extent applicable, their designated representative, shall comply with applicable requirements for monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting specified by Title IV provisions, including 40 CFR Part 75 [Section 39.5(7)(b) and 17(m) of the Act].

6.2.4 Acid Rain Permit

The owners and operators of the source shall comply with the terms and conditions of the source's Acid Rain permit [Section 39.5(17)(1) of the Act].

Note: The source is subject to an Acid Rain permit, which was issued pursuant to Title IV provisions, including Section 39.5(17) of the Act. Affected sources must be operated in compliance with their Acid Rain permits. This source's Acid Rain permit is incorporated by reference into this permit and a copy of the current Acid Rain permit is included as Attachment 6 of this permit. Revisions and modifications of this Acid Rain permit, including administrative amendments and automatic

amendments (pursuant to Sections 408(b) and 403(d) of the CAA or regulations thereunder) are governed by Title IV provisions, as provided by Section 39.5(13)(e) of the Act. Accordingly, revision or renewal of the Acid Rain permit may be handled separately from this CAAPP permit and a copy of the new Acid Rain permit may be included in this permit by administrative amendment.

6.2.5 Coordination with Other Requirements

- a. This permit does not contain any conditions that are intended to interfere with or modify the requirements of Title IV provisions. In particular, this permit does not restrict the flexibility under Title IV provisions of the owners and operators of this source to amend their Acid Rain compliance plan [Section 39.5(17)(h) of the Act].
- b. Where another applicable requirement of the CAA is more stringent than an applicable requirement of Title IV provisions, both requirements are incorporated into this permit and are enforceable and the owners and operators of the source shall comply with both requirements [Section 39.5(7)(h) of the Act].

7.0 UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS FOR SPECIFIC EMISSION UNITS

7.1 Natural Gas-Fired Turbine (Subject to NSPS - 40 CFR Subpart GG)

7.1.1 Description

The turbines are process emission units used to generate electricity. The turbines are powered by natural gas. $\rm NO_x$ emissions are controlled with dry low $\rm NO_x$ combustion systems.

Note: This narrative description is for informational purposes only and is not enforceable.

7.1.2 List of Emission Units and Air Pollution Control Equipment

			Emission
Emission		Date	Control
Unit	Description	Constructed	Equipment
CT01-04	Four 85 MW Natural	2001	Dry Low NOx
	Gas Fired Turbines		Combustors
	(1,082 mmBtu/hr)		

7.1.3 Applicable Provisions and Regulations

- a. The "affected turbines" for the purpose of these unitspecific conditions, are turbines described in Conditions 7.1.1 and 7.1.2.
- b. Pursuant to 35 IAC 212.123,
 - i. No person shall cause or allow the emission of smoke or other particulate matter, with an opacity greater than 30 percent, into the atmosphere from any emission unit.
 - ii. The emission of smoke or other particulate matter from any such emission unit may have an opacity greater than 30 percent but not greater than 60 percent for a period or periods aggregating 8 minutes in any 60 minute period provided that such opaque emissions permitted during any 60 minute period shall occur from only one such emission unit located within a 1000 ft radius from the center point of any other such emission unit owned or operated by such person, and provided further that such opaque emissions permitted from each such emission unit shall be limited to 3 times in any 24 hour period.
- c. Pursuant to 35 IAC 214.301, no person shall cause or allow the emission of sulfur dioxide into the atmosphere from any process emission source to excess 2000 ppm.
- d. The affected turbines are subject to the NSPS for Stationary Gas Turbines, 40 CFR 60 Subparts A and GG,

because the heat input at peak load is equal to or greater than 10.7 gigajoules per hour (10 mmBtu/hr), based on the lower heating value of the fuel fired and the affected turbine commenced construction, modification, or reconstruction after October 3, 1977. The Illinois EPA administers the NSPS for subject sources in Illinois pursuant to a delegation agreement with the USEPA.

i. Standard for Nitrogen Oxides:

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.332(b), electric utility stationary gas turbines with a heat input at peak load greater than 107.2 gigajoules per hour (100 million Btu/hour) based on the lower heating value of the fuel fired shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR 60.332(a)(l). Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.332(a)(l), no owner or operator of an affected turbine shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from such gas turbine, any gases which contain nitrogen oxides in excess of:

STD = 0.0075
$$\frac{(14.4)}{Y}$$
 + F

Where:

- $STD = Allowable NO_x$ emissions (percent by volume at 15 percent oxygen and on a dry basis).
- Y = Manufacturer's rated heat rate at manufacturer's rated load (kilojoules per watt hour) or, actual measured heat rate based on lower heating value of fuel as measured at actual peak load for the facility. The value of Y shall not exceed 14.4 kilojoules per watt hour.
- $F = NO_x$ emission allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen calculated from the nitrogen content of the fuel as follows:

Fuel-bound nitrogen (percent by weight)	(NO _x percent by volume)
$N \le 0.015$ $0.015 < N \le 0.1$	0.04 (N)
$0.1 < N \le 0.25$ N > 0.25	0.04 + 0.0067(N - 0.1) 0.005

Where:

N = The nitrogen content of the fuel (percent by weight) determined in according with Condition 7.1.8(b).

ii. Standard for Sulfur Dioxide:

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.333, on and after the date on which the performance test required to be conducted by 40 CFR 60.8 is completed, every owner or operator subject to the provision of 40 CFR 60 Subpart GG shall comply with one or the other of the following conditions:

No owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any stationary gas turbine any gases which contain sulfur dioxide in excess of 0.015 percent by volume at 15 percent oxygen and on a dry basis, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.333(a).

No owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall burn in any stationary gas turbine any fuel which contains total sulfur in excess of 0.8 percent by weight (8000 ppmw), pursuant to 40 CFR 60.333(b).

- e. i. No owner or operator shall cause or allow the emissions of NO_x into the atmosphere from the affected turbine to exceed 0.25 lbs/mmBtu of actual heat input during each ozone control period from May 1 through September 30, based on a ozone control period average, for that unit [35 IAC 217.706(a)].
 - ii. Notwithstanding the above emission limitation of 35 IAC 217.706(a), the affected turbine subject to a more stringent NO_x emission limitation pursuant to any State or federal statute, including the Act, the Clean Air Act, or any regulations promulgated thereunder, shall comply with both the requirements of 35 IAC 217 Subpart V and that more stringent emission limitation [35 IAC 217.706(b)].

f. Startup Provisions

Subject to the following terms and conditions, the Permittee is authorized to operate the affected turbines in violation of the applicable standards in Condition 7.1.3(b) and the hourly limits of 7.1.6 during startup. This authorization is provided pursuant to 35 IAC 201.149, 201.161 and 201.262, as the Permittee has applied for such authorization in its application, generally describing the efforts that will be used "...to minimize startup emissions, duration of individual starts, and frequency of startups."

i. This authorization does not relieve the Permittee from the continuing obligation to demonstrate that all reasonable efforts are made to minimize startup

- emissions, duration of individual startups and frequency of startups.
- ii. The Permittee shall conduct startup of the each affected turbine(s) in accordance with written procedures prepared by the Permittee and maintained at the facility, in the control room for the each affected turbine(s), that are specifically developed to minimize emissions from startups and that include, at a minimum, the following measures:
 - A. The Permittee shall conduct startup of an affected turbine in accordance with the manufacturer's written instructions or other written instructions prepared by the source owner or operator and maintained on site.
 - B. The Permittee shall take the following measures to minimize emissions resulting from startups, the duration of startups, and minimize the frequency of startups:
 - I. Operating in accordance with the manufacturer's written operating and startup procedures, including a pre-check of the unit, or other written procedures developed and maintained by the source owner or operator so as to minimize the duration of startups and the emissions associated with startups. These procedures should allow for review of operating parameters of the unit during startup, or shutdown as necessary to make adjustments to reduce or eliminate excess emissions.
 - II. Maintaining units in accordance with written procedures developed and maintained by the source owner or operator so as to minimize the duration of startups and the frequency of startups. These maintenance practices shall include maintenance activities before the unit is started up, when the unit is in operation, and when the unit is shut down.
 - III. The procedures described above shall be reviewed at least annually to make necessary adjustments and shall be made available to the Illinois EPA upon request.

- iv. The Permittee shall fulfill applicable recordkeeping and reporting requirements of Condition 7.1.9(o) and 7.1.10(e).
- v. As provided by 35 IAC 201.265, an authorization in a permit for excess emissions during startup does not shield a Permittee from enforcement for any violation of applicable emission standard(s) that occurs during startup and only constitutes a prima facie defense to such an enforcement action provided that the Permittee has fully complied with all terms and conditions connected with such authorization.
- g. Malfunction and Breakdown Provisions

Subject to the following terms and conditions, the Permittee is authorized to continue operation of an affected turbine in violation of the applicable standards in Condition 7.1.3(b) in the event of a malfunction or breakdown of the affected turbines. This authorization is provided pursuant to 35 IAC 201.149, 201.161 and 201.262, as the Permittee has applied for such authorization in its application, generally explaining why such continued operation would be required to provide essential service or to prevent risk of injury to personnel or severe damage to equipment, and describing the measures that will be taken to minimize emissions from any malfunctions and breakdowns. This authorization supersedes the general prohibition in Condition 9.2.3 against continued operation in such circumstances.

- i. This authorization only allows such continued operation as necessary to provide essential service or prevent risk of injury to personnel or severe damage to equipment and does not extend to continued operation solely for the economic benefit of the Permittee.
- ii. Upon occurrence of excess emissions due to malfunction or breakdown, the Permittee shall as soon as practical repair the turbine, remove the affected turbine from service, or undertake other action so that excess emissions cease.
- iii. The Permittee shall fulfill the applicable recordkeeping and reporting requirements of Conditions 7.1.9(p) and 7.1.10(f). For these purposes, time shall be measured from the start of a particular incident. The absence of excess emissions for a short period shall not be considered to end the incident if excess emissions resume. In such circumstances, the incident shall be considered to continue until corrective actions are taken so that

- excess emissions cease or the Permittee takes the affected turbines out of service.
- iv. Following notification to the Illinois EPA of a malfunction or breakdown with excess emissions, the Permittee shall comply with all reasonable directives of the Illinois EPA with respect to such incident, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.263.
- v. This authorization does not relieve the Permittee from the continuing obligation to minimize excess emissions during malfunction or breakdown. As provided by 35 IAC 201.265, an authorization in a permit for continued operation with excess emissions during malfunction and breakdown does not shield the Permittee from enforcement for any such violation and only constitutes a prima facie defense to such an enforcement action provided that the Permittee has fully complied with all terms and conditions connected with such authorization.

7.1.4 Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern

a. The affected turbines are not subject to the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) for Stationary Combustion Turbines, 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart KKKK, because the affected turbines did not commence construction, modification, or reconstruction after February 18, 2005 pursuant to 40 CFR 60.4305(a), and are therefore subject to 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart GG for Stationary Gas Turbines.

Note: To qualify for this non-applicability, the Permittee has certified that the turbines have not been modified or reconstructed after February 18, 2005.

- b. The affected turbines are not subject to the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines, 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYY, because the affected turbines are not located at a major source of HAP emissions, pursuant to 40 CFR 63.6085.
- c. The affected turbines are not subject to 35 IAC 212.321 or 212.322, due to the unique nature of such units, a process weight rate can not be set so that such rules can not reasonably be applied, pursuant to 35 IAC 212.323.
- d. The affected turbines are not subject to 35 IAC 217.141 or 35 IAC 216.121 because the affected turbines are not fuel combustion units, as defined by 35 IAC 211.2470.
- e. The affected turbines are not subject to 40 CFR Part 64, Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) for Major Stationary Sources:

- i. For NO_x and SO_2 , because:
 - A. The affected turbines are subject to a NSPS proposed after November 15, 1990, pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2(b)(1)(i).
 - B. The affected turbines are subject to Acid Rain Program requirements, pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2(b)(1)(iii).
 - C. The affected turbines are subject to an emission limitation or standard for which this CAAPP permit specifies a continuous compliance determination method, pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2(b)(1)(vi).
- ii. For PM, VOM, and CO because the affected turbines do not use an add-on control device to achieve compliance with an emission limitation or standard.

7.1.5 Control Requirements and Work Practices

- a. i. At all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction, the source owner or operator shall, to the extent practicable, maintain and operate any affected turbine in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practice for minimizing emissions. Determination of whether acceptable operating and maintenance procedures are being used will be based on information available to the Illinois EPA or the USEPA which may include, but is not limited to, monitoring results, opacity observations, review of operating and maintenance procedures, and inspection of the source [40 CFR 60.11(d)].
 - ii. The source owner or operator shall operate the affected turbines in accordance with written operating procedures that shall include at a minimum the following measures:
 - A. Review of operating parameters of the unit during startup or shutdown as necessary for the proper operation of the affected turbine with appropriate adjustments to reduce emissions.
 - B. Implementation of inspection and repair procedures for an affected turbine prior to attempting startup following repeated trips.
 - iii. The source owner or operator shall maintain the affected turbines in accordance with written procedures that shall include at a minimum the following measures:

- A. Unless specified on a more frequent basis by manufacturer's written instructions, an inspection of emissions-related components shall be completed quarterly. Inspections shall be conducted in accordance with manufacturer's written instructions.
- B. Repair and routine replacement of emissionsrelated components.
- iv. The above procedures may incorporate the manufacturer's written instruction for operation and maintenance of the affected turbines and associated control systems. The source owner or operator shall review these procedures at least every two years and shall revise or enhance them if necessary to be consistent with good air pollution control practice based on the actual operating experience and performance of the source.
- b. Natural gas shall be the only fuel in the affected turbines.
- c. The affected turbines shall be equipped, operated, and maintained with dry low $NO_{\rm x}$ combustors to control $NO_{\rm x}$ emissions.
- d. The Permittee shall manage the operation of the affected turbines to minimize multiple startups of an affected turbine in a single day, unless the affected turbine is tripped off during startup, and to provide adequate time for normal startup of the affected turbines, except for "quick starts" that are due to requests for immediate delivery of power, as would result from unexpected loss of a transmission line or other generating capacity.

7.1.6 Production and Emission Limitations

In addition to Condition 5.3.2 and the source-wide emission limitations in Condition 5.6, the affected turbines are subject to the following:

- a. The affected turbines, in total, shall not fire more than 8,475 million standard cubic feet of natural gas per year. Compliance with annual limitations shall be determined on a monthly basis from the sum of the data for the current month plus the preceding 11 months (running 12 month total). The above limitation was established in Permit 00050050 [T1].
- b. Hourly emissions from each affected turbine shall not exceed the following limits [T1]:

<u>Pollutant</u>	(Lb/Hr)
NO _v	60.0
CO	59.0
PM/PM ₁₀	10.0
VOM	10.0
SO ₂	. 2.6

- c. Not withstanding Condition 7.1.6(b), when the operating load of an affected turbine is 101 percent or more of the manufacturer's nominal rated output (rated output) or 50 percent or less than the rated output, NO_x emissions from the turbines shall not exceed 107 lbs/hour. [T1]
- d. The total annual emissions from the affected turbines shall not exceed the following limits [T1]:

Pollutant Pollutant	(Tons/Yr)	
NO_x	243.7	
CO	244.0	
PM/PM_{10}	49.0	
MOV	49.0	
SO ₂	10.0	

- e. Compliance with annual limits shall be determined on a monthly basis from the sum of the data for the current month plus the preceding 11 months (running 12 month total) [T1].
- f. The above limitations were established in Permit 00050050, pursuant to PSD. These limits ensure that the construction and/or modification addressed in the aforementioned permit does not constitute a new major source or major modification pursuant to Title I of the CAA, specifically the federal rules for PSD [T1].

7.1.7 Testing Requirements

- a. The nitrogen oxides (NO_x) emissions, and the oxygen (O_2) concentration and opacity of exhaust shall be measured for the affected turbines at the source owner or operator's expense by an independent testing service approved by the Illinois EPA as follows to determine compliance with applicable emission limits:
 - i. Within 120 days after a written request from the Illinois EPA, for such pollutants listed above as specified by the request.
 - ii. Any extension to these time periods that may be provided at its discretion by the Illinois EPA shall not alter the source owner or operator's obligation

to perform emission testing for purposes of the NSPS in a timely manner as specified by 40 CFR 60.8.

- b. The following methods and procedures shall be used for testing of emissions:
 - i. The USEPA Reference Test Methods shall be used including the following:

Opacity Nitrogen Oxides USEPA Method 9 USEPA Method 20

ii. A. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b), the owner or operator shall determine compliance with the applicable nitrogen oxides emission limitation in 40 CFR 60.332 and shall meet the performance test requirements of 40 CFR 60.8 as follows:

For each run of the performance test, the mean nitrogen oxides emission concentration (NO_{Xo}) corrected to 15 percent O_2 shall be corrected to ISO standard conditions using the following equation. Notwithstanding this requirement, use of the ISO correction equation is optional for: Lean premix stationary combustion turbines; units used in association with heat recovery steam generators (HRSG) equipped with duct burners; and units equipped with add-on emission control devices, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b) (1):

 $NO_x = (NO_{xo}) (P_r/P_o) 0.5 \text{ e} 19 (H_o - 0.00633)$ (288°K/Ta) 1.53

Where:

- NO_x = emission concentration of NO_x at 15 percent O_2 and ISO standard ambient conditions, ppm by volume, dry basis
- NO_{Xo} = mean observed NO_{x} concentration, ppm by volume, dry basis, at 15 percent O_2
- $P_{\rm r}$ = reference combustor inlet absolute pressure at 101.3 kilopascals ambient pressure, mm Hg
- P_o ⇒observed combustor inlet absolute pressure at test, mm Hg
- H_{o} =observed humidity of ambient air, g H_{2} O/g air
- e = transcendental constant, 2.718

Ta = ambient temperature, °K

The 3-run performance test required by 40 CFR 60.8 must be performed within ± 5 percent at 30, 50, 75, and 90-to-100 percent of peak load or at four evenly-spaced load points in the normal operating range of the gas turbine, including the minimum point in the operating range and 90-to-100 percent of peak load, or at the highest achievable load point if 90-to-100 percent of peak load cannot be physically achieved in practice. If the turbine combusts both oil and gas as primary or backup fuels, separate performance testing is required for each fuel. Notwithstanding these requirements, performance testing is not required for any emergency fuel (as defined in 40 CFR 60.331), pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(2).

If water or steam injection is used to control NO_x with no additional post-combustion NO_x control and the owner or operator chooses to monitor the steam or water to fuel ratio in accordance with 40 CFR 60.334(a), then that monitoring system must be operated concurrently with each EPA Method 20, ASTM D6522-00 (incorporated by reference, see 40 CFR 60.17), or EPA Method 7E run and shall be used to determine the fuel consumption and the steam or water to fuel ratio necessary to comply with the applicable 40 CFR 60.332 NO_x emission limit, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b) (4).

If the owner or operator elects to install a CEMS, the performance evaluation of the CEMS may either be conducted separately (as described in 40 CFR 63.335 (b) (7)) or as part of the initial performance test of the affected unit, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b) (6).

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b) (7), if the owner or operator elects to install and certify a NO_x CEMS under 40 CFR 60.334(e), then the initial performance test required under 40 CFR 60.8 may be done in the following alternative manner:

Perform a minimum of 9 reference method runs, with a minimum time per run of 21 minutes, at a single load level, between 90 and 100 percent of peak (or the highest physically achievable) load, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(7)(i).

Use the test data both to demonstrate compliance with the applicable NO_x emission limit under 40 CFR 60.332 and to provide the required reference method data for the RATA of the CEMS described under 40 CFR 60.334(b) , pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(7)(ii).

The requirement to test at three additional load levels is waived, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(7)(iii).

If the owner or operator elects under 40 CFR 60.334(f) to monitor combustion parameters or parameters indicative of proper operation of NO_x emission controls, the appropriate parameters shall be continuously monitored and recorded during each run of the initial performance test, to establish acceptable operating ranges, for purposes of the parameter monitoring plan for the affected unit, as specified in 40 CFR 60.334(g), pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(8).

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(10), if the owner or operator is required under 40 CFR 60.334(i)(1) or (3) to periodically determine the sulfur content of the fuel combusted in the turbine, a minimum of three fuel samples shall be collected during the performance test. Analyze the samples for the total sulfur content of the fuel using:

For gaseous fuels, ASTM D1072-80, 90 (Reapproved 1994); D3246-81, 92, 96; D4468-85 (Reapproved 2000); or D6667-01 (all of which are incorporated by reference, see 40 CFR 60.17). The applicable ranges of some ASTM methods mentioned above are not adequate to measure the levels of sulfur in some fuel gases. Dilution of samples before analysis (with verification of the dilution ratio) may be used, subject to the prior approval of the Administrator, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(10)(ii).

The fuel analyses required under paragraphs (b)(9) and (b)(10) of this section may be performed by the owner or operator, a service contractor retained by the owner or operator, the fuel vendor, or any other qualified agency, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(11).

B. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(c), the owner or operator may use the following as alternatives to the reference methods and procedures specified in this section:

Instead of using the equation in 40 CFR 60.335(b)(1), manufacturers may develop ambient condition correction factors to adjust the nitrogen oxides emission level measured by the performance test as provided in 40 CFR 60.8 to ISO standard day conditions, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(c)(1).

- c. At least 60 days prior to the actual date of testing, a written test plan shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA for review. This plan shall describe the specific procedures for testing and shall include as a minimum:
 - i. The person(s) who will be performing sampling and analysis and their experience with similar tests.
 - ii. The specific conditions under which testing shall be performed including a discussion of why these conditions will be representative of maximum emissions and the means by which the operating parameters for the turbine will be tracked and recorded.
 - iii. The specific determinations of emissions that are intended to be made, including sampling and monitoring locations; the test method(s) that will be used, with the specific analysis method, if the method can be used with different analysis methods. The source owner or operator may also propose a plan for testing across the normal operating range of the affected turbines.
- d. The Illinois EPA shall be notified prior to these tests to enable the Illinois EPA to observe these tests. Notification of the expected date of testing shall be submitted a minimum of thirty (30) days prior to the expected date. Notification of the actual date and expected time of testing shall be submitted a minimum of five (5) working days prior to the actual date of the test. The Illinois EPA may, at its discretion, accept notifications with shorter advance notice provided that the Illinois EPA will not accept such notifications if it interferes with the Illinois EPA's ability to observe the testing.
- e. The Final Report for these tests shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA within 60 days after the date of the tests. The Final Report shall include as a minimum:
 - A summary of results.

- ii. General information.
- iii. Description of test method(s), including description of sampling points, sampling train, analysis equipment and test schedule.
- iv. Detailed description of test conditions, including:
 - A. Fuel consumption (standard ft^3).
 - B. Firing rate (million Btu/hr).
 - C. Turbine/Generator output rate (MW).
- v. Data and calculations, including copies of all raw data sheets and records of laboratory analyses, sample calculations, and data on equipment calibration.
- f. i. Upon written request by the Illinois EPA, the source owner or operator shall have the opacity of the exhaust from the affected turbine(s) tested during representative operating conditions as determined by a qualified observer in accordance with USEPA Test Method 9, as further specified below, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(d) of the Act.
 - ii. Such testing shall be conducted for specific turbine(s) within 90 calendar days of the request, or on the date turbine(s) next operates, or on the date agreed upon by the Illinois EPA, whichever is later.
 - iii. The duration of opacity observations for each test shall be at least 30 minutes (five 6-minute averages) unless the average opacities for the first 12 minutes of observations (two six-minute averages) are both less than 10.0 percent.
 - iv. The source owner or operator shall notify the Illinois EPA at least 7 days in advance of the date and time of these tests, in order to allow the Illinois EPA to witness testing. This notification shall include the name and employer of the qualified observer(s).
 - v. The source owner or operator shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA of any changes in the time or date for testing.
 - vi. The source owner or operator shall provide a copy of its observer's readings to the Illinois EPA at the time of testing, if Illinois EPA personnel are present.

- vii. The source owner or operator shall submit a written report for this testing within 30 days of the date of testing. This report shall include:
 - A. Date and time of testing.
 - B. Name and employer of qualified observer.
 - C. Copy of current certification.
 - D. Description of observation conditions.
 - E. Description of turbine operating conditions.
 - F. Raw data.
 - G. Opacity determinations.
 - H. Conclusions.

7.1.8 Monitoring Requirements

- a. i. If an affected turbine is routinely operated or exercised to confirm that the turbine will operate when needed, the operation and opacity of the affected turbine shall be formally observed by operating personnel for the affected turbine or a member of source owner or operator's environmental staff on a regular basis to assure that the affected turbine is operating properly, which observations shall be made at least every six months.
 - ii. If an affected turbine is not routinely operated or exercised, i.e., the time interval between operation of an affected turbine is typically greater than six months, the operation and opacity of the affected turbine shall be formally observed as provided above each time the source owner or operator carries out a scheduled exercise of the affected turbine.
 - iii. The source owner or operator shall also conduct formal observations of operation and opacity of an affected turbine upon written request by the Illinois EPA. With the agreement of the Illinois EPA, the source owner or operator may schedule these observations to take place during periods when it would otherwise be operating the affected turbine.

Note: The formal observation required above is not intended to be a USEPA Test Method 9 opacity test, nor does the observation require a USEPA Test Method 9 certified observer. It is intended to be performed by personnel familiar with the operation of the affected turbine who would be able to make a determination based from the

observed opacity as to whether or not the affected turbine was running properly, and subsequently initiate a corrective action if necessary.

b. The affected turbine shall comply with the applicable monitoring requirements of 40 CFR 60.334(h), below.

Monitoring of fuel nitrogen content shall not be required while the facility does not claim an allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen. Monitoring for sulfur content in fuel is not required while natural gas is the only fuel fired in the affected turbine and the requirements of 40 CFR 60.334(h)3(i) or (ii) are met.

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h), the owner or operator of any stationary gas turbine subject to the provisions of this subpart:

Shall monitor the total sulfur content of the fuel being fired in the turbine, except as provided in 40 CFR 60.334(h)(3). The sulfur content of the fuel must be determined using total sulfur methods described in 40 CFR 60.335(b)(10). Alternatively, if the total sulfur content of the gaseous fuel during the most recent performance test was less than 0.4 weight percent (4000 ppmw), ASTM D4084-82, 94, D5504-01, D6228-98, or Gas Processors Association Standard 2377-86 (all of which are incorporated by reference-see 40 CFR 60.17), which measure the major sulfur compounds may be used, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h)(1); and

Shall monitor the nitrogen content of the fuel combusted in the turbine, if the owner or operator claims an allowance for fuel bound nitrogen (i.e., if an F-value greater than zero is being or will be used by the owner or operator to calculate STD in 40 CFR 60.332). The nitrogen content of the fuel shall be determined using methods described in 40 CFR 60.335(b) (9) or an approved alternative, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h) (2).

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h)(3), notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (h)(1) of this section, the owner or operator may elect not to monitor the total sulfur content of the gaseous fuel combusted in the turbine, if the gaseous fuel is demonstrated to meet the definition of natural gas in 40 CFR 60.331(u), regardless of whether an existing custom schedule approved by the administrator for subpart GG requires such monitoring. The owner or operator shall use one of the following sources of information to make the required demonstration:

The gas quality characteristics in a current, valid purchase contract, tariff sheet or transportation contract for the gaseous fuel, specifying that the maximum total sulfur content of the fuel is 20.0 grains/100 scf or less, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(3)(i); or

Representative fuel sampling data which show that the sulfur content of the gaseous fuel does not exceed 20 grains/100 scf. At a minimum, the amount of fuel sampling data specified in section 2.3.1.4 or 2.3.2.4 of appendix D to part 75 of this chapter is required, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h)(3)(ii).

- c. Should the operation of the affected turbine exceed the limitations of the definition of a gas-fired peaking unit in 40 CFR 75, the source owner or operator shall install the appropriate Continuous Monitoring System(s) on the affected turbine by December 31 of the following calendar year, as defined in 40 CFR 75, in order to remain in compliance with the provisions of the Acid Rain Program.
- d. i. The owner or operator of an affected turbine subject to 35 IAC 217 Subpart V (Condition 7.1.3(e)) shall install, calibrate, maintain and operate continuous emissions monitoring systems (CEMS) for NO_x that meet the requirements of 40 CFR 75, Subpart B [35 IAC 217.710(a)].
 - ii. Notwithstanding 35 IAC 217.710(a) above, the owner or operator of a gas-fired peaking unit or oil-fired peaking unit as defined in 40 CFR 72.2 may determine NO_{x} emissions in accordance with the emissions estimation protocol of 40 CFR 75, Subpart E [35 IAC 217.710(b)].
 - iii. Notwithstanding 35 IAC 217.710(a) above, the owner or operator of a combustion turbine that operates less than 350 hour per ozone control period may determine the heat input and NO_x emissions of the turbine as follows [35 IAC 217.710(c)]:
 - A. Heat input shall be determined from the metered fuel usage to the turbine or the calculated heat input determined as the product of the turbine's maximum hourly heat input and hours of operation as recorded by operating instrumentation on the turbine [35 IAC 217.710(c)(1)].
 - B. NO_x emissions shall be determined as the product of the heat input, as determined above, and the appropriate default NO_x emission factors below [35 IAC 217.710(c)(2)]:
 - 0.7 lbs/mmBtu Natural gas 1.2 lbs/mmBtu - Fuel oil

e. The affected turbine shall be equipped, operated, and maintained with a continuous monitoring system to monitor and record the fuel consumption being fired.

7.1.9 Recordkeeping Requirements

In addition to the records required by Condition 5.9, the source owner or operator shall maintain records of the following items for the affected turbine(s) to demonstrate compliance with Conditions 5.6.1, 7.1.3, 7.1.5, and 7.1.6, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act:

- a. The owner or operator of an affected turbine subject to the requirements of 35 IAC 217 Subpart V (Condition 7.1.3(e)) shall:
 - i. Comply with the recordkeeping and reporting requirements of 40 CFR 75 applicable to NO_x emissions during the ozone control period, including, but not limited to, 40 CFR 75.54(b) and (d) [35 IAC 217.712(a)].
 - ii. Notwithstanding 35 IAC 217.712(a) above, the owner or operator of a combustion turbine for which heat input and NO_x emissions are determined pursuant to 35 IAC 217.710(c) (Condition 7.1.8(d) (iii)) shall comply with the following recordkeeping and reporting requirements [35 IAC 217.712(b)]:
 - A. Maintain records of the heat input and NO_x emissions of the turbine as determined in accordance with 35 IAC 217.710(c), and records of metered fuel use or operating hours used to determine heat input [35 IAC 217.712(b)(1)].
- b. The source owner or operator shall maintain records of the following items:
 - i. A. The three year rolling average annual capacity factor and the highest annual capacity factor in any one of the three averaging years to determine the status of the affected turbine as a "gas-fired peaking unit."
 - B. A record documenting whether the capacity factors exceeded the limitations for a gas fired peaking unit and whether Acid Rain Program Continuous Monitoring System(s) will be required.
 - ii. The sulfur content of the natural gas used to fire the turbines as determined in accordance with Condition 7.1.8(b).

- iii. A copy of the Final Report(s) for emission testing conducted pursuant to Condition 7.1.7.
- iv. Copies of opacity determinations taken for the source by qualified observer(s) when using USEPA Method 9.
- v. Records documenting its periodic review of its operating procedures as required by Condition 7.1.5(a).
- vi. Information for the formal observations of opacity conducted pursuant to Condition 7.1.8(a). For each occasion on which observations are made, these records shall include the date, time, identity of the observer, a description of the various observations that were made, whether or not the affected engine was running properly, and whether or not corrective action is necessary and was subsequently initiated.
- c. A maintenance and repair log for the affected turbine, listing each activity performed with date.
- d. Reserved for future use.
- e. Fuel consumption for the affected turbine, scf/month and mmscf/year.
- f. Reserved for future use.
- g. Operating hours for the affected turbine, hr/day, hr/month, and hr/year.
- h. Heat content of the fuel being fired in the affected turbine.
- Ambient temperature, and turbine load (MWe), on a daily basis for each hour turbine is operated.
- j. Any period of time when a turbine operates at 101 percent or more of rated output.
- k. Emissions of each pollutant from the affected turbine, including emissions from startups, with supporting calculations including documentation on the validity of the emission factors used, ton/month and ton/year.
- 1. The source owner or operator shall maintain records that identify:
 - i. Any periods during which a continuous monitoring system was not operational, with explanation.
 - ii. If a water injection system is used, any period when the affected turbine was in operation during which

ice fog was deemed to be a traffic hazard, the ambient conditions existing during the periods, the date and time the water injection system was deactivated, and the date and time the system was reactivated.

- iii. Any day in which emission and/or opacity exceeded an applicable standard or limit.
- m. The source owner or operator shall keep records of good operating practices for each turbine.
- n. The source owner or operator shall maintain the following records related to each shutdown of the turbines:
 - i. The following information for each shutdown of a turbine:
 - A. Date and time of shutdown.
 - B. A description of the shutdown, if written operating procedures are not followed during the shutdown or significant problems occur during the shutdown, including detailed explanation.
 - ii. The following information for the turbines when above normal opacity, as defined in Condition 7.1.8, has been observed by source personnel:
 - A. Name of observer, position and reason for being at site.
 - B. Date and duration of above normal opacity, including affected turbine, start time and time normal operation was achieved.
 - C. If normal operation was not achieved within 30 minutes, an explanation why startup could not be achieved within this time.
 - D. A detailed description of the startup, including reason for operation.
 - E. An explanation why established startup procedures could not be performed, if not performed.
 - F. The nature of opacity following the end of startup or 30 minutes of operation, whichever occurs first, and duration of operation until achievement of normal opacity or shutdown.

G. Whether an exceedance of Condition 7.1.3(b), i.e., 30 percent opacity, may have occurred during startup, with explanation if qualified observer was on site.

o. Records for Startup

The Permittee shall maintain the following records, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act, for each affected turbine subject to Condition 7.1.3(b), which at a minimum shall include:

- i. The following information for each startup of the affected turbine(s):
 - A. Date and duration of the startup, i.e., start time and time normal operation achieved.
 - B. If normal operation was not achieved within 30 minutes, an explanation why startup could not be achieved within this time.
 - C. A detailed description of the startup, including reason for operation and whether the procedures 7.1.3(f) were performed.
 - D. An explanation why the procedures of 7.1.3(f) and other established startup procedures could not be performed, if not performed.
 - E. Whether exceedance of Condition 5.3.2 and 7.1.3(b) may have occurred during startup. If an exceedance may have occurred, an explanation of the nature of opacity, i.e., severity and duration, during the startup and the nature of opacity at the conclusion of startup.
 - F. Whether operating personnel for the turbines or air environmental staff are on site during startup.

p. Records for Malfunctions and Breakdowns

The Permittee shall maintain records, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.263, of continued operation of an affected turbine subject to Condition 7.1.3(g) during malfunctions and breakdown, which as a minimum, shall include:

- i. Date and duration of malfunction or breakdown.
- A detailed explanation of the malfunction or breakdown.

- iii. An explanation why the affected turbine continued to operate in accordance with Condition 7.1.3(g).
- iv. The measures used to reduce the quantity of emissions and the duration of the event.
- v. The steps taken to prevent similar malfunctions or breakdowns or reduce their frequency and severity.
- vi. The amount of release above typical emissions during malfunction/breakdown.

7.1.10 Reporting Requirements

a. Reporting of Deviations

The source owner or operator shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit, of deviations of the affected turbine with the permit requirements as follows, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(f)(ii) of the Act. Reports shall describe the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventive measures taken:

- i. Emissions from the affected turbine in excess of the limits specified in Conditions 7.1.3 and 7.1.6 within 30 days of such occurrence.
- ii. Operation of the affected turbine in excess of the limits specified in Conditions 7.1.5 and 7.1.6 within 30 days of such occurrence.
- b. In conjunction with the Annual Emission Report required by 35 IAC Part 254, the source owner or operator shall provide the operating hours for each affected turbine, the total number of startups, the total fuel consumption during the preceding calendar year, and the records necessary from Condition 7.1.9(b)(i) which demonstrate the Acid Rain Program status of the affected turbine as a "gas-fired peaking unit."
- c. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.7(c) and 40 CFR 60.334(j), a report shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis. This report shall contain information on excess emissions and monitoring system downtime reports in accordance with 40 CFR 60.7(c) and 40 CFR 60.334(j).
- d. i. Annually report the heat input and NO_x emissions of the turbine as determined in accordance with 35 IAC 217.710(c) (Condition 7.1.8(c)(iii)), for each ozone control period, by November 30 of each year [35 IAC 217.712(b)(2)].
 - ii. Pursuant to 35 IAC 217.712(c) and (d), no later than November 30 of each year, the source owner or

operator shall submit a report to the Illinois EPA that demonstrates that the affected turbine has complied with Condition 7.1.3(e). These reports shall be accompanied by a certification statement signed by a responsible official for the source owner or operator as specified by 35 IAC 217.712(c).

e. Reporting of Startups

The source owner or operator shall submit semi-annual startup reports to the Illinois EPA pursuant to Sections 39.5(7)(a) and (f) of the Act. These reports shall be submitted along with the semi-annual reports required by Condition 7.1.10(c) and shall include the following information for startups of the affected turbine during the reporting period:

- i. A list of the startups of the affected turbine, including the date, duration and description of each startup, accompanied by a copy of the records pursuant to Condition 7.1.9(n) for each startup for which such records were required.
- ii. If there have been no startups of an affected turbine during the reporting period, this shall be stated in the report.
- f. Reporting of Malfunctions and Breakdowns

The Permittee shall provide the following notification and reports to the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit and Regional Field Office, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.263, concerning continued operation of an affected turbine subject to Condition 7.1.3(g) during malfunction or breakdown:

- i. A. The Permittee shall notify the Illinois EPA's regional office by telephone as soon as possible during normal working hours, but no later than three (3) days, upon the occurrence of noncompliance due to malfunction or breakdown.
 - B. Upon achievement of compliance, the Permittee shall give a written follow-up notice within 15 days to the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit and Regional Field Office, providing a detailed explanation of the event, an explanation why continued operation of the affected turbines was necessary, the length of time during which operation continued under such conditions, the measures taken by the Permittee to minimize and correct deficiencies with chronology, and when

the repairs were completed or when the affected turbine was taken out of service.

- C. If compliance is not achieved within 5 working days of the occurrence, the Permittee shall submit interim status reports to the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit and Regional Field Office, within 5 days of the occurrence and every 14 days thereafter, until compliance is achieved. These interim reports shall provide a brief explanation of the nature of the malfunction or breakdown, corrective actions accomplished to date, actions anticipated to occur with schedule, and the expected date on which repairs will be complete or the affected turbine will be taken out of service.
- ii. In accordance with the due dates in Condition 8.6.1, the Permittee shall submit semi-annual malfunction and breakdown reports to the Illinois EPA pursuant to Sections 39.5(7)(a) and (f) of the Act. These reports may be submitted along with other semi-annual reports and shall include the following information for malfunctions and breakdowns of the affected turbine during the reporting period:
 - A. A listing of malfunctions and breakdowns, in chronological order, that includes:
 - The date, time, and duration of each incident.
 - II. The identity of the affected operation(s) involved in the incident.
 - B. Dates of the notices and reports of Conditions 7.1.10(f)(i).
 - C. Any supplement information the Permittee wishes to provide to the notices and reports of Conditions 7.1.10(f)(i).
 - D. The aggregate duration of all incidents during the reporting period.
 - E. If there have been no such incidents during the reporting period, this shall be stated in the report.

7.1.11 Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios

Operational flexibility is not set for the affected turbines.

7.1.12 Compliance Procedures

- a. Compliance with the opacity limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(b) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the testing requirements of 7.1.7, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, and the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10.
- b. Compliance with the SO_2 emission limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(c) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10.
- c. i. Compliance with the NO_x emission limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(d)(i) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the testing requirements of 7.1.7, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, and the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10(a).
 - ii. Compliance with the SO_2 emission limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(d)(ii) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10(a).
- d. i. Compliance with the NO_x emission limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(e) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the testing requirements of 7.1.7, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10(a).
 - ii. Notwithstanding 35 IAC 217.710(a), Condition 7.1.8(d), the owner or operator of a gas-fired peaking unit or oil-fired peaking unit as defined in 40 CFR 72.2 may determine NO_x emissions in accordance with the emissions estimation protocol of 40 CFR 75, Subpart E [35 IAC 217.710(b)].
 - iii. Notwithstanding 35 IAC 217.710(a), Condition 7.1.8(d), the owner or operator of a combustion turbine that operates less than 350 hour per ozone control period may determine the heat input and NO_x emissions of the turbine as follows [35 IAC 217.710(c)]:
 - A. Heat input shall be determined from the metered fuel usage to the turbine or the calculated heat input determined as the product of the turbine's maximum hourly heat input and hours

of operation as recorded by operating instrumentation on the turbine [35 IAC 217.710(c)(1)].

B. NO_x emissions shall be determined as the product of the heat input, as determined above, and the appropriate default NO_x emission factors below [35 IAC 217.710(c)(2)]:

0.7 lbs/mmBtu - Natural gas
1.2 lbs/mmBtu - Fuel oil

- e. i. Compliance with the fuel limits in Condition 7.1.6(a) is addressed by the records and reports required in Conditions 7.1.9 and 7.1.10.
 - ii. Compliance with the emission limits in Conditions 5.6 and 7.1.6(b) and 7.1.6(d) is addressed by the records and reports required in Conditions 7.1.9 and 7.1.10, the continuous NOx monitoring requirements in Condition 7.1.8 or from emission factors developed from the most recent approved stack test in accordance with Condition 7.1.7 (NO_x), standard emission factors (CO, VOM and PM/PM₁₀) and analysis of fuel sulfur content or standard factors (SO₂).

7.2 Diesel Engine (Subject to NESHAP - 40 CFR 63 Subpart ZZZZ)

7.2.1 Description

The diesel engine is a process emission units used to drive a fire pump. The Permittee operates one (1) 208 Hp diesel fire pump.

Note: This narrative description is for informational purposes only and is not enforceable.

7.2.2 List of Emission Units and Air Pollution Control Equipment

			Emission
Emission		Date	Control
Unit	Description	Constructed	Equipment
Engine #1	Diesel Firepump Distillate: 208 Hp	2002	None

7.2.3 Applicable Provisions and Regulations

- a. The "affected diesel engine" for the purpose of these unitspecific conditions, is the diesel engine described in Conditions 7.2.1 and 7.2.2.
- Pursuant to 35 IAC 212.123,
 - i. No person shall cause or allow the emission of smoke or other particulate matter, with an opacity greater than 30 percent, into the atmosphere from any emission unit.
 - ii. The emission of smoke or other particulate matter from any such emission unit may have an opacity greater than 30 percent but not greater than 60 percent for a period or periods aggregating 8 minutes in any 60 minute period provided that such opaque emissions permitted during any 60 minute period shall occur from only one such emission unit located within a 1000 ft radius from the center point of any other such emission unit owned or operated by such person, and provided further that such opaque emissions permitted from each such emission unit shall be limited to 3 times in any 24 hour period.
- c. i. Pursuant to 35 IAC 214.301, no person shall cause or allow the emission of sulfur dioxide into the atmosphere from any process emission source to excess 2000 ppm.

7.2.4 Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern

a. The affected diesel engine are not subject to the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) for Compression

Ignition Internal Combustion Engines, 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart IIII, because the Permittee did not commence construction (date that construction commences is the date the engine is ordered by the Permittee) of the affected diesel engine after July 11, 2005.

Note: To qualify for this non-applicability, the Permittee has certified that the diesel engines have not modified or reconstructed their diesel engines after July 11, 2005.

- b. The affected diesel engine are excluded from certain requirements of the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ, because the affected diesel engine are existing compression ignition (CI) stationary RICE, pursuant to 40 CFR 63.6590(b)(3), and do not have to meet the requirements of that Subpart or Subpart A, additionally no initial notification is necessary. Requirements necessary to maintain the exclusion, and therefore compliance with that Part, are found within this Section. Specifically, those requirements are not becoming an affected source pursuant to 40 CFR 63.6590.
- c. The affected diesel engine are not subject to 35 IAC 212.321 or 212.322, due to the unique nature of such units, a process weight rate can not be set so that such rules can not reasonably be applied, pursuant to 35 IAC 212.323.
- d. The affected diesel engine are not subject to 35 IAC 216.121 because the affected diesel engine is not fuel combustion units, as defined by 35 IAC 211.2470.
- e. i. The affected diesel engine are not subject to 35 IAC Part 217, Subpart Q: Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines and Turbines, because the affected diesel engine is not stationary reciprocating internal combustion engines listed in Appendix G of that Part, pursuant to 35 IAC 217.386.
 - ii. The affected diesel engine are not subject to 35 IAC 217.141 because the affected diesel engine is not fuel combustion units, as defined by 35 IAC 211.2470.
- f. The affected diesel engine is not subject to 40 CFR Part 64, Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) for Major Stationary Sources, because the affected diesel engine does not use an add-on control device to achieve compliance with an emission limitation or standard.

7.2.5 Control Requirements and Work Practices

- a. The Permittee shall follow good operating practices for the affected diesel engine, including periodic inspection, routine maintenance and prompt repair of defects.
- b. Distillate fuel oil shall be the only fuel fired in the affected diesel engine.
- c. The Illinois EPA shall be allowed to sample all fuels stored at the source.

7.2.6 Production and Emission Limitations

Production and emission limitations are not set for the affected diesel engine. However, there are source-wide production and emission limitations set forth in Condition 5.6.

7.2.7 Testing Requirements

- a. i. Upon written request by the Illinois EPA, the
 Permittee shall have the opacity of the exhaust from
 the affected diesel engine(s) tested during
 representative operating conditions as determined by
 a qualified observer in accordance with USEPA Test
 Method 9, as further specified below, pursuant to
 Section 39.5(7)(d) of the Act.
 - ii. Such testing shall be conducted for specific diesel engine(s) within 70 calendar days of the request, or on the date diesel engine(s) next operates, or on the date agreed upon by the Illinois EPA, whichever is later.
 - iii. The duration of opacity observations for each test shall be at least 30 minutes (five 6-minute averages) unless the average opacities for the first 12 minutes of observations (two six-minute averages) are both less than 10.0 percent.
 - iv. The Permittee shall notify the Illinois EPA at least 7 days in advance of the date and time of these tests, in order to allow the Illinois EPA to witness testing. This notification shall include the name and employer of the qualified observer(s).
 - v. The Permittee shall promptly notify the Illinois \mbox{EPA} of any changes in the time or date for testing.
 - vi. The Permittee shall provide a copy of its observer's readings to the Illinois EPA at the time of testing, if Illinois EPA personnel are present.

- vii. The Permittee shall submit a written report for this testing within 15 days of the date of testing. This report shall include:
 - A. Date and time of testing.
 - B. Name and employer of qualified observer.
 - C. Copy of current certification.
 - D. Description of observation conditions.
 - E. Description of diesel engine operating conditions.
 - F. Raw data.
 - G. Opacity determinations.
 - H. Conclusions.
- b. i. In the event that the fuel oil supplier is unable to provide the sulfur content of the fuel oil supply for the affected diesel engine, the Permittee shall have the sulfur content of the oil supply to the affected diesel engine, in lbs/mmBtu, determined from an analysis of representative sample of the oil supply, as follows, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(d) of the Act:
 - A. From a sample taken no later than 90 days after first operating the affected diesel engine pursuant to this permit, provided, however, that if such sample is taken following operation of the affected diesel engine, the sample shall be taken prior to adding more oil to the storage tank.
 - B. From a sample taken no later than 30 days after acceptance of a shipment of fuel whose sulfur content would not meet Condition 7.2.3(c) based upon supplier data, provided however, that if the affected diesel engine is operated following acceptance of such a shipment, the sample shall be taken prior to adding a subsequent shipment of oil to the relevant storage tank.
 - C. From a sample taken no later than 30 days after a request for such a sample is made by the Illinois EPA, provided, however, that such sample shall be taken prior to adding more oil to the relevant storage tank.

ii. Sampling and analysis, including that which forms the basis for the suppliers' data, shall be conducted using methods that would be acceptable under the federal New Source Performance Standards for Stationary Gas Turbines, 40 CFR 60.335(b)(2) and (c) or the federal Acid Rain Program, 40 CFR 75, Appendix D, Optional SO₂ Emissions Data Protocol for Gas-Fired and Oil-Fired Units e.g., ASTM D4057-88 and ASTM D129-91.

Note: Condition 7.2.7(b)(ii) is for fuel testing methodology only, and is in no way intended to subject the source to those provisions.

7.2.8 Monitoring Requirements

- a. i. If an affected diesel engine is routinely operated or exercised to confirm that the affected diesel engine will operate when needed, the operation and opacity of the affected diesel engine shall be formally observed by operating personnel for the affected diesel engine or a member of Permittee's environmental staff on a regular basis to assure that the affected diesel engine is operating properly, which observations shall be made at least every six months.
 - ii. If an affected diesel engine is not routinely operated or exercised, i.e., the time interval between operation of an affected diesel engine is typically greater than six months, the operation and opacity of the affected diesel engine shall be formally observed as provided above each time the Permittee carries out a scheduled exercise of the affected diesel engine.
 - iii. The Permittee shall also conduct formal observations of operation and opacity of an affected diesel engine upon written request by the Illinois EPA. With the agreement of the Illinois EPA, the Permittee may schedule these observations to take place during periods when it would otherwise be operating the affected diesel engine.

Note: The "formally observation" required above is not intended to be a USEPA Test Method 9 opacity test, nor does the observation require a USEPA Test Method 9 certified observer. It is intended to be performed by personnel familiar with the operation of the affected diesel engine who would be able to make a determination based from the affected diesel engine who would be able to make a determination based from the observed opacity as to whether of not the affected diesel engine was running properly, and subsequently initiate a corrective action if necessary.

7.2.9 Recordkeeping Requirements

In addition to the records required by Condition 5.9, the Permittee shall maintain records of the following items for each affected diesel engine to demonstrate compliance with Conditions 5.6.1 and 7.2.3, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act:

- a. i. An operating log for each affected diesel engine, which shall include the following information:
 - A. Information for each time the affected diesel engine is operated, with date, time, duration, and purpose (i.e., exercise or power service). Monthly and annual records of hours of operation of each engine and total hours of operation.
 - B. Information for the observations conducted pursuant to Condition 7.2.8(a) or 7.2.7(a), with date, time, personnel, and findings.
 - I. The Permittee shall keep records for all opacity measurements made in accordance with USEPA Method 9 for an affected diesel engine that it conducts or that are conducted on its behalf by individuals who are qualified to make such observations for Condition 7.2.7(a). For each occasion on which such observations are made, these records shall include the identity of the observer, a description of the various observations that were made, the observed opacity, and copies of the raw data sheets for the observations.
 - II. The Permittee shall keep records for all formal observations of opacity conducted pursuant to Condition 7.2.8(a). For each occasion on which observations are made, these records shall include the date, time, identity of the observer, a description of the various observations that were made, whether or not the affected diesel engine was running properly, and whether or not corrective action is necessary and was subsequently initiated.
 - C. Information identifying any deviation from Condition 7.2.5(b).

- ii. A maintenance and repair log for each affected diesel engine and associated equipment, listing activities performed with date.
- iii. The Permittee shall keep records of good operating practices for each affected diesel engine, as defined in Condition 7.2.5(a).
- b. Fuel usage for the affected diesel engine:
 - i. Total usage of fuel oil for the affected diesel engine, gallons/month and gallons/year.
- c. The following records related to the sulfur content of the oil fuel supply and SO_2 emissions of the affected diesel engine:
 - i. Records for each shipment of fuel for the affected diesel engine, including date, supplier, quantity (in gallons), sulfur content, and whether the SO_2 emissions from the burning of such fuel would meet the standard in Condition 7.2.3(c).
 - ii. The Permittee shall maintain records of the sulfur content of the fuel oil supply to the affected diesel engine, based on the weighted average of material in the storage tank, or the sulfur content of the supply shall be assumed to be the highest sulfur content in any shipment in the tank.
- d. Emissions from each affected diesel engine (i.e., NO_x , CO, SO_2 , VOM, and PM) in tons/month and tons/year with supporting calculations and data as required by Condition 7.2.9.

7.2.10 Reporting Requirements

a. Reporting of Deviations

The Permittee shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit, of deviations of an affected diesel engine with the permit requirements as follows, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(f)(ii) of the Act. Reports shall describe the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventive measures taken:

- i. Emissions of opacity, SO2, from the affected diesel engine in excess of the limits specified in Conditions 7.2.3 within 30 days of such occurrence.
- ii. Operation of the affected diesel engine in noncompliance with the requirements specified in Condition 7.2.5 within 30 days of such occurrence.

7.2.11 Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios

Operational flexibility is not set for the affected diesel engine.

7.2.12 Compliance Procedures

- a. Compliance with the PM emission limitations of Conditions 7.2.3(b) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.2.5(a), the testing requirements in Condition 7.2.7(a), the monitoring requirements of Condition 7.2.8(a), the records required in Condition 7.2.9(a), and the reports required in Condition 7.2.10(a).
- b. i. Compliance with the SO_2 emission limitation of Condition 7.2.3(c) (i) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.2.5, the testing requirements in Condition 7.2.7(b), and the records and reports required in Conditions 7.2.9(b) and (c) and 7.2.10(a).
 - ii. For this purpose, complete conversion of sulfur into SO_2 shall be assumed, e.g., SO_2 emissions in lb/mmBtu are twice the sulfur content of the fuel supply, in lb/mmBtu, using the following equation:

SO_2 ppm = Fuel sulfur content (lb/mmBtu) x 2 x 1/64 x 385.2 x 1,000,000 Engine exhaust rate factor (scf/mmBtu)

Note: Stoichiometric combustion of distillate oil with the maximum available sulfur content, i.e., 1.0 percent, would result in an SO_2 concentration in the exhaust that is well below the 2000 ppm limit in Condition 7.2.3(c)(i), i.e., only about 500 ppm, based on 10,320 scf/mmBtu, the F-factor for oil in USEPA's Reference Method 19.

- c. Compliance with the emission limits in Conditions 5.6 are addressed by the records and reports required in Conditions 7.2.9 and 7.2.10 and the emission factors and formulas listed below if suitable manufacture's emission rate data is not available:
 - i. Emission factors for the affected diesel engines up to 600 horsepower:

	Emission Factors	
<u>Pollutant</u>	(lb/mmBtu)	(lb/hp-hr)
	Fuel Input	Power Output
VOM	0.35	2.46×10^{-03}
PM	0.31	2.20×10^{-03}
SO ₂	0.29	2.05×10^{-03}
NO_x	4.41	0.031
co	0.95	6.68×10^{-03}

The heat content of distillate fuel oil shall be assumed to be 137,030 Btu/gal as per AP-42.

Emissions = Distillate Fuel Oil Usage $\mathbf x$ Heat Content of Fuel Oil $\mathbf x$ Emission Factor

The emission factors are for Gasoline And Diesel Industrial Engines from AP-42 Section 3.3 (dated 10/96).

8.0 GENERAL PERMIT CONDITIONS

8.1 Permit Shield

Pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(j) of the Act, the Permittee has requested and has been granted a permit shield. This permit shield provides that compliance with the conditions of this permit shall be deemed compliance with applicable requirements which were applicable as of the date the proposed permit for this source was issued, provided that either the applicable requirements are specifically identified within this permit, or the Illinois EPA, in acting on this permit application, has determined that other requirements specifically identified are not applicable to this source and this determination (or a concise summary thereof) is included in this permit.

This permit shield does not extend to applicable requirements which are promulgated after January 30, 2009 (the date of issuance of the proposed permit) unless this permit has been modified to reflect such new requirements.

8.2 Applicability of Title IV Requirements (Acid Deposition Control)

This source is an affected source under Title IV of the CAA and is subject to requirements pursuant to Title IV of the CAA as specified in Section 6.2. To the extent that the federal regulations promulgated under Title IV of the CAA, are inconsistent with the requirements of this permit, the federal regulations promulgated under Title IV of the CAA shall take precedence pursuant to Section 39.5(17)(j) of the Act.

8.3 Emissions Trading Programs

No permit revision shall be required for increases in emissions allowed under any USEPA approved economic incentives, marketable permits, emissions trading, and other similar programs or processes for changes that are provided for elsewhere in this permit and that are authorized by the applicable requirement [Section 39.5(7)(o)(vii) of the Act].

8.4 Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios

8.4.1 Changes Specifically Addressed by Permit

Physical or operational changes specifically addressed by the Conditions of this permit that have been identified as not requiring Illinois EPA notification may be implemented without prior notice to the Illinois EPA.

8.4.2 Changes Requiring Prior Notification

The Permittee is authorized to make physical or operational changes that contravene express permit terms without applying for or obtaining an amendment to this permit, provided that [Section 39.5(12)(a)(i) of the Act]:

a. The changes do not violate applicable requirements;

- b. The changes do not contravene federally enforceable permit terms or conditions that are monitoring (including test methods), recordkeeping, reporting, or compliance certification requirements;
- c. The changes do not constitute a modification under Title I of the CAA;
- d. Emissions will not exceed the emissions allowed under this permit following implementation of the physical or operational change; and
- e. The Permittee provides written notice to the Illinois EPA, Division of Air Pollution Control, Permit Section, at least 7 days before commencement of the change. This notice shall:
 - i. Describe the physical or operational change;
 - ii. Identify the schedule for implementing the physical or operational change;
 - iii. Provide a statement of whether or not any New Source Performance Standard (NSPS) is applicable to the physical or operational change and the reason why the NSPS does or does not apply;
 - iv. Provide emission calculations which demonstrate that the physical or operational change will not result in a modification; and
 - v. Provide a certification that the physical or operational change will not result in emissions greater than authorized under the Conditions of this permit.

8.5 Testing Procedures

Tests conducted to measure composition of materials, efficiency of pollution control devices, emissions from process or control equipment, or other parameters shall be conducted using standard test methods if applicable test methods are not specified by the applicable regulations or otherwise identified in the conditions of this permit. Documentation of the test date, conditions, methodologies, calculations, and test results shall be retained pursuant to the recordkeeping procedures of this permit. Reports of any tests conducted as required by this permit or as the result of a request by the Illinois EPA shall be submitted as specified in Conditions 8.6.3 and 8.6.4.

8.6 Reporting Requirements

8.6.1 Monitoring Reports

Reports summarizing required monitoring as specified in the conditions of this permit shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA every six months as follows, unless more frequent submittal of such reports is required in Sections 5 or 7 of this permit [Section 39.5(7)(f) of the Act]:

Monitoring Period

Report Due Date

January - June

September 1

July - December

March 1

All instances of deviations from permit requirements must be clearly identified in such reports. All such reports shall be certified in accordance with Condition 9.9.

8.6.2 Test Notifications

Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this permit, a written test plan for any test required by this permit shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA for review at least 60 days prior to the testing pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(a) of the Act. The notification shall include at a minimum:

- a. The name and identification of the affected unit(s);
- b. The person(s) who will be performing sampling and analysis and their experience with similar tests;
- c. The specific conditions under which testing will be performed, including a discussion of why these conditions will be representative of maximum emissions and the means by which the operating parameters for the source and any control equipment will be determined;
- d. The specific determinations of emissions and operation that are intended to be made, including sampling and monitoring locations;
- e. The test method(s) that will be used, with the specific analysis method, if the method can be used with different analysis methods;
- f. Any minor changes in standard methodology proposed to accommodate the specific circumstances of testing, with justification; and
- g. Any proposed use of an alternative test method, with detailed justification.

8.6.3 Test Reports

Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this permit, the results of any test required by this permit shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA within 60 days of completion of the testing. The test report shall include at a minimum [Section 39.5(7)(e)(i) of the Act]:

- a. The name and identification of the affected unit(s);
- b. The date and time of the sampling or measurements;
- c. The date any analyses were performed;
- d. The name of the company that performed the tests and/or analyses;
- e. The test and analytical methodologies used;
- f. The results of the tests including raw data, and/or analyses including sample calculations;
- g. The operating conditions at the time of the sampling or measurements; and
- h. The name of any relevant observers present including the testing company's representatives, any Illinois EPA or USEPA representatives, and the representatives of the source.

8.6.4 Reporting Addresses

- a. Unless otherwise specified in the particular provision of this permit or in the written instructions distributed by the Illinois EPA for particular reports, reports and notifications shall be sent to the Illinois EPA - Air Compliance Unit with a copy sent to the Illinois EPA - Air Regional Field Office.
- b. As of the date of issuance of this permit, the addresses of the offices that should generally be utilized for the submittal of reports and notifications are as follows:
 - i. Illinois EPA Air Compliance Unit

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Bureau of Air Compliance & Enforcement Section (MC 40) P.O. Box 19276 Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276 ii. Illinois EPA - Air Quality Planning Section

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Bureau of Air Air Quality Planning Section (MC 39) P.O. Box 19276 Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276

iii. Illinois EPA - Air Regional Field Office

Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Division of Air Pollution Control 2009 Mall Street Collinsville, Illinois 62234

iv. USEPA Region 5 - Air Branch

USEPA (AR - 17J) Air & Radiation Division 77 West Jackson Boulevard Chicago, Illinois 60604

c. Permit applications should be addressed to the Air Permit Section. As of the date of issuance of this permit, the address of the Air Permit Section is as follows:

> Illinois Environmental Protection Agency Division of Air Pollution Control Permit Section (MC 11) P.O. Box 19506 Springfield, Illinois 62794-9506

8.7 Title I Conditions

Notwithstanding the expiration date on the first page of this CAAPP permit, Title I conditions in this permit, which are identified by a T1, T1N, or T1R designation, remain in effect until such time as the Illinois EPA takes action to revise or terminate them in accordance with applicable procedures for action on Title I conditions. This is because these conditions either: (a) incorporate conditions of earlier permits that were issued by the Illinois EPA pursuant to authority that includes authority found in Title I of the CAA (T1 conditions), (b) were newly established in this CAAPP permit pursuant to authority that includes such Title I authority (T1N conditions), or (c) reflect a revision or combination of conditions established in this CAAPP permit (T1R conditions). (See also Condition 1.5.)

9.0 STANDARD PERMIT CONDITIONS

9.1 Effect of Permit

- 9.1.1 The issuance of this permit does not release the Permittee from compliance with State and Federal regulations which are part of the Illinois State Implementation Plan, as well as with other applicable statutes and regulations of the United States or the State of Illinois or applicable ordinances, except as specifically stated in this permit and as allowed by law and rule.
- 9.1.2 In particular, this permit does not alter or affect the following [Section 39.5(7)(j)(iv) of the Act]:
 - a. The provisions of Section 303 (emergency powers) of the CAA, including USEPA's authority under that Section;
 - b. The liability of an owner or operator of a source for any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time of permit issuance;
 - c. The applicable requirements of the acid rain program consistent with Section 408(a) of the CAA; and
 - d. The ability of USEPA to obtain information from a source pursuant to Section 114 (inspections, monitoring, and entry) of the CAA.
- 9.1.3 Notwithstanding the conditions of this permit specifying compliance practices for applicable requirements, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(j) and (p) of the Act, any person (including the Permittee) may also use other credible evidence to establish compliance or noncompliance with applicable requirements.

9.2 General Obligations of Permittee

9.2.1 Duty to Comply

The Permittee must comply with all terms and conditions of this permit. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of the CAA and the Act, and is grounds for any or all of the following: enforcement action; permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or modification; or denial of a permit renewal application [Section 39.5(7)(o)(i) of the Act].

The Permittee shall meet applicable requirements that become effective during the permit term in a timely manner unless an alternate schedule for compliance with the applicable requirement is established.

9.2.2 Duty to Maintain Equipment

The Permittee shall maintain all equipment covered under this permit in such a manner that the performance or operation of such equipment shall not cause a violation of applicable requirements.

9.2.3 Duty to Cease Operation

No person shall cause, threaten or allow the continued operation of any emission unit during malfunction or breakdown of the emission unit or related air pollution control equipment if such operation would cause a violation of an applicable emission standard, regulatory requirement, ambient air quality standard or permit limitation unless this permit provides for such continued operation consistent with the Act and applicable Illinois Pollution Control Board regulations [Section 39.5(6)(c) of the Act].

9.2.4 Disposal Operations

The source shall be operated in such a manner that the disposal of air contaminants collected by the equipment operations, or activities shall not cause a violation of the Act or regulations promulgated there under.

9.2.5 Duty to Pay Fees

The Permittee must pay fees to the Illinois EPA consistent with the fee schedule approved pursuant to Section 39.5(18) of the Act, and submit any information relevant thereto [Section 39.5(7)(o)(vi) of the Act]. The check should be payable to "Treasurer, State of Illinois" and sent to: Fiscal Services Section, Illinois Environmental Protection Agency, P.O. Box 19276, Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276.

9.3 Obligation to Allow Illinois EPA Surveillance

Upon presentation of proper credentials and other documents as may be required by law and in accordance with constitutional limitations, the Permittee shall allow the Illinois EPA, or an authorized representative to perform the following [Sections 4 and 39.5(7)(a) and (p)(ii) of the Act]:

- a. Enter upon the Permittee's premises where an actual or potential emission unit is located; where any regulated equipment, operation, or activity is located or where records must be kept under the conditions of this permit;
- b. Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of this permit;
- c. Inspect during hours of operation any sources, equipment (including monitoring and air pollution control equipment),

practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit;

- d. Sample or monitor any substances or parameters at any location:
 - i. At reasonable times, for the purposes of assuring permit compliance or applicable requirements; or
 - ii. As otherwise authorized by the CAA, or the Act.
- Obtain and remove samples of any discharge or emission of pollutants authorized by this permit; and
- f. Enter and utilize any photographic, recording, testing, monitoring, or other equipment for the purposes of preserving, testing, monitoring, or recording any regulated activity, discharge or emission at the source authorized by this permit.

9.4 Obligation to Comply with Other Requirements

The issuance of this permit does not release the Permittee from applicable State and Federal laws and regulations, and applicable local ordinances addressing subjects other than air pollution control.

9.5 Liability

9.5.1 Title

This permit shall not be considered as in any manner affecting the title of the premises upon which the permitted source is located.

9.5.2 Liability of Permittee

This permit does not release the Permittee from any liability for damage to person or property caused by or resulting from the construction, maintenance, or operation of the sources.

9.5.3 Structural Stability

This permit does not take into consideration or attest to the structural stability of any unit or part of the source.

9.5.4 Illinois EPA Liability

This permit in no manner implies or suggests that the Illinois EPA (or its officers, agents or employees) assumes any liability, directly or indirectly, for any loss due to damage, installation, maintenance, or operation of the source.

9.5.5 Property Rights

This permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege [Section 39.5(7)(o)(iv) of the Act].

9.6 Recordkeeping

9.6.1 Control Equipment Maintenance Records

A maintenance record shall be kept on the premises for each item of air pollution control equipment. At a minimum, this record shall show the dates of performance and nature of preventative maintenance activities.

9.6.2 Records of Changes in Operation

A record shall be kept describing changes made at the source that result in emissions of a regulated air pollutant subject to an applicable requirement, but not otherwise regulated under this permit, and the emissions resulting from those changes [Section 39.5(12)(b)(iv) of the Act].

9.6.3 Retention of Records

- a. Records of all monitoring data and support information shall be retained for a period of at least 5 years from the date of the monitoring sample, measurement, report, or application. Support information includes all calibration and maintenance records, original strip-chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation, and copies of all reports required by this permit [Section 39.5(7)(e)(ii) of the Act].
- b. Other records required by this permit including any logs, plans, procedures, or instructions required to be kept by this permit shall be retained for a period of at least 5 years from the date of entry unless a longer period is specified by a particular permit provision.

9.7 Annual Emissions Report

The Permittee shall submit an annual emissions report to the Illinois EPA, Air Quality Planning Section no later than May 1 of the following year, as required by 35 IAC Part 254.

9.8 Requirements for Compliance Certification

Pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(p)(v) of the Act, the Permittee shall submit annual compliance certifications. The compliance certifications shall be submitted no later than May 1 or more frequently as specified in the applicable requirements or by permit condition. The compliance certifications shall be submitted to the Air Compliance Unit, Air Regional Field Office, and USEPA Region 5 - Air Branch. The addresses for the submittal of the compliance certifications are provided in Condition 8.6.4 of this permit.

a. The certification shall include the identification of each term or condition of this permit that is the basis of the certification; the compliance status; whether compliance was continuous or intermittent; the method(s) used for determining the compliance status of the source, both currently and over the reporting period consistent with the conditions of this permit.

- All compliance certifications shall be submitted to USEPA Region
 in Chicago as well as to the Illinois EPA.
- c. All compliance reports required to be submitted shall include a certification in accordance with Condition 9.9.

9.9 Certification

Any document (including reports) required to be submitted by this permit shall contain a certification by a responsible official of the Permittee that meets the requirements of Section 39.5(5) of the Act and applicable regulations [Section 39.5(7)(p)(i) of the Act]. An example Certification by a Responsible Official is included as Attachment 1 to this permit.

9.10 Defense to Enforcement Actions

9.10.1 Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense

It shall not be a defense for the Permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this permit [Section 39.5(7)(o)(ii) of the Act].

9.10.2 Emergency Provision

- a. An emergency shall be an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with the technology-based emission limitations under this permit if the following conditions are met through properly signed, contemporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence [Section 39.5(7)(k) of the Act]:
 - i. An emergency occurred as provided in Section 39.5(7)(k) of the Act and the Permittee can identify the cause(s) of the emergency.

Note: For this purpose, emergency means a situation arising from sudden and reasonably unforeseeable events beyond the control of the source, as further defined by Section 39.5(7)(k) (iv) of the Act.

- ii. The permitted source was at the time being properly operated;
- iii. The Permittee submitted notice of the emergency to the Illinois EPA within two working days of the time when emission limitations were exceeded due to the emergency. This notice must contain a detailed

description of the emergency, any steps taken to mitigate emissions, and corrective actions taken; and

- iv. During the period of the emergency the Permittee took all reasonable steps to minimize levels of emissions that exceeded the emission limitations, standards, or regulations in this permit.
- b. This provision is in addition to any emergency or upset provision contained in any applicable requirement. This provision does not relieve a Permittee of any reporting obligations under existing federal or state laws or regulations [Section 39.5(7)(k)(iv) of the Act].

9.11 Permanent Shutdown

This permit only covers emission units and control equipment while physically present at the indicated source location(s). Unless this permit specifically provides for equipment relocation, this permit is void for the operation or activity of any item of equipment on the date it is removed from the permitted location(s) or permanently shut down. This permit expires if all equipment is removed from the permitted location(s), notwithstanding the expiration date specified on this permit.

9.12 Reopening and Reissuing Permit for Cause

9.12.1 Permit Actions

This permit may be modified, revoked, reopened and reissued, or terminated for cause in accordance with applicable provisions of Section 39.5 of the Act. The filing of a request by the Permittee for a permit modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or of a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any permit condition [Section 39.5(7)(o)(iii) of the Act].

9.12.2 Reopening and Revision

This permit must be reopened and revised if any of the following occur [Section 39.5(15)(a) of the Act]:

- a. Additional requirements become applicable to the equipment covered by this permit and three or more years remain before expiration of this permit.
- b. Additional requirements become applicable to an affected source for acid deposition under the acid rain program.
- c. The Illinois EPA or USEPA determines that this permit contains a material mistake or that inaccurate statement were made in establishing the emission standards or limitations, or other terms or conditions of this permit.

d. The Illinois EPA or USEPA determines that this permit must be revised or revoked to ensure compliance with the applicable requirements.

9.12.3 Inaccurate Application

The Illinois EPA has issued this permit based upon the information submitted by the Permittee in the permit application. Any misinformation, false statement or misrepresentation in the application shall be grounds for revocation and reissuance under Section 39.5(15) of the Act, pursuant to Sections 39.5(5)(e) and (i) of the Act.

9.12.4 Duty to Provide Information

The Permittee shall furnish to the Illinois EPA, within a reasonable time specified by the Illinois EPA any information that the Illinois EPA may request in writing to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and reissuing, or terminating this permit, or to determine compliance with this permit. Upon request, the Permittee shall also furnish to the Illinois EPA copies of records required to be kept by this permit, or for information claimed to be confidential, the Permittee may furnish such records directly to USEPA along with a claim of confidentiality [Section 39.5(7)(o)(v) of the Act].

9.13 Severability Clause

The provisions of this permit are severable. In the event of a challenge to any portion of the permit, other portions of the permit may continue to be in effect. Should any portion of this permit be determined to be illegal or unenforceable, the validity of the other provisions shall not be affected and the rights and obligations of the Permittee shall be construed and enforced as if this permit did not contain the particular provisions held to be invalid and the applicable requirements underlying these provisions shall remain in force [Section 39.5(7)(i) of the Act].

9.14 Permit Expiration and Renewal

Upon the expiration of this permit, if the source is operated, it shall be deemed to be operating without a permit unless a timely and complete CAAPP application has been submitted for renewal of this permit. However, if a timely and complete application to renew this CAAPP permit has been submitted, the terms and all conditions of this CAAPP permit will remain in effect until the issuance of a renewal permit [Section 39.5(5)(1) and (o) of the Act].

Note: Pursuant to Sections 39.5(5)(h) and (n) of the Act, upon submittal of a timely and complete renewal application, the permitted source may continue to operate until final action is taken by the Illinois EPA on the renewal application, provided, however, that this protection shall cease if the applicant fails to submit any additional information necessary to evaluate or take final action on the renewal

application as requested by the Illinois EPA in writing. For a renewal application to be timely, it must be submitted no later than 9 months prior to the date of permit expiration.

9.15 General Authority for the Terms and Conditions of this Permit

The authority for terms and conditions of this permit that do not include a citation for their authority is Section 39.5(7)(a) of the Act, which provides that the Illinois EPA shall include such provisions in a CAAPP permit as are necessary to accomplish the purposes of the Act and to assure compliance with all applicable requirements. Section 39.5(7)(a) of the Act is also another basis of authority for terms and conditions of this permit that do include a specific citation for their authority.

Note: This condition is included in this permit pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(n) of the Act.

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009

* * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

10.0 ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 Example Certification by a Responsible Official

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

Signature:	 		
Name:			
Official Title:			
Telephone No.:			
Date Signed:			

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009
* * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

Attachment 2 Emissions of Particulate Matter from Process Emission Units

- a. New Process Emission Units for Which Construction or Modification Commenced On or After April 14, 1972 [35 IAC 212.321].
 - i. No person shall cause or allow the emission of particulate matter into the atmosphere in any one hour period from any new process emission unit which, either alone or in combination with the emission of particulate matter from all other similar process emission units for which construction or modification commenced on or after April 14, 1972, at a source or premises, exceeds the allowable emission rates specified in subsection (c) of 35 IAC 212.321 [35 IAC 212.321(a)].
 - ii. Interpolated and extrapolated values of the data in subsection (c) of 35 IAC 212.321 shall be determined by using the equation [35 IAC 212.321(b)]:

$$E = A(P)^B$$

where:

P = Process weight rate; and

E = Allowable emission rate; and,

A. Up to process weight rates of 408 Mg/hr (450 T/hr):

	Metric	English
P	Mg/hr	T/hr
E	kg/hr	lb/hr
A	1.214	2.54
В	0.534	0.534

B. For process weight rate greater than or equal to 408 Mg/hr (450 T/hr):

	Metric	English
P	Mg/hr	T/hr
E	kg/hr	lb/hr
A	11.42	24.8
В	0.16	0.16

iii. Limits for Process Emission Units For Which Construction or Modification Commenced On or After April 19, 1972 [35 IAC 212.321(c)]:

Metric P <u>Mg/hr</u>	E kg/hr	English P <u>T/hr</u>	E <u>1b/hr</u>
0.05 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.8 2.7 3.6 4.5 9.0 13.0 18.0 23.0 27.0 32.0 36.0 41.0 45.0 90.0 140.0 180.0 230.0 270.0 320.0 3	0.25 0.29 0.42 0.64 0.74 0.84 1.00 1.15 1.66 2.1 2.4 2.7 3.9 4.8 5.7 6.5 7.1 7.7 8.2 8.8 9.3 13.4 17.0 19.4 22.0 24.0 26.0 28.0	0.05 0.10 0.2 0.30 0.40 0.50 0.75 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00 30.00 45.00 50.00 100.00 150.00 100.00 150.00 200.00 250.00 300.00 250.00 200.00 250.00 200.00	0.55 0.77 1.10 1.35 1.58 1.75 2.40 2.60 3.70 4.60 5.35 6.00 8.70 10.80 12.50 14.00 15.60 17.00 18.20 19.20 20.50 29.50 37.00 48.50 53.00 58.00 62.00
408.0 454.0	30.1 30.4	450.00 500.00	66.00 67.00

iv. For process weight rates of less than 100 pounds per hour, the allowable rate is 0.5 pounds per hour [35 IAC 266.110].

- b. Existing Process Emission Units for Which Construction or Modification Prior to April 14, 1972 [35 IAC 212.322].
 - i. No person shall cause or allow the emission of particulate matter into the atmosphere in any one hour period from any process emission unit for which construction or modification commenced prior to April 14, 1972, which, either alone or in combination with the emission of particulate matter from all other similar process emission units at a source or premises, exceeds the allowable emission rates specified in subsection (c) of 35 IAC 212.322 [35 IAC 212.322(a)].
 - ii. Interpolated and extrapolated values of the data in subsection (c) of 35 IAC 212.321 shall be determined by using the equation [35 IAC 212.322(b)]:

$$E = C + A(P)^B$$

where:

P = Process weight rate; and E = Allowable emission rate; and,

A. Up to process weight rates up to 27.2 Mg/hr (30 T/hr):

	<u>Metric</u>	English
P	Mg/hr	T/hr
E	kg/hr	lb/hr
A	1.985	4.10
В	0.67	0.67
C	0	0

B. For process weight rate in excess of 27.2 Mg/hr (30 T/hr):

	Metric	English
P	Mg/hr	T/hr
E	kg/hr	lb/hr
A	25.21	55.0
В	0.11	0.11
С	- 18.4	- 40.0

iii. Limits for Process Emission Units For Which Construction or Modification Commenced Prior to April 14, 1972 [35 IAC 212.322(c)]:

Metric P Mg/hr	E kg/hr	English P <u>T/hr</u>	E <u>1b/hr</u>
0.05 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.8 2.7 3.6 4.5 9.0 13.0 18.0 23.0 27.2 32.0 36.0 41.0 45.0 90.0 140.0 180.0 230.0 270.0 360.0 400.0	0.27 0.42 0.68 0.89 1.07 1.25 1.56 1.85 2.9 3.9 4.7 5.4 8.7 11.1 13.8 16.2 18.15 18.8 19.3 19.8 20.2 23.2 25.3 26.5 27.7 28.5 29.4 30.0 30.6	0.05 0.10 0.2 0.30 0.40 0.50 0.75 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00 10.00 15.00 20.00 25.00 30.00 40.00 45.00 50.00 150.00 100.00 150.00 100.00 150.00 100.00 150.00 100.00	0.55 0.87 1.40 1.83 2.22 2.58 3.38 4.10 6.52 8.56 10.40 12.00 19.20 25.20 30.50 35.40 40.00 41.30 42.50 43.60 44.60 51.20 55.40 58.60 61.00 63.10 64.90 66.20 67.70
454.0	31.3	500.00	69.00

iv. For process weight rates of less than 100 pounds per hour, the allowable rate is 0.5 pounds per hour [35 IAC 266.110].

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

Attachment 3 Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan

There are no specific emission units that require a CAM plan as identified in the Monitoring Requirements of Subsection 8 for each Section 7, Unit Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units.

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

Attachment 4 Guidance

The Illinois has prepared guidance for sources on the Clean Air Act Permit Program (CAAPP) that is available on the Internet site maintained by the Illinois EPA, www.epa.state.il.us. This guidance includes instructions on applying for a revision or renewal of the CAAPP permit.

Guidance On Revising A CAAPP Permit:

www.epa.state.il.us/air/caapp/caapp-revising.pdf

Guidance On Renewing A CAAPP Permit:

www.epa.state.il.us/air/caapp/caapp-renewing.pdf

The application forms prepared by the Illinois EPA for the CAAPP are also available from the Illinois EPA's Internet site:

www.epa.state.il.us/air/caapp/index.html

These CAAPP application forms should also be used by a CAAPP source when it applies for a construction permit. For this purpose, the appropriate CAAPP application forms and other supporting information, should be accompanied by a completed Application For A Construction Permit form (199-CAAPP) and Fee Determination for Construction Permit Application form (197-FEE):

www.epa.state.il.us/air/caapp/199-caapp.pdf www.epa.state.il.us/air/permits/197-fee.pdf

Attachment 5 Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) Permit

217-782-2113

CAIR PERMIT

Ameren UE Raccoon Creek Power Plant

Attn: Michael Menne, Designated Representative

1901 Chauteau Avenue Post Office Box 66149

St. Louis, Missouri 63166-6149

<u>Oris No.:</u> 55417 <u>IEPA I.D. No.:</u> 025803AAD

Source/Unit: Ameren UE Raccoon Creek Power Plant, CT01-CT04

Date Received: December 24, 2007
Date Issued: March 20, 2009
Expiration Date: March 20, 2014

STATEMENT OF BASIS:

In accordance with the Clean Air Act Interstate Rule (CAIR) $\rm SO_2$ Trading Program, the CAIR $\rm NO_x$ Annual Trading Program and the CAIR $\rm NO_x$ Ozone Season Trading Program, and 35 IAC Part 225, Subparts C, D, and E, respectively, the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency is issuing this CAIR permit to Ameren UE for the affected units at its Raccoon Creek power plant i.e., CT01-CT04

ALLOCATION OF SULFUR DIOXIDE (SO_2) ALLOWANCES, NITROGEN OXIDE (NO_x) ALLOWANCES, AND NO_x OZONE SEASON ALLOWANCES FOR THE AFFECTED UNITS:

Program	Allocation of Allowances
CAIR SO ₂	These units are not entitled to an allocation of CAIR SO ₂
Allowances	allowances pursuant to 40 CFR Part 96.
CAIR NO _x Annual	These units are eligible to an allocation of CAIR NOx Annual
Allowances	Allowances pursuant to 35 IAC 225.430, 225.435 and 225.440.
CAIR NO _x Ozone	These units are eligible to an allocation of CAIR NOx Ozone
Season	Season Allowances pursuant to 35 IAC 225.530, 225.535 and
Allowances	225.540.

PERMIT APPLICATION: The permit application, which includes CAIR SO_2 Trading Program requirements, CAIR NO_x Annual Trading Program requirements, CAIR NO_x Ozone Season Trading Program requirements, and other standard requirements, is attached and incorporated as part of this permit. The owners and operators, and designated representative of this source must comply with the standard requirements and special provisions set forth in the application.

COMMENTS, NOTES AND JUSTIFICATIONS: This permit contains provisions related to SO_2 emissions and NO_x emissions and requires the owners and operators to hold CAIR SO_2 allowances to account for SO_2 emissions, CAIR NO_x annual allowances to account for annual NO_x emissions, and CAIR NO_x ozone season allowances to account for ozone season NO_x emissions from the CAIR units. An allowance is a limited authorization to emit SO_2 or NO_x emissions during or

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

after a specified control period. The transfer of allowances to and from the applicable compliance or general account does not necessitate a revision to this permit.

As related to seasonal emissions of NO_x , CAIR NO_x Ozone Season Trading Program supersedes the NO_x Trading Budget, beginning on the effective date of this permit. Accordingly, effective January 1, 2009, the provisions of this permit effectively supersede Section 6.1 of the CAAPP permit, which relate to compliance with NO_x Trading Program for Electric Generating Units (EGU).

This CAIR permit does not affect the source's responsibility to meet all other applicable local, state and federal requirements.

If you have any questions regarding this permit, please contact Kaushal Desai at 217-782-2113.

Edwin C.	Bakowski, P.E.	Date Issued:	
Manager,	Permit Section		
Division	of Air Pollution Control		

ECB:KKD:

cc: Beth Valenziano, USEPA Region V FOS - Region 3, Illinois EPA



ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY DIVISION OF AIR POLLUTION CONTROL -- PERMIT SECTION P.O. BOX 19506 SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62794-9506

FOR APPLICANT'S USE				
Revision #.				
Date:i	j			
Page	Of .	-		

					FOF	RAGENCY USE ONLY	
Application For CAIR Permit For		ID NUMBER:					
		PERM	IT Vo.		-		
Electrical	Generating L	Inits (EGU)	DATE:		1	********
4				uerni! reu	used by the	CAIR SO; trading program CAIR NO	X SAJA.
trasting progress. DAIR NO	nilind ikilipen rosses euozo k	nin for EGU o	ibject to the grad	dance of	35 AC Pant	225. Supper C. D. and Constructions	
	SECTION	t: SOURC	E AND EGU I	NFORM	ATION	STATE	
	Jnion Electric Compa	ny d <i>ibi</i> a A	merenUE				r. 1
21 PLANT OR FACILITY	NAME: Raccoon Cre	ek Power	Plant			DEC	64
3) SOURCE ID NO., 02	25803AAD	4) ORIS F	ACILITY CODI	5541	17	Emilionimonial P	rcia
5) CONTACT NAME: Ken Anderson		6) PHONE 314-5	NO.: 54-2089	, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		L ADDRESS: erson@ameren.com	· ta
	W 12	Q (-7 D)			1,0.100		
8) ELECTRICAL GENER	RATING UNITS:						
GENERATING UNIT / EGU DESIGNATION	EGU DESCRIPT	ION				(CARILITY oplicable boxes)	
Unit CT-0*	; Simple cycle rateral gas		Existing			SO, trading program	
5m 51-0	combustion luthing	•	Now EG		Andrews of the Control of the Contro	NOx annual trading program	
****			, ,		CAIR	NOx ozone season trading progra	HT1
Urli CT-DZ	Simple cycle natural gas	i	Existing		-	SQ, trading program	
	combustion turbing		New EG	U	=	NOx annual trading pregram	
	- Transport of the second seco	***************************************	* P		****	NOs ozono season trading progra	in.
Unit CT-D3	Simple cycle natural gas		Existing			50, tracking program	
	combustion luthles		Now EG	U		NOx annual trading program NOx ozone season trading progra	
II-h AT 54	Pienete and an of the	***	Existing	ECHI ***	A CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF TH	SO; trading propratt	ir.
Unit CT-04	Simple cycle natural gas combustion turbing	•	New EC			NOv annual trading program	
				•		NOx azana season trading progra	am:
			Existing	EGU .	Water Committee of the	SO, trading program	
			New FG	U	CAIR	NOs annual tracking program	
	.]				CAIR!	NOx ozone season tracking progra	m
			Eusting	EGU	CAR	SO ₂ trading program	
	•		New EG	น		MOx assual trocking program	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	<u></u>	,				NOx azona saason trading progra	TO.
			Fxisting			SO, trading program	
			Now EG	u	-	NOx annual trading program	
-				-		NOx 6400e season trading progra	m
	1		Existing New EG			SC; trading program NOx annual trading program	
			NEW EG	U		NOx ozone season trading program	m
	or read.		Existing	FGU	A CONTRACTOR OF THE PERSONS ASSESSMENT	SO, tracing program	
			: Now EG			NOx annual trading program	
						NOx ozone spason trading progra	m
decretor Fabreholde	zeciła negu m, amilyna maal d Aud (Ach) 416 ILCS 959 5 T uso tro information may result ann oceroved by the Forma Ma	akçan rany si i	utor being deni	Con or the ed Using e ed Ancior	u tours outed 'car is the section was statistic tour	innite Section 30.5 of the morning and application number 31 your provided for in the Act, 415 ILCS	7
	APPL	ICATION	N PAGE			- TILLY SIGNAL OF GOR	
							. 1

Page 1 of 8

Printed on Recycled Paper 670-CAAPP

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

9) DETERMINATION OF SO, EMISSIONS		
	sed with a "Part 75 Approved" continuous or is	ssions monitoring system (CEMS) for SO
(a) EGUs for which SO ₂ CEMS installed t	out not certified	
1,	. 4	7.
2.	5	8,
J	6	9
(b)) EGUs for which SO2 CEMS yet to be	installed:	
		_
1	4	7
2	5	В,
3	fi	9
(c)) EGUs for which SO, emissions to be	determined by the alternative protocol for po-	kor units:
1, CT-01 (40 CFR 75 Appendix D)	a, CT-04 (40 CFR 75 Appendix D)	7
2 CT-02 (40 CFR /5 Appendix D)	5	S
3 CT-03 (40 CFR 75 Appendix D)	1	
3	E. A HAMMAN AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND A	9
10) DETERMINATION OF NO _X EMISSIONS	5	Mark Charles and Mark Late
List each EGU that is not currently equipp	ed with a "Part 75 Approved" continuous emis	ssions monitoring system (CEMS) for NO.
(a) EGUs for which NO _x CEMS installed	out not certified:	
1.	4	7.
2	5 .	B
3(b) EGUs for which NO ₃ CEMS yet to be	6 L V Service Control of the Control	9.
(B) EGOS (C) WRITEN NOT CEMS WEI (8 05)	ASSARCE.	
1,	4	7,
2:	5	5
3. Mariane Mar	6	9.
(c) EGUs for which NO _x emissions to be	determined by the alternative protocol for peak	er units:
# CT-94 (40 CER 75 Appendix E)	CT 04 (40 CED 75 Approving E)	
1. CT-9' (40 CFR 75 Appendix E)	4, CT-04 (40 CFR 75 Appendix E)	7,
2. CT-07 (40 CFR 75 Appendix E)	ő	å
3, CT-03 (40 CFR 75 Appendix E)	6.	9
11) CERTIFICATION:	and the second s	
(a) Has a complete Certificate of Represo a copy provided to the Biness EPA?	entation for the designated representatives for Yes No	the source been submitted to USEPA, with
	ion on behalf of the owners and operators of the	
	that I have personally examined, and emfant altochments. Based on my inquiry of those in	
	the statements and information are to the bes	
	hat there are significant penalties for submitting	
manning reduired aradinavis and tho	mation, including the possibility of line or impr	ISCATT POPE
NAME (Designated Representative): Mich	ael L. Menne (Alternate Designated	Representative)
Ville - Mar		1 1 .
SIGNATURE (Designated Representative):	DATE: 12	119/67
		FOR APPLICANT'S USE
A	PPLICATION PAGE	
	Printed on Recycled Paper	The state of the s
	670-CAAPP	Page 2 of 8

5-4

Beciton II. Cam eq; tracing program Compliance regimenants as set porthin 35 iac 225 210

10) APPLICABLE PAGLA ATKARE

The regardeness of the last 200, Subport C and 40 CFR SE, estiport AAA readings 40 CFR SE 25%, and 66 206). Subport 1992, subport FFF, Subport COO and subport refer to recomposited by referencess 35 PCC 255 140

IN CAR PERMIT PECKER INVENTE

- The there is agention of restriction with one or more CARTSO, with all the source extending 36 ANC Part 225. Suggest Ground supply for a point induced by the Agency with induced proteomic conditions covering the CARTSO: Tracking Program ("CART pointer) that complete with the requirements of 30 InC 220 320.
- The period of opening of each CARL SIC, extrem that CARL SIC, and at the secure subsect to 56 MC Part 225, Subsect Contact opening the CARL SIC, and it completes with such CARL parties.

ICO MONITORING REQUIREMENTS.

- The memory or reporting and reconstructing superior and each CAIR SQ, until at the expute must comply with the reconstructing reporting and reconstructing sequentation of 40 CFR SQ, superior CAIR SQ, until at the CAIR SQ, source must comply with those sequent of the memory. Incoming and inc
- State of California of Seminary American April (Seminary Respondence of Seminary In 22 Mg 252-3104) marks State of Seminary California American April (Seminary Respondence of Seminary In 22 Mg 252-3104) marks Seminary California (Seminary California American April (Seminary Respondence of Seminary In 22 Mg 252-3104) marks

of MEDICAL DIRECTOR SERVICE

- By the absolutes branche desirate, making distribute 1, 2011, and by minight of March 1 of each subsequent year is March 1 a substitute stay. He contains the operative minimum CART SD, source and each CART SD, and if the source making is a substitute of the source making is a substitute of the source of the s
- Easte con of present webstance of SCs, pointed by a CARR SCs, across for over gay of corner period, warning in 2010 and present a scholars of MitAC Part SCS. Subject C. the Caser As Act, and the Act.
- in the first (A), and will be adject to the proportion of 15 MC 310 110 (A) for the course period stating on the win or descript (1) (A) is a few countries for many the case to contain period of the countries of the countries of the case of the c
- 4) CARR SEL SECURIOR PROCESS FOR INCIDENCE TO SECURIOR SECURIOR OF AN ADMINISTRATION CONTINUES IN PROCESSOR SECURIOR SECURIOR
- to the second to a supply with the respectations of the Table Tabl
- 6) A CARRISC, electron is implied understated to some SO, in accordance with the CARRISC, Tracing Program No provident for CARRISC. Tracing Program, the CARRISC point approximation of the CARRISC internal control of the CARRISC point.
 6) The CARRISC point of the CARRISC program is a first of the control of the CARRISC point.
 6) The CARRISC point of the CARRISC program is a first point.
- A DAIN SO, also with shap and product the approach of a
- ii) Upon reprodution by USEPA paramenta 40 CFR, 66, sectors FFF or sectors CGC, every discorder, in rectar, or considerate in a CFR SC, allowants to be brong CFR SC, sectors completely account in account in account of the account of the considerate of the confiderate and because of particles of the confiderate and the confiderate of the confiderate and the confiderate of the confiderate

APPLICATION PAGE 3
Printed on Thoryclad Pagest

Partyclad Repair OCAAPP Page 3 of S Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009

ACCADESTRUMBERS NEW CLASSIMINES

- To the common control the series of common of the CAPT SC, entered and extracting SC, unit at this course are a common of the co
 - As The confidence of magnetic section for the characteristic representation for the extreme and each CAIR CO-cord at the court of the accordance for the confidence of the con
 - the Attendance presents extended the school page 41 course of union Profi
 - C) Copies of all receives, possible or entitioners, and cheek submissions and all receives made of exquire) purposes the CA-M SCO, Total of President or documents of excessing to the received mode of sixty and the programment of the President Adapted C
 - Copies of the decreasing complete a CAPA pumps and address one only other approximate of discurrent amount decreasing complete approximate to the CAPA SQ, Trading Program.
- The CAR designated representative of a CAR SO, source and each CAR SO, and at the source must eabnif to the Agency and DECEA the regions and complete to conditioning mapless personal to the CAP SO, Trading Propriate installing from a marketic ACCASS, a larger 1941.

the state of

- The residence of a comme for a CAME SC continue contain any registron of the implicational of 35 IAC Part 225, Subsect Car the recommend of the CAME SC Trackets Program.
- Si San Car St. Concercion Car St. internal manufacture residences of the CAR St. Tailing Propriet
- Any processor of the CARS SCs. Teachy, Projects the Lapsiles is a CARY SCS actives the district any plus lie of a carrier of a CARY SCS, source; will also apply to the decise and operator of scs. SCS, source; will also apply to the decise and operator of scs. SCS, source and source and scs. SCS, source and scs.
- And procured the CAM SEL. Leading Programs that applies he a CAM SEL, and procuring programs in a special to be the CAM SEL and programs of a CAM SEL and was easily to the owner and operator of the CAM SEL and was easily to the owner and operator of the CAM SEL and was easily to the owner and operator of the CAM SEL and was easily to the owner and operator of the CAM SEL and was easily to the owner and operator of the CAM SEL and was easily to the owner and operator of the CAM SEL and SEL
- 26 Proc.243 designation representation of a CAIR Bits, and had two except SQs extractions in any circled points from expension the allowances as required for deduction purposes to 40 CFR 60.254(db)].
- 5) The curve or regerator of a CRIM SQ; and that thus ducess SCS, encouragement any control period result pay any line separate or security with any other namedy imposed persuant to the Aut and CCFR No. 254(4)(2).

IN THE CHOINER APPOINTES

THE PROPERTY OF THE LOCAL SOL, TREATH PROPERTY A CARR PROPERTY AND SOLVER PROPERTY OF A CARRIED AND ANALYSIS OF THE PROPERTY OF A CARRIED AND ANALYSIS OF A CARRIED ANALYSIS

APPLICATION PAGE

Punisd on Recycled Paper 070-CAAPP FOR APPLICANT'S USE

இந்தும் **கின**்றி

Section 3: Cam ho, annimi tradrip program Compliance requirements as art funts in 15 mc 226 410

(#) APPLICABLE REGULATIONS

The requirements of DaTAC Part 235, Submit O and 40 CFR 86, subget AA (necked of 40 CFR 56 104, 98, 105(bit)2), and 96 100), subport 63, subport FF, subset 60 and public to the as incorparable by reference to the 225, 140.

(b) CAIR FEMANT RECLINEMENTS

- The congruent expressions of estimatories with this or many CARL NO., unto write source subject to 35 WO First 225, Suspend O must apply for a printing with by the Agency with tederally enterceable considers contains the CARL NO. Account Tracing Program (CARL permit) and complete with the requirements of 25 Mai 225 Mais.
- The current or operator of mass CEAS MID, response and mass CEAS MID, usin at the source must represent the CEAS MID, usin the complete response of the CEAS MID.

C. P. B. BRANCESCOPENCES.

- The person or operator of south CER (NO., where and south NO., and at the south country with the monthing, recoming and actual angular recomment of 40 CER (NO., and at the CE
- 2) The complement of much CAC bits covers will the massess including purpose to 30 MC 2024 TOM will be demonstrated by the emissions measurable machinal and appointed on accompance with 40 CFR 95. Subpost 444.

(d) PMISSON REQUIRERGEDS:

- Hy the relocation transfer desertion, midnight of layers 1, 2010, and by managet of statich 1 of each subsequent year if March 1 is a business day, the corner or operator of each CARNO, space and each CARNO, and at the each subsequent part that CARNO, it is not a true acceptance describes pursued to 40 CFR 90 154(a) in the CARNO, source's CARNOC, compliance absolute Midwith 1 is not a business day, the acceptance boarder describe might make the following of the carnocal acceptance of the contracts of all also were a held on the afformace transfer described may not be seen for the contracts for the dominal parisot from all CARNO, only of the source, as determined in accordance with 40 CFR 10, autopaint for
- 2) Executor of excess emissions of a CAAR NOs, assume for each gay to a consol period, starting in 2000 will contain a supported valuation of SETAC FOR TAIL SUBJECT 1998 ACC AND THE ACC PART OF THE ACC P
- 3) Each CAR NO. unit will be subject to the requirement 15 (AC 215 Artifact) to for the control period starting on the page of the control of the control
- 4) CHEFFE, allowers to making height chally high born, or beautyped in por among allowance accounts to accordance with 25 MG Fort 256, Subject C. and 42 CFRSS, success FF and 505
- So copic to compared? The requirements of 20 MG FEE 1 REQUES is CAP MG. Provided may not be decided for complaints according to 25 MG 203 4 March for a control project in a year before the coloridar year for which the affordation is althought.
- B) A CRIR MA. Momento is a correct authorizing in marken who will in a consistence with the CAR NO. The Program Propriess of the CAR NO. Taking Program the CAR NO. principles and CAR provide a supplementation and CAR provide a supplementation of the CAR provide and the ATTER No. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. The ATTER NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the CAR NO. 15th and the provides of the sufficient of the s
- 7) A CAS MI, allowers frequent to take a process right
- By Light thousands (SERA pursuant to 40 CPR \$8 and part (F) or extend GC, every effection that the deduction of a CAR ND, assistant to be from a CAR ND, as such a compliance account is decreased to briefly automatedly, and become a past of any CAR NO, people of the CAR NO, count. This automate amendment for CAR NO, count. This automate amendment for CAR NO, count. This automate amendment for CAR NO.

APPLICATION PAGE 5 FOR APPLICANT'S USE

Plantal on Paradas Paper 615 CAUPE

Page 5 46 H

EN RECOMMERSANCAND REPORT HER WINES

- We derive wherever storified the question of specialty of the CARE MO, source and each CARE MO, unit at the source must letter on the stress each of me discounts forced in subsections (e.g.) (A) through (c.g.) of the Mod CARE AND for a place of the years from the date the discounter to consider the place of the years from the date the discounter to consider the place of the place of the years for many by the date of the place o
 - As The confliction of organization for the CART designated representative for the source and each CART NO, this is the touries in the confliction and designated rounded the second of representation, provided that the second of the designation must be estimated to the state second or the designation per period and the presentation of the subsection of a new confliction of organization persons and CERT Second organization persons and CERT Second organization persons and CERT Second organization organization.
 - En Atlantica adiopolismon induces a and CFR & separity
 - C) Copies of all reports, completing confections, and other submissions and of records made or required pursuants the CAR NO. Amount Trading Program or becoments reconsing to demonstrate completion with the trading Program in whiches reconsing of 15 IAC Part 125. Responsible CAR NO. Amount Trading Program in whiches reconsing of 15 IAC Part 125. Responsible CAR.
 - Of Copys of the description of the opposite and the part opposite and any other sections or descriptions and the description of the contract of the COP NO. Asked Tracking Property.
 - for the districtive by the post of control and installed action of the CESAS.
- The DAM charge was represented at a DAM HD. According to death DAM NO. And at the secure was according to the Application of the County was a secure of the County and the County was a secure of the County according to the

C ENCERTO

- 1) The manuse of a plant for a Cash MD, and pay excuse any viction of the requirements of 15 MO Pain 225.
 SUBJECT District Control of the Child No. Among Trading Program.
- THE CHARGE SECTION OF SECTION AND SECTION SECTION OF SECTION AND ASSOCIATION OF THE CASE SECTION OF SECTION SE
- 3) Any processor of the CASE Mrt. Annual Tracking Program and against to a CASE Mrt. House frequency any processor appropriate for the State of CASE of the Annual Association of the CASE of the Annual Association of the CASE Mrt. Asso
- Any transfer of the CAR Mill. Armed Tracking Program that approach a CAR Mill, and Anderson any transfer applicable to the CAR designates representative of a CAR Mill, and will see a sign to the count and operator of the CAR Mill, with.
- 3) The CAR desprise representative of a CAR NO. and the first excess NO, existing in any contribution of community from Particles of Reputation for Occurring particular in 42 CFR No. (1992).
- The same or resource of a CASE INC, and they have expens INCL, understook in any expensive must pay any first, transfer or interest or committee or entire remarks improved pursuant to the Act and 40 CFR 95 (1545) (2).

OF CONTRACT ON CONTRACT ALM SOCIETY

His provision of the CEM NELL Action Fracing Program, a CAR parted application. a CAR parted or a retired with addressed in particular to the CEM NELL Action of the control of the second of the central particular and the central particular of the CAR NELL Action of the central particular of the central particular of the central particular or point of the central particular of the central particular or point of the central particular or point of the central particular particular or point of the central particular particular

APPLICATION PAGE 5

Printed on Resycles Paper 610-CRAPP FOR APPLICANT'S USE

Papa o de

BECTON I: CHA NO, CYONE SEASON MADIN PROBLEM CONFLUNCE REQUIREMENTS AS LET FORTH M MILE SEASON

OF APPLICABLE REPLANCING

The management of 20 MC Port 22 Column Land MCCP 956 Subject ANAL (and along 40 GFR 95 104, FE 20 MCC) and a subject to the second column of the second colu

AN CARPONITHEOUREMENTS

- Reference and representation of various constraints are at exercise to the Constraints and the second of the constraints and the constraints are at the constraints and the constraints are constraints and the constraints are constraints. Constraints are constraints are constraints are constraints are constraints.
- 4) Instrument operation of each CASE I/O. Cooks Beauto courts and each CASE III. Cooks States and at the proper state of the CASE Instruments and in complete with CASE person.

(c. MONTOPING ASSUMPTION (S.

- The owner or interview of each CART No., Copper Section about a not each CART MS. Copper Section and a feet exacts shall be received the measuring amount of the received programmer of 40 GFR Sc. Scales (1994). At GFR 36 and 35 IAC ST 500 The CART deep place received and according to the CART MS. Copper Section and at the health of the CART MS. Copper Section and at the health of the CART MS. Copper Section and at the health of the CART MS. Copper and received and received and according to the copper and received and according to the copper and received and according to the CART MS. Copper and according to the CART MS. Copper and according to the copper and according to the CART MS. Copper and according to the CART MS. Copper and according to the copper and according to the CART MS. Copper and according to the copper according to the copper
- 2) The complete of metric (APP M). General Section servers with the CAPC M), Output Section reported in product of product of the product

IDI EMBAKAN SECURE MESTI

- 1) By the observed Hamsler death is, introduce of historic bor 10, 2000, and by manager of historican 20 of each authority of the historic borders day, the create or appears is work CAR N.C. Corner Season standard and could call N.C. Corner Season standard distribute presents at the CAR N.C. Corner Season standard distribute presents for companion distribute presents to 40 CFH MI 15 May in the CAR N.C. Corner Season season to complete account if Names for 11 is not a transmission day. The absorber transfer deathers report by ministry of the first space day that all the total a transmission of all controls between the manufacture and the controls of the first space day from all CAR N.C. Corner Season space, as determined in accordance with 40 CAR n. subscient MI 14.
- 2) Each lon of enems enteriors of a CAIR NO. Octors Season source for each day has contain period, starting in 2000 will constitute a separate visition of 25 MC Part 225. Subpart E. Secolar, and the CAA.
- 3) Each CAPI, KC: Crarks Select politics to the requirements (SEAD 225.010;6H) for the control central select to the tracking on the later of May 1. 20(8) or the people for meeting the unit, representing certification requirements parameter to 40 CFM (6.3703644). (URB) or (b)(0) and by each control period traverties.
- 4) CARRACO, Optino Season allowances must be finite in, deputies from or transferred into or among allowance excelesis in assemblers with 36 IAC Part 250, Budgler E, and 40 CFR 60, subparts FFFF and 62200.
- iii instrum to comply with the Constraints of St. VAC 225 310 (831), a CARK NC., Occurs Select respects they use the deduction for complete examing to 35 (4C 275.540) (b) 1) for a contect period in a calendar year before the last for which the CARK NA. Occurs Select assessments is affected.
- A SAME NO. Converted to the property of a simpled authorization to entire the ton of NO., in accordance with the CARC NO. Ozona Season Tracing Program. No provision of the CARC NO. Ozona Season Tracing Program. the CARC points application. The CARC points of a retired unit exemption pursuant to 40 CFR 68.30s, and no provision of the Linear Same at the CARC points of the Linear Same or the Same or the CARC points of the Linear Same or the Same or the CARC points of the Linear Same or the Sam
- ACUR HOL Control School alloward does not conclude a properly right.

	FOR APPLICANT'S USE
APPLICATION PAGE	
Contract to the second	San Company of the Co

Provided on Recycled Paper 6/6-CAAPP

Page 7 of 0

49 Linear recording to 2007— participal to 40 CFR (a), support FFF or CRUZ, many election becomes or instituted to 3 CAR ND, Others Season shapens to a figure a CAR ND, Others Season source complete account is described a firm and instituted a

43 HECCELECITES AND PROPERTING RECEPTIVENESS

- 1) Tribble of brinched brighting, the service or consumer of the CASE NC, Corner Sensor record and cash CASE NC, CORNE Sensor that is the present that present a service service to the consumer to the consum
 - As The confidence of experimentation for the CASS designated representation for the representation of the SAS ALL.

 Commission and of the SAS IN.

 All representations, parameters of the confidence in the same of the same o
 - HI Alexandre recently riversion resources at about 92 access with
 - Citylins of 41 means, are phonon configuration, and other entires sing, and at exceeds made or explained pursuant to the CAPI Will, Course Senson Training Program or document removary to democratical of the CaPI Resident Programments of the CAPI Will, Course Senson Training Program or with the recommences of the CaPI Resident.
 - (ii) Copies of all discussives used to complete a SAM period application and may other extensions or discussive used in dependent appropriate program.
 - विकास तो सर्व स्थलतांत कार्य सिक्षुण केल पुरालक मोनार्व देवतां कृतिकृत्व कृत्ये स्थलकां कृत्य सुद्ध कहता करते कृत कर किल्या करते हैं।
- 2) The CAR designated representative of a CAR NO. Occurs Season season and extraCARTNO. Occurs Season unless the approximation of the Approximate DESPA the resonant and completes conficultors required pursuant to ing CARR NO. Owner Conson Trading Program, including those passent to 40 CPR 96, except Hertstand 35 IAC 235 RDD.

H LUMBLUY

- b) Note that is not a partial for a CSAR NO. Order Season unit less aucus any analyses of the requirements of as AC Part 226, Support For the requirements of the CAPC NO. Ozone Season Trading Peoples.
- 25 Each CAM NO. Close Season steems and each CAN NO. Once Season unit room mention mention and the EAST NO. Come Season Season Feetpure
- It dispersions if the CAS HO. Came Barren Tradeg Program that applies in ACARNO, Come Barren source [Bereich) and provided applicable to the CAS designated appropriate up of a CAS MO. Come Season source] will see the season and operator of each CAS MO. Come Season and operator of each CAS MO. Come Season up at the source of each CAS MO. Come Season up at the source
- 49 Aug provided the CAM N.C. George Conson Tupling Program that applies to a CAR NO. Ozone Season unit including any provided applicable to the CAM designated representative of a CAM NO. Ozone Season-unit) will also applic to the owner and preside at the CAM NO. Ozone Season unit.
- The CARS designated representative of a CAR RCy Opping Season and tighted expass emissions in any control became must surrounted the intersection of the property of the prope
- The managed specialist of a CAUR MA. Consum Receiver has necessared. NO., emissions in any operated particular state for size for speciality. Or institutional or comply with any other number supposed purposed in the Act and 40 CPM NO institution.

5- Crecton other authorities

his processor within CAFEAC. Orders Sussim Trading Progress, a CAIR parall application in CAIR parall, or a reproduced susception or excluding the owner and contract and, to the susception in the CAIR MAN COURT SUSSIMILATION OF A CAIR MAN COURT SUSCEPTION OF A CAIR MAN COURT SUS

APPLICATION PAGE ____

Printed on Nacyalas Paper KOS CAMP FOR APPLICANTS USE

Page Bull

Attachment 6 Acid Rain Permit

ACID RAIN PROGRAM PERMIT

217-782-2113

Ameren UE Raccoon Creek Power Plant

Attn: Michael Menne, Designated Representative

1901 Chauteau Avenue Post Office Box 66149

St. Louis, Missouri 63166-6149

<u>Oris No.:</u> 55417 IEPA I.D. No.: 025803AAD

Source/Unit: Ameren UE Raccoon Creek Power Plant, CT01-CT04

Date Received: October 16, 2007

Date Issued: March 20, 2009

Effective Date: January 1, 2010

Expiration Date: December 31, 2014

STATEMENT OF BASIS:

In accordance with Section 39.5(17) (b) of Illinois Environmental Protection Act and Titles IV and V of the Clean Air Act, the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency is issuing this Acid Rain Program permit to Ameren UE for Raccoon Creek Power Plant.

SULFUR DIOXIDE (SO2) ALLOCATIONS AND NITROGEN OXIDE (NOx) REQUIREMENTS FOR EACH AFFECTED UNIT:

CT01-CT04	SO ₂ Allowances	These units are not entitled to an allocation of SO_2 allowances pursuant to 40 CFR Part 73.
C101-C104	NO _x limit	These units are not subject to a NO_x emissions limitation pursuant to 40 CFR Part 76.

PERMIT APPLICATION: The permit application, which includes SO_2 allowance requirements and other standard requirements, is attached and incorporated as part of this permit. The owners and operators of this source must comply with the standard requirements and special provisions set forth in the application

COMMENTS, NOTES AND JUSTIFICATIONS: This permit contains provisions related to SO_2 emissions and requires the owners and operators to hold SO_2 allowances to account for SO_2 emissions from the affected units. An allowance is a limited authorization to emit up to one ton of SO_2 during or after a specified calendar year. Although this plant is not eligible for an allowance allocated by USEPA, the owners or operators may obtain SO_2 allowances to cover emissions from other sources under a marketable allowance program. The transfer of allowances to and from a unit account does not necessitate a revision to the unit SO_2 allocations denoted in this permit (See 40 CFR 72.84).

This permit contains provisions related to NO_x emissions and requires the owners and operators to monitor NO_x emissions from affected units in accordance with applicable provisions of 40 CFR Part 75. These units are not subject to a NO_x emission limitation because USEPA has not adopted such limitation for combined cycle turbines.

This Acid Rain Program permit does not authorize the construction and operation of the affected units as such matters are addressed by Titles I and V of the Clean Air Act. This permit also does not affect the source's responsibility to meet all other applicable local, state and federal requirements, including 35 IAC Part 225, Subparts C, D, and E.

If you have any questions regarding this permit, please contact Kaushal Desai at 217/782-2113.

Edwin C. Bakowski, P.E. Manager, Permit Section Division of Air Pollution Control

ECB:KKD:

cc: Beth Valenziano, USEPA Region V Illinois EPA Region 3

.0.	EDA

United States Environmental Protection Agency Acid Rain Program

This submission is: 🗹 New 🔲 Revised

OMB No. 2000-0258

Acid Rain Permit Application

For more information,	see instructions and rafer	to 40 GFR 72,30 and 72.31

STEP 1

Identify the source by plant name, State, and ORIS code.

14000000000		
Raccoon Creek Power Plant	11.	55417
Plant Name	State	ORIS Code

STEP 2

Enter the unit ID# for every affected unit at the affected source in collimn "a." For new units, enter the requested information in columns "e" and "d."

a	p	¢	d
Unit ID#	Unit Will Hold Allowartoss In Accordance with 40 CFR 72.9(c)(1)	New Units Commence Operation Date	Naw Units Monitor Certification Deadline
CT-01	Yes		
C'f-02	Yes		
CT-03	У ОВ		
CT-04	Yes		
	Yns		
	Yos		
	Yes		***************************************
	Yes		
	Yns		
	Yes		
	Yes		
	Yes		With Market 1
	Yqs		
- (A. 35. M	Yos	\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \	100.000
	Yos		
	Yes		
	Yes		
	Yes		

EPA Form 7610-16 (roy, 12-03)

Acid Rain - Page 2

Plant Name (from Step 1)

Raccoon Creek Power Plant

Permit Requirements

STEP 3

Read the standard requirements

- (1) The designated representative of each affected source and each affected unit at the source shall:
 - (i) Submit a complete Acid Rain permit application (including a compliance plan) under 40 CFR part 72 in accordance with the deadlines specified in 40 CFR 72.30; and
 - (ii) Submit in a timely manner any supplemental information that the permitting authority determines is necessary in order to review an Acid Rain permit application and issue or deny an Acid Rain permit;
- (2) The owners and operators of each affected source and each affected unit at the source shall:
 - (i) Operate the unit in compliance with a complete Acid Rain permit application or a superseding Acid Rain permit issued by the permitting authority; and
- (ii) Have an Acid Rain Permit.

Monitoring Requirements

- (1) The owners and operators and, to the extent applicable, designated representative of each affected source and each affected unit at the source shall comply with the monitoring requirements as provided in 40 CFR part 75.
- (2) The emissions measurements recorded and reported in accordance with 40 CFR part 75 shall be used to determine compliance by the unit with the Acid Rain emissions limitations and emissions reduction requirements for sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides under the Acid Rain Program.
- (3) The requirements of 40 CFR part 75 shall not affect the responsibility of the owners and operators to monitor emissions of other pollutants or other emissions characteristics at the unit under other applicable requirements of the Act and other provisions of the operating permit for the source.

Sulfur Dioxide Requirements

- (1) The owners and operators of each source and each affected unit at the source shall: (i) Hold allowances, as of the allowance transfer deadline, in the unit's compliance subaccount (after deductions under 40 CFR 73.34(c)), or in the compliance subaccount of another affected unit at the same source to the extent provided in 40 CFR 73.35(b)(3), not less than the total annual emissions of sulfur dioxide for the previous calendar year from the unit; and
- (ii) Comply with the applicable Acid Rain emissions limitations for sulfur dioxide. (2) Each ton of sulfur dioxide emitted in excess of the Acid Rain emissions limitations for sulfur dioxide shall constitute a separate violation of the Act.
- (3) An affected unit shall be subject to the requirements under paragraph (1) of the sulfur dioxide requirements as follows:
 - (i) Starting January 1, 2000, an affected unit under 40 CFR 72.6(a)(2); or
- (ii) Starting on the later of January 1, 2000 or the deadline for monitor certification under 40 CFR part 75, an affected unit under 40 CFR 72.6(a)(3).

 (4) Allowances shall be held in, deducted from, or transferred among Allowance Tracking
- System accounts in accordance with the Acid Rain Program.
- (5) An allowance shalf not be deducted in order to comply with the requirements under paragraph (1) of the sulfur dioxide requirements prior to the calendar year for which the allowance was allocated.
- (6) An allowance allocated by the Administrator under the Acid Rain Program is a limited authorization to emit sulfur dioxide in accordance with the Acid Rain Program. No provision of the Acid Rain Program, the Acid Rain permit application, the Acid Rain permit, or an exemption under 40 CFR 72.7 or 72.8 and no provision of law shall be construed to limit the authority of the United States to terminate or limit such authorization.
- (7) An allowance allocated by the Administrator under the Acid Rain Program does not constitute a property right.

EPA Form 7510-16 free, 12-031

Raccoon Creek Power Plant Plant Name (from Step 1)

Acid Rain - Page 3

STEP 3, Cont'd.

Nitragen Oxides Requirements The owners and operators of the source and each affected unit at the source shall comply with the applicable Acid Rain emissions limitation for nitrogen oxides.

Excess Emissions Requirements

- (1) The designated representative of an affected unit that has excess emissions in any calendar year shall submit a proposed offset plan, as required under 40 CFR part 77.
 (2) The owners and operators of an affected unit that has excess emissions in any
 - (i) Pay without demand the penalty required, and pay upon demand the interest on that penalty, as required by 40 CFR part 77; and (ii) Comply with the terms of an approved offset plan, as required by 40 CFR part 77.

Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements

- (1) Unless otherwise provided, the owners and operators of the source and each affected unit at the source shall keep on alte at the source each of the following documents for a period of 5 years from the date the document is created. This period may be extended for cause, at any time prior to the end of 5 years, in writing by the Administrator or permitting authority:
 - (i) The certificate of representation for the designated representative for the source and (i) The certainate of representation for the designated representative for the source and all documents that demonstrate the truth of the statements in the certificate of representation, in accordance with 40 CFR 72.24; provided that the certificate and documents shall be retained on site at the source heyond such 5-year period until such documents are superseded because of the submission of a new certificate of representation changing the designated representative;
 - (ii) All emissions monitoring information, In accordance with 40 CFR part 75, provided that to the extent that 40 CFR part 75 provides for a 3-year period for recordkeeping,
 - that to the extent that 40 CFR pair 75 provides for a 3-year period for teconicesping, the 3-year period shall apply.

 (iii) Copies of all reports, compliance certifications, and other submissions and aff records made or required under the Acid Rain Program; and,

 (iv) Copies of all documents used to complete an Acid Rain permit application and any
- other submission under the Acid Rain Program or to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the Acid Rain Program.

 (2) The designated representative of an affected source and each affected unit at the source shall submit the reports and compliance certifications required under the Acid Rain Program, including those under 40 CFR part 72 subpart I and 40 CFR part 75.

Liability

- (1) Any person who knowingly violates any requirement or prohibition of the Acid Rain Program, a complete Acid Rain permit application, an Acid Rain permit, or an exemption under 40 CFR 72.7 or 72.8, including any requirement for the payment of any penalty owed to the United States, shall be subject to enforcement pursuant to section 113(c) of
- (2) Any person who knowingly makes a talse, material statement in any record, submission, or report under the Acid Rain Program shall be subject to criminal enforcement pursuant to section 113(c) of the Act and 18 U.S.C. 1001.

 (3) No permit revision shall excuse any violation of the requirements of the Acid Rain
- Program that occurs prior to the date that the revision takes effect.
- (4) Each affected source and each affected unit shall meet the requirements of the Acid Rain Program.

EPA Form 7610-15 (em. 12-03)

Acid Rain - Page 4 Raceoon Creek Power Plant Plant Name (from Step 1)

Stop 3, Cont'd.

Liability, Cont'd.

(5) Any provision of the Acid Rain Program that applies to an affected source (including a provision applicable to the designated representative of an affected source) shall also apply to the owners and operators of such source and of the affected units at the source. (6) Any provision of the Acid Rain Program that applies to an affected unit (including a provision applicable to the designated representative of an affected unit) shall also apply to the owners and operators of such unit. Except as provided under 40 CFR 72.44 (Phase Il repowering extension plans) and 40 CFR 76.11 (NO, averaging plans), and except with regard to the requirements applicable to units with a common stack under 40 CFR part 75 (including 40 CFR 75.16, 75.17, and 75.18), the owners and operators and the designated representative of one affected unit shall not be liable for any violation by any other affected unit of which they are not owners or operators or the designated representative and that is located at a source of which they are not owners or operators or the designated representative.

(7) Each violation of a provision of 40 CFR parts 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, and 78 by an affected source or affected unit, or by an owner or operator or designated representative

of such source or unit, shall be a separate violation of the Act.

Effect on Other Authorities

No provision of the Acid Rain Program, an Acid Rain permit application, an Acid Rain permit, or an exemption under 40 CFR 72.7 or 72.8 shall be construed as:
(1) Except as expressly provided in title IV of the Act, exempting or excluding the owners

and operators and, to the extent applicable, the designated representative of an afforted source or affected unit from compliance with any other provision of the Act, including the provisions of title I of the Act relating to applicable National Ambient Air Quality Standards or State Implementation Plans:

(2) Limiting the number of allowances a unit can hold; provided, that the number of allowances held by the unit shall not affect the source's obligation to comply with any

other provisions of the Act;
(3) Requiring a change of any kind in any State law regulating electric utility rates and charges, affecting any State law regarding such State regulation, or limiting such State regulation, including any prudence review requirements under such State law:
(4) Modifying the Federal Power Act or affecting the authority of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission under the Federal Power Act; or,

(5) Interfering with or impairing any program for competitive bidding for power supply in a State in which such program is established.

Certification STEP 4

Read the certification statement, sign, and date

I am authorized to make this submission on behalf of the owners and operators of the affected source or affected units for which the submission is made. I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined, and am familiar with, the statements and information submitted in this document and all its attachments. Based on my inquiry of those individuals with primary responsibility for obtaining the information, I certify that the statements and information are to the best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false statements and information or omitting required statements and information, including the possibility of fine or imprisonment.

Daniel F. Cole	<u> </u>	
Signature Janil 7 Cl	Date	5/28/ox

EPA Forer 7610-16 (rev. 12-03)

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

EXHIBIT 2

REDLIEND VERSION OF THE PERMIT THROUGH SECTION 8

217/782-2113

RENEWAL CLEAN AIR ACT PERMIT PROGRAM (CAAPP) PERMIT

PERMITTEE:

Ameren UE Raccoon Creek Power Plant Attn: Michael Menne 1901 Chauteau Avenue Post Office Box 66149 St. Louis, Missouri 63166-6149

<u>I.D. No.</u>: 025803AAD <u>Date Received</u>: October 16, 2007 <u>Application No.</u>: 02100010 <u>Date Issued</u>: March 20, 2009 <u>Expiration Date</u>: March 20, 2014

Operation of: Raccoon Creek Power Plant

Source Location: 676 Cypress Drive, Flora, Clay County, Illinois, 62839 Responsible Official: Michael Menne, Vice President Environmental Services

This permit is hereby granted to the above-designated Permittee to OPERATE a electric power generation plant, pursuant to the above referenced permit application. This permit is subject to the conditions contained herein.

If you have any questions concerning this permit, please contact Kaushal Desai at 217/782-2113.

Edwin C. Bakowski, P.E. Manager, Permit Section Division of Air Pollution Control

ECB:KKD:psj

cc: Illinois EPA, FOS, Region 3

CES

Lotus Notes

Except as provided in Conditions 1.5 and 8.7 of this permit.

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

		TABLE OF CONTENTS	
			Page
1.0	INTRO	DDUCTION	4
	1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4	Operator Source Description	
2.0	LIST	OF ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS COMMONLY USED	6
3.0	CONDI	TIONS FOR INSIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES	7
	3.1 3.2 3.3	Identification of Insignificant Activities Compliance with Applicable Requirements Addition of Insignificant Activities	
4.0	SIGNI	FICANT EMISSION UNITS AT THIS SOURCE	9
5.0	OVERA	LL SOURCE CONDITIONS	10
	5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.6 5.7 5.8 5.9 5.10 5.11	Source-Wide Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios	
6.0	CONDI	TIONS FOR EMISSIONS CONTROL PROGRAMS	17
	6.1 6.2	Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) Program Acid Rain	
7.0	UNIT	SPECIFIC CONDITIONS FOR SPECIFIC EMISSION UNITS	22
	7.1 7.2	Turbines Fire Pump	
8.0	GENER	AL PERMIT CONDITIONS	57
	8.1	Permit Shield	
		2	

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

			<u>Page</u>
	8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.7	Applicability of Title IV Requirements Emissions Trading Programs Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios Testing Procedures Reporting Requirements Title I Conditions	
9.0	STAND	ARD PERMIT CONDITIONS	62
	9.1 9.2 9.3 9.4 9.5 9.6 9.7 9.8 9.9 9.10 9.11 9.12 9.13 9.14	Reopening and Reissuing Permit for Cause Severability Clause Permit Expiration and Renewal	
10.0	ATTAC	HMENTS	
	1 2 3 4 5 6	Example Certification by a Responsible Official Emissions of Particulate Matter from Process Emission Units Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan Guidance Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) Permit Acid Rain Permit	1-1 2-1 3-1 4-1 5-1 6-1
		3	

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Source Identification

Raccoon Creek Power Plant 676 Cypress Drive Flora, Illinois 62839 816/527-1354

I.D. No.: 025803AAD

County: Clay

Standard Industrial Classification: 4911, Electrical Power Production

1.2 Owner/Parent Company

Ameren UE 1901 Chouteau Avenue Post Office Box 66149 St. Louis, Missouri 63166-6149

1.3 Operator

Ameren UE 1901 Chouteau Avenue Post Office Box 66149 St. Louis, Missouri 63166-6149

Michael Menne, VP Environmental Services 314/544-4908

1.4 Source Description

Ameren UE Raccoon Creek Power Plant is located at 676 Cypress Drive, Flora. The source utilizes four natural gas fired turbines to generate electricity. In addition, the turbines control $\rm NO_x$ with a dry low $\rm NO_x$ combustion system.

Note: This narrative description is for informational purposes only and is not enforceable.

1.5 Title I Conditions

As generally identified below, this CAAPP permit contains certain conditions for emission units at this source that address the applicability of permitting programs for the construction and modification of sources, which programs were established pursuant to Title I of the Clean Air Act (CAA) and regulations thereunder. These programs include PSD and MSSCAM, and are implemented by the Illinois EPA pursuant to Sections 9, 9.1, 39(a) and 39.5(7)(a) of the Illinois Environmental Protection Act (Act). These conditions continue in effect, notwithstanding the expiration date specified on the first page of this permit, as their authority derives from Titles I and V of the CAA, as well as Titles II and X of the Act. (See also Condition 8.7.)

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

a. This permit contains Title I conditions that reflect Title I requirements established in permits previously issued for this source, which conditions are specifically designated as "T1".

2.0 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS COMMONLY USED

ACMA	Alternative Compliance Market Account		
Act	Illinois Environmental Protection Act [415 ILCS 5/1 et seq.]		
AP-42	Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission Factors, Volume 1,		
	Stationary Point and Other Sources (and Supplements A		
	through F), USEPA, Office of Air Quality Planning and		
	Standards, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711		
ATU	Allotment Trading Unit		
BACT	Best Available Control Technology		
BAT	Best Available Technology		
CAA	Clean Air Act [42 U.S.C. Section 7401 et seq.]		
CAAPP	Clean Air Act Permit Program		
CAM	Compliance Assurance Monitoring		
CEMS	Continuous Emission Monitoring System		
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations		
CO	Carbon Monoxide		
ERMS	Emissions Reduction Market System		
HAP	Hazardous Air Pollutant		
IAC	Illinois Administrative Code		
I.D. No.	Identification Number of Source, assigned by Illinois EPA		
ILCS	Illinois Compiled Statutes		
Illinois EPA	Illinois Environmental Protection Agency		
LAER	Lowest Achievable Emission Rate		
MACT	Maximum Achievable Control Technology		
MSSCAM	Major Stationary Sources Construction and Modification (35		
	IAC 203, New Source Review for non-attainment areas)		
NESHAP	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants		
NO_x	Nitrogen Oxides		
NSPS	New Source Performance Standards		
PM	Particulate Matter		
PM ₁₀	Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or		
	equal to a nominal 10 microns as measured by applicable test		
	or monitoring methods		
PM _{2.5}	Particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter less than or		
	equal to a nominal 2.5 microns as measured by applicable		
	test or monitoring methods		
PSD	Prevention of Significant Deterioration (40 CFR 52.21, New		
	Source Review for attainment areas)		
RMP	Risk Management Plan		
SO ₂	Sulfur Dioxide		
T1	Title I - identifies Title I conditions that have been		
	carried over from an existing permit		
T1N	Title I New - identifies Title I conditions that are being		
	established in this permit		
T1R	Title I Revised - identifies Title I conditions that have		
	been carried over from an existing permit and subsequently		
IICEDA	revised in this permit		
USEPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency		
VOM	Volatile Organic Material		

3.0 CONDITIONS FOR INSIGNIFICANT ACTIVITIES

3.1 Identification of Insignificant Activities

The following activities at the source constitute insignificant activities as specified in 35 IAC 201.210:

3.1.1 Activities determined by the Illinois EPA to be insignificant activities, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(1) and 201.211, as follows:

Natural Gas Heater <10 mmBtu/hr

3.1.2 Activities that are insignificant activities based upon maximum emissions, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(2) or (a)(3), as follows:

None

3.1.3 Activities that are insignificant activities based upon their type or character, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(a)(4) through (18), as follows:

Direct combustion units designed and used for comfort heating purposes and fuel combustion emission units as follows: (A)
Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 2.5 mmBtu/hr that fire only natural gas, propane, or liquefied petroleum gas;
(B) Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 1.0 mmBtu/hr that fire only oil or oil in combination with only natural gas, propane, or liquefied petroleum gas; and (C) Units with a rated heat input capacity of less than 200,000 Btu/hr which never burn refuse, or treated or chemically contaminated wood [35 TAC 201.210(a)(4)].

Storage tanks of organic liquids with a capacity of less than 10,000 gallons and an annual throughput of less than 100,000 gallons per year, provided the storage tank is not used for the storage of gasoline or any material listed as a HAP pursuant to Section 112(b) of the CAA [35 IAC 201 210(a)(10)].

Storage tanks of any size containing virgin or re-refined distillate oil, hydrocarbon condensate from natural gas pipeline or storage systems, lubricating oil, or residual fuel oils [35 IAC 201.210(a)(11)].

3.1.4 Activities that are considered insignificant activities pursuant to 35 IAC 201.210(b). Note: These activities are not required to be individually listed.

3.2 Compliance with Applicable Requirements

Insignificant activities are subject to applicable requirements notwithstanding status as insignificant activities. In particular, in addition to regulations of general applicability, such as 35 IAC

- 212.301 and 212.123 (Condition 5.3.2), the Permittee shall comply with the following requirements, as applicable:
- 3.2.1 For each particulate matter process emission unit, the Permittee shall comply with the applicable particulate matter emission limit of 35 IAC 212.321 or 212.322 (see Attachment 2) and 35 IAC Part 266. For example, the particulate matter emissions from a process emission unit shall not exceed 0.55 pounds per hour if the emission unit's process weight rate is 100 pounds per hour or less, pursuant to 35 IAC 266.110.
- 3.2.2 For each organic material emission unit that uses organic material, e.g., a mixer or printing line, the Permittee shall comply with the applicable VOM emission limit of 35 IAC 215.301, which requires that organic material emissions not exceed 8.0 pounds per hour or, if no odor nuisance exists, do not qualify as photochemically reactive material as defined in 35 IAC 211.4690.
- 3.2.3 For each open burning activity, the Permittee shall comply with 35 IAC Part 237, including the requirement to obtain a permit for open burning in accordance with 35 IAC 237.201, if necessary.

3.3 Addition of Insignificant Activities

- 3.3.1 The Permittee is not required to notify the Illinois EPA of additional insignificant activities present at the source of a type that is identified in Condition 3.1, until the renewal application for this permit is submitted, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.212(a).
- 3.3.2 The Permittee must notify the Illinois EPA of any proposed addition of a new insignificant activity of a type addressed by 35 IAC 201.210(a) and 201.211 other than those identified in Condition 3.1, pursuant to Section 39.5(12)(b) of the Act.
- 3.3.3 The Permittee is not required to notify the Illinois EPA of additional insignificant activities present at the source of a type identified in 35 IAC 201.210(b).

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

4.0 SIGNIFICANT EMISSION UNITS AT THIS SOURCE

Emission		Date	Emission Control
Unit	Description	Constructed	Equipment
CT01-04	Four 85 MW Natural Gas Fired	May 2001	Dry Low NO _x
	Turbines (1,082 mmBtu/hr)		Combustors
Engine Diesel-Firepump		2002	None
#1	Distillate: 208 Hp		

5.0 OVERALL SOURCE CONDITIONS

5.1 Applicability of Clean Air Act Permit Program (CAAPP)

- 5.1.1 This permit is issued based on the source requiring a CAAPP permit as a major source of NO_x and CO emissions.
- 5.1.2 This permit is issued based on the source requiring a CAAPP permit as an "affected source" for the purposes of Acid Deposition Control, Title IV of the Clean Air Act, pursuant to 40 CFR 70.3(a)(4).

5.2 Area Designation

This permit is issued based on the source being located in an area that, as of the date of permit issuance, is designated attainment or unclassifiable for the National Ambient Air Quality Standards for all criteria pollutants (CO, lead, NO₂, ozone, $PM_{2.5}$, PM_{10} , SO_2).

5.3 Source-Wide Applicable Provisions and Regulations

- 5.3.1 Specific emission units at this source are subject to particular regulations as set forth in Section 7 (Unit-Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units) of this permit.
- 5.3.2 In addition, emission units at this source are subject to the following regulations of general applicability:
 - a. No person shall cause or allow the emission of fugitive particulate matter from any process, including any material handling or storage activity, that is visible by an observer looking generally overhead at a point beyond the property line of the source unless the wind speed is greater than 40.2 kilometers per hour (25 miles per hour), pursuant to 35 IAC 212.301 and 212.314.
 - b. Pursuant to 35 IAC 212.123(a), no person shall cause or allow the emission of smoke or other particulate matter, with an opacity greater than 30 percent, into the atmosphere from any emission unit other than those emission units subject to the requirements of 35 IAC 212.122, except as allowed by 35 IAC 212.123(b) and 212.124.

5.3.3 Ozone Depleting Substances

The Permittee shall comply with the standards for recycling and emissions reduction of ozone depleting substances pursuant to 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart F, except as provided for motor vehicle air conditioners in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 82:

a. Persons opening appliances for maintenance, service, repair, or disposal must comply with the required practices pursuant to 40 CFR 82.156.

- b. Equipment used during the maintenance, service, repair, or disposal of appliances must comply with the standards for recycling and recovery equipment pursuant to 40 CFR 82.158.
- c. Persons performing maintenance, service, repair, or disposal of appliances must be certified by an approved technician certification program pursuant to 40 CFR 82.161.

5.3.4 Risk Management Plan (RMP)

Should this stationary source, as defined in 40 CFR 68.3, become subject to the federal regulations for Chemical Accident Prevention in 40 CFR Part 68, then the owner or operator shall submit the items below. This condition is imposed in this permit pursuant to 40 CFR 68.215(a)(2)(i) and (ii).

- a. A compliance schedule for meeting the requirements of 40 CFR Part 68 by the date provided in 40 CFR 68.10(a); or
- b. A certification statement that the source is in compliance with all requirements of 40 CFR Part 68, including the registration and submission of the RMP, as part of the annual compliance certification required by Condition 9.8.

5.3.5 Future Emission Standards

- a. Should this stationary source become subject to a new or revised regulation under 40 CFR Parts 60, 61, 62, or 63, or 35 TAC Subtitle B after the date issued of this permit, then the owner or operator shall, in accordance with the applicable regulation(s), comply with the applicable requirements by the date(s) specified and shall certify compliance with the applicable requirements of such regulation(s) as part of the annual compliance certification, as required by Condition 9.8. This permit may also have to be revised or reopened to address such new or revised regulations (see Condition 9.12.2).
- b. This permit and the terms and conditions herein do not affect the Permittee's past and/or continuing obligation with respect to statutory or regulatory requirements governing major source construction or modification under Title I of the CAA. Further, neither the issuance of this permit nor any of the terms or conditions of the permit shall alter or affect the liability of the Permittee for any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time of permit issuance.

5.3.6 Episode Action Plan

a. Pursuant to 35 TAC 244.141, 244.142, and 244.143, the Permittee shall maintain at the source and have on file with the Illinois EPA a written episode action plan (plan) for reducing the levels of emissions during yellow alerts,

red alerts, and emergencies, consistent with safe operating procedures. The plan shall contain the information specified in 35 IAC 244.144 and is incorporated by reference into this permit.

- b. The Permittee shall immediately implement the appropriate steps described in this plan should an air pollution alert or emergency be declared by the Director of the Illinois EPA or his or her designated representative.
- c. If an operational change occurs at the source which invalidates the plan, a revised plan shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA for review within 30 days of the change, pursuant to 35 IAC 244.143(d). Such plans shall be further revised if disapproved by the Illinois EPA.

5.4 Source-Wide Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern

Source-wide non-applicability of regulations of concern are not set for this source. However, there are terms for unit specific non-applicability of regulations of concern set forth in Section 7 of this permit.

5.5 Source-Wide Control Requirements and Work Practices

Source-wide control requirements and work practices are not set for this source. However, there are requirements for unit specific control requirements and work practices set forth in Section 7 of this permit.

5.6 Source-Wide Production and Emission Limitations

5.6.1 Permitted Emissions for Fees

The annual emissions from the source, not considering insignificant activities as addressed by Section 3.0 of this permit, shall not exceed the following limitations. The overall source emissions shall be determined by adding emissions from all emission units. Compliance with these limits shall be determined on a calendar year basis. These limitations (Condition 5.6.1) are set for the purpose of establishing fees and are not federally enforceable (see Section 39.5(18) of the Act).

Permitted Emissions of Regulated Pollutants

Pollutant	Tons/Year
Volatile Organic Material (VOM)	49.1
Sulfur Dioxide (SO ₂)	10.1
Particulate Matter (PM)	49.1
Nitrogen Oxides (NO _x)	245.0
HAP, not included in VOM or PM	4.0
Total	357.3

5.6.2 Emissions of Hazardous Air Pollutants

Pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(a) of the Act, the emissions of HAPs from the source shall be less than 10 tons/year for each individual HAP and 25 tons/year for all HAPs combined. Compliance with annual limits shall be determined on a monthly basis from the sum of the data for the current month plus the preceding 11 months (running 12 month total). This condition is being imposed so that the source is not a major source of HAP emissions. The Permittee shall fulfill the applicable testing, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements of Conditions 5.7.2, 5.9.2, and 5.10.2.

5.6.3 Other Source-Wide Production and Emission Limitations

Other source-wide emission limitations are not set for this source pursuant to the federal rules for PSD, state rules for MSSCAM, or Section 502(b)(10) of the CAA. However, there may be unit specific emission limitations set forth in Section 7 of this permit pursuant to these rules.

5.7 Source-Wide Testing Requirements

- 5.7.1 Pursuant to 35 IAC 201.282 and Section 4(b) of the Act, every emission source or air pollution control equipment shall be subject to the following testing requirements for the purpose of determining the nature and quantities of specified air contaminant emissions and for the purpose of determining ground level and ambient air concentrations of such air contaminants:
 - a. Testing by Owner or Operator: The Illinois EPA may require the owner or operator of the emission source or air pollution control equipment to conduct such tests in accordance with procedures adopted by the Illinois EPA, at such reasonable times as may be specified by the Illinois EPA and at the expense of the owner or operator of the emission source or air pollution control equipment. All such tests shall be made by or under the direction of a person qualified by training and/or experience in the field of air pollution testing. The Illinois EPA shall have the right to observe all aspects of such tests [35 IAC 201.282(a)].
 - b. Testing by the Illinois EPA: The Illinois EPA shall have the right to conduct such tests at any time at its own expense. Upon request of the Illinois EPA, the owner or operator of the emission source or air pollution control equipment shall provide, without charge to the Illinois EPA, necessary holes in stacks or ducts and other safe and proper testing facilities, including scaffolding, but excluding instruments and sensing devices, as may be necessary [35 IAC 201.282(b)].

c. Any such tests are also subject to the Testing Procedures of Condition 8.5 set forth in the General Permit Conditions of Section 8.

5.7.2 HAP Testing to Verify Minor Source Status

Pursuant to Condition 5.7.1 and to verify compliance with the requirements of Condition 5.6.2, that is that this source is not a major source of HAPs, the following testing requirements are established:

- a. If in the previous calendar year, emissions of HAPs exceeded-80% of major source threshold for individual or total HAPs (greater than 8 tons of a single HAP or greater than 20 tons of total HAPs), then testing for HAPs shall be conducted as follows:
 - i. Testing shall be conducted using methods that would be acceptable under the federal National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines, 40 CFR 63 Subpart YYYY.

 Specifically, the testing procedures detailed at 40 CFR 63.6120 of the performance tests section shall be used. For multiple turbines, the source owner or operator shall test largest turbine which makes the largest contributions to individual and total HAP emissions.
- b. The calculation as to whether the 80% of major source threshold was exceeded shall be based on records and procedures in Condition 5.9.2 and shall be completed by January 31 for the previous calendar year. If testing is required it shall be completed by September 30th.
- c. Any such tests are also subject to the Testing Procedures of Condition 8.5 set forth in the General Permit Conditions of Section 8.

5.8 Source-Wide Monitoring Requirements

Source-wide monitoring requirements are not set for this source. However, there are provisions for unit specific monitoring set forth in Section 7 of this permit.

5.9 <u>Source-Wide Recordkeeping Requirements</u>

5.9.1 Annual Emission Records

The Permittee shall maintain records of total annual emissions on a calendar year basis for the emission units covered by Section 7 (Unit Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units) of this permit to demonstrate compliance with Condition 5.6.1, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act.

5.9.2 Records for HAP Emissions

- a. The Permittee shall maintain records of individual and combined HAP emissions on a monthly and annual basis for the emission units covered by Section 7 (Unit Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units) of this permit to demonstrate compliance with Condition 5.6.2, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act.
- b. If testing is required by Condition 5.7.2, the Permittee shall keep records of the testing, including the test date, conditions, methodologies, calculations, test results, and any discrepancies between the test results and formulation specifications of Condition 5.9.2(c) below.
- c. The Permittee shall keep a record of the applicability determination for 40 CFR 63, Subpart YYYY, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines, at the source for a period of five years after the determination. This determination shall include a detailed analysis that demonstrates why the Permittee believes the source is not subject to 40 CFR 63, Subpart YYYY [40 CFR 63.10(b)(3)].

5.9.3 Retention and Availability of Records

- a. All records and logs required by this permit shall be retained for at least five years from the date of entry (unless a longer retention period is specified by the particular recordkeeping provision herein), shall be kept at a location at the source that is readily accessible to the Illinois EPA or USEPA, and shall be made available for inspection and copying by the Illinois EPA or USEPA upon request.
- b. The Permittee shall retrieve and print, on paper during normal source office hours, any records retained in an electronic format (e.g., computer) in response to an Illinois EPA or USEPA request for records during the course of a source inspection.

5.10 Source-Wide Reporting Requirements

5.10.1 General Source-Wide Reporting Requirements

The Permittee shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit, of deviations of the source with the permit requirements within 30 days, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(f)(ii) of the Act. Reports shall describe the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventive measures taken. There are also reporting requirements for unit specific emission units set forth in Section 7 of this permit.

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

5.10.2 Annual Emissions Report

The annual emissions report required pursuant to Condition 9.7 shall contain emissions information for the previous calendar year.

5.11 Source-Wide Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios
Source-wide operational flexibility is not set for this source.

5.12 Source-Wide Compliance Procedures

5.12.1 Procedures for Calculating Emissions

Except as provided in Condition 9.1.3, compliance with the source-wide emission limits specified in Condition 5.6 shall be addressed by the recordkeeping and reporting requirements of Conditions 5.9 and 5.10, and compliance procedures in Section 7 (Unit Specific Conditions for Specific Emission Units) of this permit.

6.0 CONDITIONS FOR EMISSIONS CONTROL PROGRAMS

6.1 Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) Program

6.1.1 Applicability

This source is an affected source for purposes of the Clean Air Interstate Rule ("CAIR") Program and the following emission units at the source are affected CAIR units:

Turbines CT01-04

Note: Under Section 110 of the Clean Air Act (CAA), the USEPA adopted the Clean Air Interstate Rule or CAIR, 40 CFR Part 96, to reduce and permanently cap emissions of sulfur dioxide (SO_2), and nitrogen oxides (NO_x) from electric power plants that significantly contribute to fine particulate and ozone in the ambient air in the Eastern United States. To implement CAIR in Illinois, the Illinois EPA adopted 35 IAC Part 225 Subparts A, C, D and E. For purposes of this permit, these requirements are referred to as CAIR provisions.

6.1.2 Applicable CAIR Requirements for SO₂ Emissions

The owners and operators of this source shall not violate applicable CAIR provisions, in 35 IAC Part 225, Subpart C. $\rm SO_2$ emissions from the affected CAIR units shall not exceed the equivalent number of allowances that the source lawfully holds under these CAIR provisions.

Note: CAIR affected sources must hold CAIR SO_2 allowances to account for the emissions from the affected CAIR units. Each CAIR SO_2 allowance is a limited authorization to emit during the respective CAIR SO_2 annual period or subsequent period. The possession of SO_2 allowances does not authorize exceedances of applicable emission standards or violations of ambient air quality standards.

6.1.3 Applicable CAIR Requirements for NOx Emissions

The owners and operators of this source shall not violate applicable CAIR provisions, in 35 IAC Part 225, Subpart D. $_{\rm NO_x}$ emissions from the affected CAIR units shall not exceed the equivalent number of allowances that the source lawfully holds under these CAIR provisions.

Note: CAIR affected sources must hold CAIR NO_x allowances to account for the emissions from the affected CAIR units. Each CAIR NO_x allowance is a limited authorization to emit during the respective CAIR NO_x annual period or subsequent period. The possession of NO_x allowances does not authorize exceedances of applicable emission standards or violations of ambient air quality standards.

6.1.4 Applicable CAIR Requirements for NO. Ozone Season Emissions

The owners and operators of this source shall not violate applicable CAIR provisions, in 35 IAC Part 225, Subpart E. Seasonal NO_x emissions from the affected CAIR units shall not exceed the equivalent number of allowances that the source lawfully holds under these CAIR provisions.

Note: CAIR affected sources must hold CAIR NO_x ozone season allowances to account for the emissions from the affected CAIR units. Each CAIR NO_x ozone season allowance is a limited authorization to emit during the respective CAIR NO_x ozone season or subsequent season. The possession of NO_x allowances does not authorize exceedances of applicable emission standards or violations of ambient air quality standards.

6.1.5 Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Reporting

The owners and operators of the source and, to the extent applicable, their designated representative, shall comply with applicable requirements for monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting specified by 35 IAC Part 225 Subparts C, D and E.

Note: As further addressed by Section 7 of this permit, the following emission determination methods are currently being used for the affected CAIR units.

6.1.6 CAIR Permit

The owners and operators of the source shall comply with the terms and conditions of the source's CAIR permit (attached).

Note: This source is subject to a CAIR permit, which was issued pursuant to 35 IAC Part 225.320, 225.420 and 225.520. CAIR sources must be operated in compliance with their CAIR permits. This source's CAIR permit is incorporated into this CAAPP permit with a copy of the current CAIR permit included as an attachment to this permit. Revisions and modifications to the CAIR permit are governed by Section 39.5 of the Act. Accordingly, revision or renewal of the CAIR permit may be handled separately from this CAAPP permit and a copy of the new CAIR permit may be included in this permit by Administrative Amendment.

6.1.7 Coordination with other Requirements

a. This permit does not contain any conditions that are intended to interfere with or modify the requirements of 35 IAC Part 225 C, D, and E, 40 CFR Part 96; or Title IV of the CAA. In particular, this permit does not restrict the flexibility of the owners and operators of this source to comply with CAIR provisions, including the ability to obtain CAIR NO_x allowances from Illinois' Clean Air Set Aside (CASA) for qualifying projects. b. Where another applicable requirement of the CAA is more stringent than an applicable requirement of 35 IAC Part 225, Subparts C, D, or E; 40 CFR Part 96; or Title IV of the CAA, all requirements are incorporated into this permit and are enforceable and the owners and operators of the source shall comply with both requirements.

6.2 Acid Rain

6.2.1 Applicability

Under Title IV of the CAA, Acid Deposition Control, this source is an affected source and the following emission units at the source are affected units for acid deposition:

Turbines CT01-04

Note: Title IV of the CAA, and other laws and regulations promulgated thereunder, establish requirements for affected sources related to control of emissions of pollutants that contribute to acid rain. For purposes of this permit, these requirements are referred to as Title IV provisions.

6.2.2 Applicable Emission Requirements

The owners and operators of the source shall not violate applicable Title IV provisions. SO_2 emissions of the affected units shall not exceed any allowances that the source lawfully holds under Title IV provisions [Section 39.5(7)(g) and (17)(1) of the Act].

Note: Affected sources must hold SO_2 allowances to account for the SO_2 emissions from affected units at the source that are subject to Title IV provisions. Each allowance is a limited authorization to emit up to one ton of SO_2 emissions during or after a specified calendar year. The possession of allowances does not authorize exceedances of applicable emission standards or violations of ambient air quality standards.

6.2.3 Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Reporting

The owners and operators of the source and, to the extent applicable, their designated representative, shall comply with applicable requirements for monitoring, recordkeeping and reporting specified by Title IV provisions, including 40 CFR Part 75 [Section 39.5(7)(b) and 17(m) of the Act].

6.2.4 Acid Rain Permit

The owners and operators of the source shall comply with the terms and conditions of the source's Acid Rain permit [Section 39.5(17)(1) of the Act].

Note: The source is subject to an Acid Rain permit, which was issued pursuant to Title IV provisions, including Section 39.5(17) of the Act. Affected sources must be operated in compliance with their Acid Rain permits. This source's Acid Rain permit is incorporated by reference into this permit and a copy of the current Acid Rain permit is included as Attachment 6 of this permit. Revisions and modifications of this Acid Rain permit, including administrative amendments and automatic

amendments (pursuant to Sections 408(b) and 403(d) of the CAA or regulations thereunder) are governed by Title IV provisions, as provided by Section 39.5(13)(e) of the Act. Accordingly, revision or renewal of the Acid Rain permit may be handled separately from this CAAPP permit and a copy of the new Acid Rain permit may be included in this permit by administrative amendment.

6.2.5 Coordination with Other Requirements

- a. This permit does not contain any conditions that are intended to interfere with or modify the requirements of Title IV provisions. In particular, this permit does not restrict the flexibility under Title IV provisions of the owners and operators of this source to amend their Acid Rain compliance plan [Section 39.5(17)(h) of the Act].
- b. Where another applicable requirement of the CAA is more stringent than an applicable requirement of Title IV provisions, both requirements are incorporated into this permit and are enforceable and the owners and operators of the source shall comply with both requirements [Section 39.5(7)(h) of the Act].

7.0 UNIT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS FOR SPECIFIC EMISSION UNITS

7.1 Natural Gas-Fired Turbine (Subject to NSPS - 40 CFR Subpart GG)

7.1.1 Description

The turbines are process emission units used to generate electricity. The turbines are powered by natural gas. NO_x emissions are controlled with dry low NO_x combustion systems.

Note: This narrative description is for informational purposes only and is not enforceable.

7.1.2 List of Emission Units and Air Pollution Control Equipment

			Emission
Emission		Date	Control
Unit	Description	Constructed	Equipment
СТ01-04	Four 85 MW Natural	2001	Dry Low NO _x
,	Gas Fired Turbines		Combustors
	(1,082 mmBtu/hr)		

7.1.3 Applicable Provisions and Regulations

- a. The "affected turbines" for the purpose of these unitspecific conditions, are turbines described in Conditions 7.1.1 and 7.1.2.
- b. Pursuant to 35 IAC 212.123,
 - No person shall cause or allow the emission of smoke or other particulate matter, with an opacity greater than 30 percent, into the atmosphere from any emission unit.
 - ii. The emission of smoke or other particulate matter from any such emission unit may have an opacity greater than 30 percent but not greater than 60 percent for a period or periods aggregating 8 minutes in any 60 minute period provided that such opaque emissions permitted during any 60 minute period shall occur from only one such emission unit located within a 1000 ft radius from the center point of any other such emission unit owned or operated by such person, and provided further that such opaque emissions permitted from each such emission unit shall be limited to 3 times in any 24 hour period.
- c. Pursuant to 35 IAC 214.301, no person shall cause or allow the emission of sulfur dioxide into the atmosphere from any process emission source to excess 2000 ppm.
- d. The affected turbines are subject to the NSPS for Stationary Gas Turbines, 40 CFR 60 Subparts A and GG,

because the heat input at peak load is equal to or greater than 10.7 gigajoules per hour (10 mmBtu/hr), based on the lower heating value of the fuel fired and the affected turbine commenced construction, modification, or reconstruction after October 3, 1977. The Illinois EPA administers the NSPS for subject sources in Illinois pursuant to a delegation agreement with the USEPA.

i. Standard for Nitrogen Oxides:

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.332(b), electric utility stationary gas turbines with a heat input at peak load greater than 107.2 gigajoules per hour (100 million Btu/hour) based on the lower heating value of the fuel fired shall comply with the provisions of 40 CFR 60.332(a)(1). Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.332(a)(1), no owner or operator of an affected turbine shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from such gas turbine, any gases which contain nitrogen oxides in excess of:

$$STD = 0.0075 \frac{(14.4)}{Y} + F$$

Where:

- ${\tt STD}$ = Allowable ${\tt NO}_{\rm x}$ emissions (percent by volume at 15 percent oxygen and on a dry basis).
- Y = Manufacturer's rated heat rate at manufacturer's rated load (kilojoules per watt hour) or, actual measured heat rate based on lower heating value of fuel as measured at actual peak load for the facility. The value of Y shall not exceed 14.4 kilojoules per watt hour.
- F = NO_x emission allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen calculated from the nitrogen content of the fuel as follows:

Fuel-bound nitrogen (percent by weight)	(NO _x percent by volume)
$ \begin{cases} N < 0.015 \\ 0.015 < N \le 0.1 \end{cases} $	0.04 (N)
$0.1 < N \le \overline{0.25}$ N > 0.25	0.04 + 0.0067(N - 0.1) 0.005

Where:

N = The nitrogen content of the fuel (percent by weight) determined in according with Condition 7.1.8(b).

ii. Standard for Sulfur Dioxide:

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.333, on and after the date on which the performance test required to be conducted by 40 CFR 60.8 is completed, every owner or operator subject to the provision of 40 CFR 60 Subpart GG shall comply with one or the other of the following conditions:

No owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall cause to be discharged into the atmosphere from any stationary gas turbine any gases which contain sulfur dioxide in excess of 0.015 percent by volume at 15 percent oxygen and on a dry basis, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.333(a).

No owner or operator subject to the provisions of this subpart shall burn in any stationary gas turbine any fuel which contains total sulfur in excess of 0.8 percent by weight (8000 ppmw), pursuant to 40 CFR 60.333(b).

- e. i. No owner or operator shall cause or allow the emissions of NO_x into the atmosphere from the affected turbine to exceed 0.25 lbs/mmBtu of actual heat input during each ozone control period from May 1 through September 30, based on a ozone control period average, for that unit [35 IAC 217.706(a)].
 - ii. Notwithstanding the above emission limitation of 35 IAC 217.706(a), the affected turbine subject to a more stringent $\mathrm{NO_x}$ emission limitation pursuant to any State or federal statute, including the Act, the Clean Air Act, or any regulations promulgated thereunder, shall comply with both the requirements of 35 IAC 217 Subpart V and that more stringent emission limitation [35 IAC 217.706(b)].

f. Startup Provisions

Subject to the following terms and conditions, the Permittee is authorized to operate the affected turbines in violation of the applicable standards in Condition 7.1.3(b) and the hourly limits of 7.1.6 during startup. This authorization is provided pursuant to 35 IAC 201.149, 201.161 and 201.262, as the Permittee has applied for such authorization in its application, generally describing the efforts that will be used "...to minimize startup emissions, duration of individual starts, and frequency of startups."

i. This authorization does not relieve the Permittee from the continuing obligation to demonstrate that all reasonable efforts are made to minimize startup

- emissions, duration of individual startups and frequency of startups.
- ii. The Permittee shall conduct startup of the each affected turbine(s) in accordance with written procedures prepared by the Permittee and maintained at the facility, in the control room for the each affected turbine(s), that are specifically developed to minimize emissions from startups and that include, at a minimum, the following measures:
 - A. The Permittee shall conduct startup of an affected turbine in accordance with the manufacturer's written instructions or other written instructions prepared by the source owner or operator and maintained on site.
 - B. The Permittee shall take the following measures to minimize emissions resulting from startups, the duration of startups, and minimize the frequency of startups:
 - I. Operating in accordance with the manufacturer's written operating and startup procedures, including a pre-check of the unit, or other written procedures developed and maintained by the source owner or operator so as to minimize the duration of startups and the emissions associated with startups. These procedures should allow for review of operating parameters of the unit during startup, or shutdown as necessary to make adjustments to reduce or eliminate excess emissions.
 - II. Maintaining units in accordance with written procedures developed and maintained by the source owner or operator so as to minimize the duration of startups and the frequency of startups. These maintenance practices shall include maintenance activities before the unit is started up, when the unit is in operation, and when the unit is shut down.
 - III. The procedures described above shall be reviewed at least annually to make necessary adjustments and shall be made available to the Illinois EPA upon request.

- iv. The Permittee shall fulfill applicable recordkeeping and reporting requirements of Condition 7.1.9(o) and 7.1.10(e).
- v. As provided by 35 IAC 201.265, an authorization in a permit for excess emissions during startup does not shield a Permittee from enforcement for any violation of applicable emission standard(s) that occurs during startup and only constitutes a prima facie defense to such an enforcement action provided that the Permittee has fully complied with all terms and conditions connected with such authorization.
- g. Malfunction and Breakdown Provisions

Subject to the following terms and conditions, the Permittee is authorized to continue operation of an affected turbine in violation of the applicable standards in Condition 7.1.3(b) in the event of a malfunction or breakdown of the affected turbines. This authorization is provided pursuant to 35 IAC 201.149, 201.161 and 201.262, as the Permittee has applied for such authorization in its application, generally explaining why such continued operation would be required to provide essential service or to prevent risk of injury to personnel or severe damage to equipment, and describing the measures that will be taken to minimize emissions from any malfunctions and breakdowns. This authorization supersedes the general prohibition in Condition 9.2.3 against continued operation in such circumstances.

- i. This authorization only allows such continued operation as necessary to provide essential service or prevent risk of injury to personnel or severe damage to equipment and does not extend to continued operation solely for the economic benefit of the Permittee.
- ii. Upon occurrence of excess emissions due to malfunction or breakdown, the Permittee shall as soon as practical repair the turbine, remove the affected turbine from service, or undertake other action so that excess emissions cease.
- iii. The Permittee shall fulfill the applicable recordkeeping and reporting requirements of Conditions 7.1.9(p) and 7.1.10(f). For these purposes, time shall be measured from the start of a particular incident. The absence of excess emissions for a short period shall not be considered to end the incident if excess emissions resume. In such circumstances, the incident shall be considered to continue until corrective actions are taken so that

- excess emissions cease or the Permittee takes the affected turbines out of service.
- iv. Following notification to the Illinois EPA of a malfunction or breakdown with excess emissions, the Permittee shall comply with all reasonable directives of the Illinois EPA with respect to such incident, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.263.
- v. This authorization does not relieve the Permittee from the continuing obligation to minimize excess emissions during malfunction or breakdown. As provided by 35 IAC 201.265, an authorization in a permit for continued operation with excess emissions during malfunction and breakdown does not shield the Permittee from enforcement for any such violation and only constitutes a prima facie defense to such an enforcement action provided that the Permittee has fully complied with all terms and conditions connected with such authorization.

7.1.4 Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern

a. The affected turbines are not subject to the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) for Stationary Combustion Turbines, 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart KKKK, because the affected turbines did not commence construction, modification, or reconstruction after February 18, 2005 pursuant to 40 CFR 60.4305(a), and are therefore subject to 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart GG for Stationary Gas Turbines.

Note: To qualify for this non-applicability, the Permittee has certified that the turbines have not been modified or reconstructed after February 18, 2005.

- b. The affected turbines are not subject to the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Combustion Turbines, 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart YYYY, because the affected turbines are not located at a major source of HAP emissions, pursuant to 40 CFR 63.6085.
- c. The affected turbines are not subject to 35 IAC 212.321 or 212.322, due to the unique nature of such units, a process weight rate can not be set so that such rules can not reasonably be applied, pursuant to 35 IAC 212.323.
- d. The affected turbines are not subject to 35 IAC 217.141 or 35 IAC 216.121 because the affected turbines are not fuel combustion units, as defined by 35 IAC 211.2470.
- e. The affected turbines are not subject to 40 CFR Part 64, Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) for Major Stationary Sources:

- i. For NO_x and SO_2 , because:
 - A. The affected turbines are subject to a NSPS proposed after November 15, 1990, pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2(b)(1)(i).
 - B. The affected turbines are subject to Acid Rain Program requirements, pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2(b)(1)(iii).
 - C. The affected turbines are subject to an emission limitation or standard for which this CAAPP permit specifies a continuous compliance determination method, pursuant to 40 CFR 64.2(b)(1)(vi).
- ii. For PM, VOM, and CO because the affected turbines do not use an add-on control device to achieve compliance with an emission limitation or standard.

7.1.5 Control Requirements and Work Practices

- a. i. At all times, including periods of startup, shutdown, and malfunction, the source owner or operator shall, to the extent practicable, maintain and operate any affected turbine in a manner consistent with good air pollution control practice for minimizing emissions. Determination of whether acceptable operating and maintenance procedures are being used will be based on information available to the Illinois EPA or the USEPA which may include, but is not limited to, monitoring results, opacity observations, review of operating and maintenance procedures, and inspection of the source [40 CFR 60.11(d)].
 - ii. The source owner or operator shall operate the affected turbines in accordance with written operating procedures that shall include at a minimum the following measures:
 - A. Review of operating parameters of the unit during startup or shutdown as necessary for the proper operation of the affected turbine with appropriate adjustments to reduce emissions.
 - B. Implementation of inspection and repair procedures for an affected turbine prior to attempting startup following repeated trips.
 - iii. The source owner or operator shall maintain the affected turbines in accordance with written procedures that shall include at a minimum the following measures:

- A. Unless specified on a more frequent basis by manufacturer's written instructions, an inspection of emissions-related components shall be completed quarterly. Inspections shall be conducted in accordance with manufacturer's written instructions.
- B. Repair and routine replacement of emissionsrelated components.
- iv. The above procedures may incorporate the manufacturer's written instruction for operation and maintenance of the affected turbines and associated control systems. The source owner or operator shall review these procedures at least every two years and shall revise or enhance them if necessary to be consistent with good air pollution control practice based on the actual operating experience and performance of the source.
- b. Natural gas shall be the only fuel in the affected turbines.
- c. The affected turbines shall be equipped, operated, and maintained with dry low ${\rm NO_x}$ combustors to control ${\rm NO_x}$ emissions.
- d. The Permittee shall manage the operation of the affected turbines to minimize multiple startups of an affected turbine in a single day, unless the affected turbine is tripped off during startup, and to provide adequate time for normal startup of the affected turbines, except for "quick starts" that are due to requests for immediate delivery of power, as would result from unexpected loss of a transmission line or other generating capacity.

7.1.6 <u>Production and Emission Limitations</u>

In addition to Condition 5.3.2 and the source-wide emission limitations in Condition 5.6, the affected turbines are subject to the following:

- a. The affected turbines, in total, shall not fire more than 8,475 million standard cubic feet of natural gas per year. Compliance with annual limitations shall be determined on a monthly basis from the sum of the data for the current month plus the preceding 11 months (running 12 month total). The above limitation was established in Permit 00050050 [T1].
- b. Hourly emissions from each affected turbine shall not exceed the following limits [T1]:

Pollutant		(Lb/Hr)
NO ∗		60.0
CO		59.0
PM/PM_{10}		10.0
MOV		10.0
$\frac{SO_2}{C}$		$\frac{2.6}{}$

- c. Not withstanding Condition 7.1.6(b), when the operating load of an affected turbine is 101 percent or more of the manufacturer's nominal rated output (rated output) or 50 percent or less than the rated output, NO_x emissions from the turbines shall not exceed 107 lbs/hour. [T1]
- d. The total annual emissions from the affected turbines 'shall not exceed the following limits [T1]:

<u>Pollutant</u>	(Tons/Yr)
NO_x	243.7
CO	244.0
PM/PM ₁₀	49.0
MOV	49.0
SO_2	10.0

- e. Compliance with annual limits shall be determined on a monthly basis from the sum of the data for the current month plus the preceding 11 months (running 12 month total) [T1].
- f. The above limitations were established in Permit 00050050, pursuant to PSD. These limits ensure that the construction and/or modification addressed in the aforementioned permit does not constitute a new major source or major modification pursuant to Title I of the CAA, specifically the federal rules for PSD [T1].

7.1.7 Testing Requirements

- a. The nitrogen oxides (NO_x) emissions, and the oxygen (O_2) concentration and opacity of exhaust shall be measured for the affected turbines at the source owner or operator's expense by an independent testing service approved by the Illinois EPA as follows to determine compliance with applicable emission limits:
 - i. Within 120 days after a written request from the Illinois EPA, for such pollutants listed above as specified by the request.
 - ii. Any extension to these time periods that may be provided at its discretion by the Illinois EPA shall not alter the source owner or operator's obligation

to perform emission testing for purposes of the NSPS in a timely manner as specified by 40 CFR 60.8.

- b. The following methods and procedures shall be used for testing of emissions:
 - i. The USEPA Reference Test Methods shall be used including the following:

Opacity
Nitrogen Oxides

USEPA Method 9 USEPA Method 20

ii. A. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b), the owner or operator shall determine compliance with the applicable nitrogen oxides emission limitation in 40 CFR 60.332 and shall meet the performance test requirements of 40 CFR 60.8 as follows:

For each run of the performance test, the mean nitrogen oxides emission concentration (NO_{xo}) corrected to 15 percent O_2 shall be corrected to ISO standard conditions using the following equation. Notwithstanding this requirement, use of the ISO correction equation is optional for: Lean premix stationary combustion turbines; units used in association with heat recovery steam generators (HRSG) equipped with duct burners; and units equipped with add-on emission control devices, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(1):

 $NO_x = (NO_{xo}) (P_r/P_o) 0.5 \text{ e}19 (H_o-0.00633)$ (288°K/Ta)1.53

Where:

- ${
 m NO}_{x}$ = emission concentration of ${
 m NO}_{x}$ at 15 percent ${
 m O}_{2}$ and ISO standard ambient conditions, ppm by volume, dry basis
- NO_{Xo} = mean observed NO_{X} concentration, ppm by volume, dry basis, at 15 percent O_2
- P_r = reference combustor inlet absolute pressure at 101.3 kilopascals ambient pressure, mm Hg
- P_o = observed combustor inlet absolute pressure at test, mm Hg
- H_o = observed humidity of ambient air, g H_2 O/g air
- e = transcendental constant, 2.718

T_a = ambient temperature, °K

The 3-run performance test required by 40 CFR 60.8 must be performed within ± 5 percent at 30, 50, 75, and 90-to-100 percent of peak load or at four evenly-spaced load points in the normal operating range of the gas turbine, including the minimum point in the operating range and 90-to-100 percent of peak load, or at the highest achievable load point if 90-to-100 percent of peak load cannot be physically achieved in practice. If the turbine combusts both oil and gas as primary or backup fuels, separate performance testing is required for each fuel. Notwithstanding these requirements, performance testing is not required for any emergency fuel (as defined in 40 CFR 60.331), pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(2).

If water or steam injection is used to control NO_x with no additional post-combustion NO_x control and the owner or operator chooses to monitor the steam or water to fuel ratio in accordance with 40 CFR 60.334(a), then that monitoring system must be operated concurrently with each EPA Method 20, ASTM D6522-00 (incorporated by reference, see 40 CFR 60.17), or EPA Method 7E run and shall be used to determine the fuel consumption and the steam or water to fuel ratio necessary to comply with the applicable 40 CFR 60.332 NO_x emission limit, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(4).

If the owner or operator elects to install a CEMS, the performance evaluation of the CEMS may either be conducted separately (as described in 40 CFR 63.335 (b)(7)) or as part of the initial performance test of the affected unit, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(6).

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(7), if the owner or operator elects to install and certify a NO_x CEMS under 40 CFR 60.334(e), then the initial performance test required under 40 CFR 60.8 may be done in the following alternative manner:

Perform a minimum of 9 reference method runs, with a minimum time per run of 21 minutes, at a single load level, between 90 and 100 percent of peak (or the highest physically achievable) load, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(7)(i).

Use the test data both to demonstrate compliance with the applicable NO_x emission limit under 40 CFR 60.332 and to provide the required reference method data for the RATA of the CEMS described under 40 CFR 60.334(b) , pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(7)(ii).

The requirement to test at three additional load levels is waived, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(7)(iii).

If the owner or operator elects under 40 CFR 60.334(f) to monitor combustion parameters or parameters indicative of proper operation of NO_x emission controls, the appropriate parameters shall be continuously monitored and recorded during each run of the initial performance test, to establish acceptable operating ranges, for purposes of the parameter monitoring plan for the affected unit, as specified in 40 CFR 60.334(g), pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(8).

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(10), if the owner or operator is required under 40 CFR 60.334(i)(1) or (3) to periodically determine the sulfur content of the fuel combusted in the turbine, a minimum of three fuel samples shall be collected during the performance test. Analyze the samples for the total sulfur content of the fuel using:

For gaseous fuels, ASTM D1072-80, 90 (Reapproved 1994); D3246-81, 92, 96; D4468-85 (Reapproved 2000); or D6667-01 (all of which are incorporated by reference, see 40 CFR 60.17). The applicable ranges of some ASTM methods mentioned above are not adequate to measure the levels of sulfur in some fuel gases. Dilution of samples before analysis (with verification of the dilution ratio) may be used, subject to the prior approval of the Administrator, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(10)(ii).

The fuel analyses required under paragraphs (b)(9) and (b)(10) of this section may be performed by the owner or operator, a service contractor retained by the owner or operator, the fuel vendor, or any other qualified agency, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(b)(11).

B. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(c), the owner or operator may use the following as alternatives to the reference methods and procedures specified in this section:

Instead of using the equation in 40 CFR 60.335(b)(1), manufacturers may develop ambient condition correction factors to adjust the nitrogen oxides emission level measured by the performance test as provided in 40 CFR 60.8 to ISO standard day conditions, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.335(c)(1).

- c. At least 60 days prior to the actual date of testing, a written test plan shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA for review. This plan shall describe the specific procedures for testing and shall include as a minimum:
 - The person(s) who will be performing sampling and analysis and their experience with similar tests.
 - ii. The specific conditions under which testing shall be performed including a discussion of why these conditions will be representative of maximum emissions and the means by which the operating parameters for the turbine will be tracked and recorded.
 - iii. The specific determinations of emissions that are intended to be made, including sampling and monitoring locations; the test method(s) that will be used, with the specific analysis method, if the method can be used with different analysis methods. The source owner or operator may also propose a plan for testing across the normal operating range of the affected turbines.
- d. The Illinois EPA shall be notified prior to these tests to enable the Illinois EPA to observe these tests. Notification of the expected date of testing shall be submitted a minimum of thirty (30) days prior to the expected date. Notification of the actual date and expected time of testing shall be submitted a minimum of five (5) working days prior to the actual date of the test. The Illinois EPA may, at its discretion, accept notifications with shorter advance notice provided that the Illinois EPA will not accept such notifications if it interferes with the Illinois EPA's ability to observe the testing.
- e. The Final Report for these tests shall be submitted to the Illinois EPA within 60 days after the date of the tests. The Final Report shall include as a minimum:
 - i. A summary of results.

- ii. General information.
- iii. Description of test method(s), including description of sampling points, sampling train, analysis equipment and test schedule.
- iv. Detailed description of test conditions, including:
 - A. Fuel consumption (standard ft3).
 - B. Firing rate (million Btu/hr).
 - C. Turbine/Generator output rate (MW).
- v. Data and calculations, including copies of all raw data sheets and records of laboratory analyses, sample calculations, and data on equipment calibration.
- f. i. Upon written request by the Illinois EPA, the source owner or operator shall have the opacity of the exhaust from the affected turbine(s) tested during representative operating conditions as determined by a qualified observer in accordance with USEPA Test Method 9, as further specified below, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(d) of the Act.
 - ii. Such testing shall be conducted for specific turbine(s) within 90 calendar days of the request, or on the date turbine(s) next operates, or on the date agreed upon by the Illinois EPA, whichever is later.
 - iii. The duration of opacity observations for each test shall be at least 30 minutes (five 6-minute averages) unless the average opacities for the first 12 minutes of observations (two six-minute averages) are both less than 10.0 percent.
 - iv. The source owner or operator shall notify the Illinois EPA at least 7 days in advance of the date and time of these tests, in order to allow the Illinois EPA to witness testing. This notification shall include the name and employer of the qualified observer(s).
 - v. The source owner or operator shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA of any changes in the time or date for testing.
 - vi. The source owner or operator shall provide a copy of its observer's readings to the Illinois EPA at the time of testing, if Illinois EPA personnel are present.

- vii. The source owner or operator shall submit a written report for this testing within 30 days of the date of testing. This report shall include:
 - A. Date and time of testing.
 - B. Name and employer of qualified observer.
 - C. Copy of current certification.
 - D. Description of observation conditions.
 - E. Description of turbine operating conditions.
 - F. Raw data.
 - G. Opacity determinations.
 - H. Conclusions.

7.1.8 Monitoring Requirements

- a. i. If an affected turbine is routinely operated or exercised to confirm that the turbine will operate when needed, the operation and opacity of the affected turbine shall be formally observed by operating personnel for the affected turbine or a member of source owner or operator's environmental staff on a regular basis to assure that the affected turbine is operating properly, which observations shall be made at least every six months.
 - ii. If an affected turbine is not routinely operated or exercised, i.e., the time interval between operation of an affected turbine is typically greater than six months, the operation and opacity of the affected turbine shall be formally observed as provided above each time the source owner or operator carries out a scheduled exercise of the affected turbine.
 - iii. The source owner or operator shall also conduct formal observations of operation and opacity of an affected turbine upon written request by the Illinois EPA. With the agreement of the Illinois EPA, the source owner or operator may schedule these observations to take place during periods when it would otherwise be operating the affected turbine.

Note: The formal observation required above is not intended to be a USEPA Test Method 9 opacity test, nor does the observation require a USEPA Test Method 9 certified observer. It is intended to be performed by personnel familiar with the operation of the affected turbine who would be able to make a determination based from the

observed opacity as to whether or not the affected turbine was running properly, and subsequently initiate a corrective action if necessary.

b. The affected turbine shall comply with the applicable monitoring requirements of 40 CFR 60.334(h), below. Monitoring of fuel nitrogen content shall not be required while the facility does not claim an allowance for fuel-bound nitrogen. Monitoring for sulfur content in fuel is not required while natural gas is the only fuel fired in the affected turbine and the requirements of 40 CFR 60.334(h)3(i) or (ii) are met.

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h), the owner or operator of any stationary gas turbine subject to the provisions of this subpart:

Shall monitor the total sulfur content of the fuel being fired in the turbine, except as provided in 40 CFR 60.334(h)(3). The sulfur content of the fuel must be determined using total sulfur methods described in 40 CFR 60.335(b)(10). Alternatively, if the total sulfur content of the gaseous fuel during the most recent performance test was less than 0.4 weight percent (4000 ppmw), ASTM D4084-82, 94, D5504-01, D6228-98, or Gas Processors Association Standard 2377-86 (all of which are incorporated by reference-see 40 CFR 60.17), which measure the major sulfur compounds may be used, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h)(1); and

Shall monitor the nitrogen content of the fuel combusted in the turbine, if the owner or operator claims an allowance for fuel bound nitrogen (i.e., if an F-value greater than zero is being or will be used by the owner or operator to calculate STD in 40 CFR 60.332). The nitrogen content of the fuel shall be determined using methods described in 40 CFR 60.335(b)(9) or an approved alternative, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h)(2).

Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h)(3), notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (h)(1) of this section, the owner or operator may elect not to monitor the total sulfur content of the gaseous fuel combusted in the turbine, if the gaseous fuel is demonstrated to meet the definition of natural gas in 40 CFR 60.331(u), regardless of whether an existing custom schedule approved by the administrator for subpart GG requires such monitoring. The owner or operator shall use one of the following sources of information to make the required demonstration:

The gas quality characteristics in a current, valid purchase contract, tariff sheet or transportation contract for the gaseous fuel, specifying that the maximum total sulfur content of the fuel is 20.0 grains/100 scf or less, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(3)(i); or

Representative fuel sampling data which show that the sulfur content of the gaseous fuel does not exceed 20 grains/100 scf. At a minimum, the amount of fuel sampling data specified in section 2.3.1.4 or 2.3.2.4 of appendix D to part 75 of this chapter is required, pursuant to 40 CFR 60.334(h)(3)(ii).

- c. Should the operation of the affected turbine exceed the limitations of the definition of a gas-fired peaking unit in 40 CFR 75, the source owner or operator shall install the appropriate Continuous Monitoring System(s) on the affected turbine by December 31 of the following calendar year, as defined in 40 CFR 75, in order to remain in compliance with the provisions of the Acid Rain Program.
- d. i. The owner or operator of an affected turbine subject to 35 IAC 217 Subpart V (Condition 7.1.3(e)) shall install, calibrate, maintain and operate continuous emissions monitoring systems (CEMS) for NO_x that meet the requirements of 40 CFR 75, Subpart B [35 IAC 217.710(a)].
 - ii. Notwithstanding 35 IAC 217.710(a) above, the owner or operator of a gas-fired peaking unit or oil-fired peaking unit as defined in 40 CFR 72.2 may determine NO_x emissions in accordance with the emissions estimation protocol of 40 CFR 75, Subpart E [35 IAC 217.710(b)].
 - iii. Notwithstanding 35 TAC 217.710(a) above, the owner or operator of a combustion turbine that operates less than 350 hour per ozone control period may determine the heat input and NO_x emissions of the turbine as follows [35 TAC 217.710(c)]:
 - A. Heat input shall be determined from the metered fuel usage to the turbine or the calculated heat input determined as the product of the turbine's maximum hourly heat input and hours of operation as recorded by operating instrumentation on the turbine [35 IAC 217.710(c)(1)].
 - B. NO_x emissions shall be determined as the product of the heat input, as determined above, and the appropriate default NO_x emission factors below [35 IAC 217.710(c)(2)]:
 - 0.7 lbs/mmBtu Natural gas 1.2 lbs/mmBtu - Fuel oil

e. The affected turbine shall be equipped, operated, and maintained with a continuous monitoring system to monitor and record the fuel consumption being fired.

7.1.9 Recordkeeping Requirements

In addition to the records required by Condition 5.9, the source owner or operator shall maintain records of the following items for the affected turbine(s) to demonstrate compliance with Conditions 5.6.1, 7.1.3, 7.1.5, and 7.1.6, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act:

- a. The owner or operator of an affected turbine subject to the requirements of 35 IAC 217 Subpart V (Condition 7.1.3(e)) shall:
 - i. Comply with the recordkeeping and reporting requirements of 40 CFR 75 applicable to NO_x emissions during the ozone control period, including, but not limited to, 40 CFR 75.54(b) and (d) [35 IAC 217.712(a)].
 - ii. Notwithstanding 35 IAC 217.712(a) above, the owner or operator of a combustion turbine for which heat input and NO_x emissions are determined pursuant to 35 IAC 217.710(c) (Condition 7.1.8(d)(iii)) shall comply with the following recordkeeping and reporting requirements [35 IAC 217.712(b)]:
 - A. Maintain records of the heat input and NO_x emissions of the turbine as determined in accordance with 35 IAC 217.710(c), and records of metered fuel use or operating hours used to determine heat input [35 IAC 217.712(b)(1)].
- b. The source owner or operator shall maintain records of the following items:
 - i. A. The three year rolling average annual capacity factor and the highest annual capacity factor in any one of the three averaging years to determine the status of the affected turbine as a "gas-fired peaking unit."
 - B. A record documenting whether the capacity factors exceeded the limitations for a gas fired peaking unit and whether Acid Rain Program Continuous Monitoring System(s) will be required.
 - ii. The sulfur content of the natural gas used to fire the turbines as determined in accordance with Condition 7.1.8(b).

- iii. A copy of the Final Report(s) for emission testing conducted pursuant to Condition 7.1.7.
- iv. Copies of opacity determinations taken for the source by qualified observer(s) when using USEPA Method 9.
- v. Records documenting its periodic review of its operating procedures as required by Condition 7.1.5(a).
- vi. Information for the formal observations of opacity conducted pursuant to Condition 7.1.8(a). For each occasion on which observations are made, these records shall include the date, time, identity of the observer, a description of the various observations that were made, whether or not the affected engine was running properly, and whether or not corrective action is necessary and was subsequently initiated.
- c. A maintenance and repair log for the affected turbine, listing each activity performed with date.
- d. Reserved for future use.
- e. Fuel consumption for the affected turbine, scf/month and mmscf/year.
- f. Reserved for future use.
- g. Operating hours for the affected turbine, hr/day, hr/month, and hr/year.
- h. Heat content of the fuel being fired in the affected turbine.
- i. Ambient temperature, and turbine load (MWe), on a daily basis for each hour turbine is operated.
- j. Any period of time when a turbine operates at 101 percent or more of rated output.
- k. Emissions of each pollutant from the affected turbine, including emissions from startups, with supporting calculations including documentation on the validity of the emission factors used, ton/month and ton/year.
- 1. The source owner or operator shall maintain records that identify:
 - i. Any periods during which a continuous monitoring system was not operational, with explanation.
 - ii. If a water injection system is used, any period when the affected turbine was in operation during which

ice fog was deemed to be a traffic hazard, the ambient conditions existing during the periods, the date and time the water injection system was deactivated, and the date and time the system was reactivated.

- iii. Any day in which emission and/or opacity exceeded an applicable standard or limit.
- m. The source owner or operator shall keep records of good operating practices for each turbine.
- n. The source owner or operator shall maintain the following records related to each shutdown of the turbines:
 - 1. The following information for each shutdown of a turbine:
 - A. Date and time of shutdown.
 - B. A description of the shutdown, if written operating procedures are not followed during the shutdown or significant problems occur during the shutdown, including detailed explanation.
 - ii. The following information for the turbines when above normal opacity, as defined in Condition 7.1.8, has been observed by source personnel:
 - A. Name of observer, position and reason for being at site.
 - B. Date and duration of above normal opacity, including affected turbine, start time and time normal operation was achieved.
 - C. If normal operation was not achieved within 30 minutes, an explanation why startup could not be achieved within this time.
 - D. A detailed description of the startup, including reason for operation.
 - E. An explanation why established startup procedures could not be performed, if not performed.
 - F. The nature of opacity following the end of startup or 30 minutes of operation, whichever occurs first, and duration of operation until achievement of normal opacity or shutdown.

C. Whether an exceedance of Condition 7.1.3(b), i.e., 30 percent opacity, may have occurred during startup, with explanation if qualified observer was on site.

o. Records for Startup

The Permittee-shall maintain the following records, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act, for each affected turbine subject to Condition 7.1.3(b), which at a minimum shall include:

- i. The following information for each-startup of the affected turbine(s):
 - A. Date and duration of the startup, i.e., start time and time normal operation achieved.
 - B. If normal operation was not achieved within 30 minutes, an explanation why startup could not be achieved within this time.
 - C. A detailed description of the startup, including reason for operation and whether the procedures 7.1.3(f) were performed.
 - D. An explanation why the procedures of 7.1.3(f) and other established startup procedures could not be performed, if not performed.
 - E. Whether exceedance of Condition 5.3.2 and 7.1.3(b) may have occurred during startup. If an exceedance may have occurred, an explanation of the nature of opacity, i.e., severity and duration, during the startup and the nature of opacity at the conclusion of startup:
 - F. Whether operating personnel for the turbines or air environmental staff are on site during startup.

p. Records for Malfunctions and Breakdowns

The Permittee shall maintain records, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.263, of continued operation of an affected turbine subject to Condition 7.1.3(g) during malfunctions and breakdown, which as a minimum, shall include:

- i. Date and duration of malfunction or breakdown.
- A detailed explanation of the malfunction or breakdown.

- iii. An explanation why the affected turbine continued to operate in accordance with Condition 7.1.3(g).
- iv. The measures used to reduce the quantity of emissions and the duration of the event.
- v. The steps taken to prevent similar malfunctions or breakdowns or reduce their frequency and severity.
- vi. The amount of release above typical emissions during malfunction/breakdown.

7.1.10 Reporting Requirements

a. Reporting of Deviations

The source owner or operator shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit, of deviations of the affected turbine with the permit requirements as follows, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(f)(ii) of the Act. Reports shall describe the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventive measures taken:

- Emissions from the affected turbine in excess of the limits specified in Conditions 7.1.3 and 7.1.6 within 30 days of such occurrence.
- ii. Operation of the affected turbine in excess of the limits specified in Conditions 7.1.5 and 7.1.6 within 30 days of such occurrence.
- b. In conjunction with the Annual Emission Report required by 35 IAC Part 254, the source owner or operator shall provide the operating hours for each affected turbine, the total number of startups, the total fuel consumption during the preceding calendar year, and the records necessary from Condition 7.1.9(b)(i) which demonstrate the Acid Rain Program status of the affected turbine as a "gas-fired peaking unit."
- c. Pursuant to 40 CFR 60.7(c) and 40 CFR 60.334(j), a report shall be submitted on a semi-annual basis. This report shall contain information on excess emissions and monitoring system downtime reports in accordance with 40 CFR 60.7(c) and 40 CFR 60.334(j).
- d. i. Annually report the heat input and NO_x emissions of the turbine as determined in accordance with 35 IAC 217.710(c) (Condition 7.1.8(c)(iii)), for each ozone control period, by November 30 of each year [35 IAC 217.712(b)(2)].
 - ii. Pursuant to 35 IAC 217.712(c) and (d), no later than November 30 of each year, the source owner or

operator shall submit a report to the Illinois EPA that demonstrates that the affected turbine has complied with Condition 7.1.3(e). These reports shall be accompanied by a certification statement signed by a responsible official for the source owner or operator as specified by 35 IAC 217.712(c).

c. Reporting of Startups

The source owner or operator shall submit semi-annual startup-reports to the Illinois EPA pursuant to Sections 39.5(7)(a) and (f) of the Act. These reports shall be submitted along with the semi-annual reports required by Condition 7.1.10(c) and shall include the following information for startups of the affected turbine during the reporting period:

- i. A list of the startups of the affected turbine, including the date, duration and description of each startup, accompanied by a copy of the records pursuant to Condition 7.1.9(n) for each startup for which such records were required.
- ii. If there have been no startups of an affected turbine during the reporting period, this shall be stated in the report.
- f. Reporting of Malfunctions and Breakdowns

The Permittee shall provide the following notification and reports to the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit and Regional Field Office, pursuant to 35 IAC 201.263, concerning continued operation of an affected turbine subject to Condition 7.1.3(g) during malfunction or breakdown:

- i. A. The Permittee shall notify the Illinois EPA's regional office by telephone as soon as possible during normal working hours, but no later than three (3) days, upon the occurrence of noncompliance due to malfunction or breakdown.
 - B. Upon achievement of compliance, the Permittee shall give a written follow-up notice within 15 days to the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit and Regional Field Office, providing a detailed explanation of the event, an explanation why continued operation of the affected turbines was necessary, the length of time during which operation continued under such conditions, the measures taken by the Permittee to minimize and correct deficiencies with chronology, and when

- the repairs were completed or when the affected turbine was taken out of service.
- C. If compliance is not achieved within 5 working days of the occurrence, the Permittee shall submit interim status reports to the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit and Regional Field Office, within 5 days of the occurrence and every 14 days thereafter, until compliance is achieved. These interim reports shall provide a brief explanation of the nature of the malfunction or breakdown, corrective actions accomplished to date, actions anticipated to occur with schedule, and the expected date on which repairs will be complete or the affected turbine will be taken out of service.
- ii. In accordance with the due dates in Condition 8.6.1, the Permittee shall submit semi-annual malfunction and breakdown reports to the Illinois EPA pursuant to Sections 39.5(7)(a) and (f) of the Act. These reports may be submitted along with other semi-annual reports and shall include the following information for malfunctions and breakdowns of the affected turbine during the reporting period:
 - A. A listing of malfunctions and breakdowns, in chronological order, that includes:
 - The date, time, and duration of each incident.
 - II. The identity of the affected operation(s) involved in the incident.
 - B. Dates of the notices and reports of Conditions 7.1.10(f)(i).
 - C. Any supplement information the Permittee wishes to provide to the notices and reports of Conditions 7.1.10(f)(i).
 - D. The aggregate duration of all incidents during the reporting period.
 - E. If there have been no such incidents during the reporting period, this shall be stated in the report.

7.1.11 Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios

Operational flexibility is not set for the affected turbines.

7.1.12 Compliance Procedures

- a. Compliance with the opacity limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(b) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the testing requirements of 7.1.7, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, and the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10.
- b. Compliance with the SO_2 emission limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(c) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10.
- c. i. Compliance with the NO_x emission limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(d)(i) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the testing requirements of 7.1.7, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, and the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10(a).
 - ii. Compliance with the SO_2 emission limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(d)(ii) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10(a).
- d. i. Compliance with the NO_x emission limitations of Conditions 7.1.3(e) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.1.5, the testing requirements of 7.1.7, the monitoring requirements of 7.1.8, the records required in Condition 7.1.9, and the reports required in Condition 7.1.10(a).
 - ii. Notwithstanding 35 TAC 217.710(a), Condition 7.1.8(d), the owner or operator of a gas-fired peaking unit or oil-fired peaking unit as defined in 40 CFR 72.2 may determine NO_x emissions in accordance with the emissions estimation protocol of 40 CFR 75, Subpart E [35 TAC 217.710(b)].
 - iii. Notwithstanding 35 IAC 217.710(a), Condition 7.1.8(d), the owner or operator of a combustion turbine that operates less than 350 hour per ozone control period may determine the heat input and NO_x emissions of the turbine as follows [35 IAC 217.710(c)]:
 - A. Heat input shall be determined from the metered fuel usage to the turbine or the calculated heat input determined as the product of the turbine's maximum hourly heat input and hours

- of operation as recorded by operating instrumentation on the turbine [35 IAC 217.710(c)(1)].
- B. NO_x emissions shall be determined as the product of the heat input, as determined above, and the appropriate default NO_x emission factors below [35 IAC 217.710(c)(2)]:
 - 0.7 lbs/mmBtu Natural gas 1.2 lbs/mmBtu - Fuel oil
- e. i. Compliance with the fuel limits in Condition 7.1.6(a) is addressed by the records and reports required in Conditions 7.1.9 and 7.1.10.
 - ii. Compliance with the emission limits in Conditions 5.6 and 7.1.6(b) and 7.1.6(d) is addressed by the records and reports required in Conditions 7.1.9 and 7.1.10, the continuous NOx monitoring requirements in Condition 7.1.8 or from emission factors developed from the most recent approved stack test in accordance with Condition 7.1.7 (NO_x), standard emission factors (CO, VOM and PM/PM₁₀) and analysis of fuel sulfur content or standard factors (SO₂).

7.2 Diesel Engine (Subject to NESHAP - 40 CFR 63 Subpart ZZZZ)

7.2.1 Description

The diesel engine is a process emission units used to drive a fire pump. The Permittee operates one (1) 208 Hp diesel fire pump.

Note: This narrative description is for informational purposes only and is not enforceable.

7.2.2 List of Emission Units and Air Pollution Control Equipment

		_	Emission
Emission		Date	Control
Unit	Description	Constructed	Equipment
Engine-#1	Diesel Firepump Distillate: 208 Hp	2002	None

7.2.3 Applicable Provisions and Regulations

a. The "affected diesel engine" for the purpose of these unitspecific conditions, is the diesel engine described in Conditions 7.2.1 and 7.2.2.

b. Pursuant to 35 IAC 212.123,

- i. No person shall cause or allow the emission of smoke or other particulate matter, with an opacity greater than 30 percent, into the atmosphere from any emission unit.
- ii. The emission of smoke or other particulate matter from any such emission unit may have an opacity greater than 30 percent but not greater than 60 percent for a period or periods aggregating 8 minutes in any 60 minute period provided that such opaque emissions permitted during any 60 minute period shall occur from only one such emission unit located within a 1000 ft radius from the center point of any other such emission unit owned or operated by such person, and provided further that such opaque emissions permitted from each such emission unit shall be limited to 3 times in any 24 hour period.
- c. i. Pursuant to 35 IAC 214.301, no person shall cause or allow the emission of sulfur dioxide into the atmosphere from any process emission source to excess 2000 ppm.

7.2.4 Non-Applicability of Regulations of Concern

a. The affected diesel engine are not subject to the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) for Compression

Ignition-Internal Combustion Engines, 40 CFR-Part-60, Subpart IIII, because the Permittee did not commence construction (date that construction commences is the date the engine is ordered by the Permittee) of the affected diesel engine after July 11, 2005.

Note: To qualify for this non-applicability, the Permittee has certified that the diesel engines have not modified or reconstructed their diesel engines after July 11, 2005.

- b. The affected diesel engine are excluded from certain requirements of the National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Stationary Reciprocating Internal Combustion Engines 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZ, because the affected diesel engine are existing compression ignition (CI) stationary RICE, pursuant to 40 CFR 63.6590(b)(3), and do not have to meet the requirements of that Subpart or Subpart A, additionally no initial notification is necessary. Requirements necessary to maintain the exclusion, and therefore compliance with that Part, are found within this Section. Specifically, those requirements are not becoming an affected source pursuant to 40 CFR 63.6590.
- c. The affected diesel engine are not subject to 35 IAC 212.321 or 212.322, due to the unique nature of such units, a process weight rate can not be set so that such rules can not reasonably be applied, pursuant to 35 IAC 212.323.
- d. The affected diesel engine are not subject to 35 IAC 216.121 because the affected diesel engine is not fuel combustion units, as defined by 35 IAC 211.2470.
- e. i. The affected diesel engine are not subject to 35-IAC
 Part 217, Subpart Q: Stationary Reciprocating
 Internal Combustion Engines and Turbines, because the
 affected diesel engine is not stationary
 reciprocating internal combustion engines listed in
 Appendix C of that Part, pursuant to 35-IAC 217.386.
 - ii. The affected diesel engine are not subject to 35-IAC 217.141 because the affected diesel engine is not fuel combustion units, as defined by 35 IAC 211.2470.
- f. The affected diesel engine is not subject to 40 CFR Part 64, Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) for Major Stationary Sources, because the affected diesel engine does not use an add-on control device to achieve compliance with an emission limitation or standard.

7.2.5 Control Requirements and Work Practices

- a. The Permittee shall follow good operating practices for the affected diesel engine, including periodic inspection, routine maintenance and prompt repair of defects.
- b. Distillate fuel oil shall be the only fuel fired in the affected diesel engine.
- c. The Illinois EPA shall be allowed to sample all fuels stored at the source.

7.2.6 Production and Emission Limitations

Production and emission limitations are not set for the affected diesel engine. However, there are source wide production and emission limitations set forth in Condition 5.6.

7.2.7 Testing Requirements

- a. i. Upon written request by the Illinois EPA, the

 Permittee shall have the opacity of the exhaust from
 the affected diesel engine(s) tested during
 representative operating conditions as determined by
 a qualified observer in accordance with USEPA Test
 Method 9, as further specified below, pursuant to
 Section 39.5(7)(d) of the Act.
 - ii. Such testing shall be conducted for specific diesel engine(s) within 70 calendar days of the request, or on the date diesel-engine(s) next operates, or on the date-agreed upon by the Illinois EPA, whichever is later.
 - iii. The duration of opacity observations for each test shall be at least 30 minutes (five 6 minute averages) unless the average opacities for the first 12 minutes of observations (two six-minute averages) are both less than 10.0 percent.
 - iv. The Permittee shall notify the Illinois EPA at least 7 days in advance of the date and time of these tests, in order to allow the Illinois EPA to witness testing. This notification shall include the name and employer of the qualified observer(s).
 - v. The Permittee shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA of any changes in the time or date for testing.
 - vi. The Permittee shall provide a copy of its observer's readings to the Illinois EPA at the time of testing, if Illinois EPA personnel are present.

vii. The Permittee shall submit a written report for this testing within 15 days of the date of testing. This report shall include:

A. Date and time of testing.

B. Name and employer of qualified observer.

C. Copy of current certification.

D. Description of observation conditions.

E. Description of diesel engine operating conditions.

F. Raw data.

C. Opacity determinations.

H. Conclusions.

- provide the sulfur content of the fuel oil supply for the affected diesel engine, the Permittee shall have the sulfur content of the oil supply to the affected diesel engine, in lbs/mmBtu, determined from an analysis of representative sample of the oil supply, as follows, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(d) of the Act:
 - A. From a sample taken no later than 90 days after first operating the affected diesel engine pursuant to this permit, provided, however, that if such sample is taken following operation of the affected diesel engine, the sample shall be taken prior to adding more oil to the storage tank.
 - B. From a sample taken no later than 30 days after acceptance of a shipment of fuel whose sulfur content would not meet Condition 7.2.3(c) based upon supplier data, provided however, that if the affected diesel engine is operated following acceptance of such a shipment, the sample shall be taken prior to adding a subsequent shipment of oil to the relevant storage tank.
 - C. From a sample taken no later than 30 days after a request for such a sample is made by the Illinois EPA, provided, however, that such sample shall be taken prior to adding more oil to the relevant storage tank.

ii. Sampling and analysis, including that which forms the basis for the suppliers' data, shall be conducted using methods that would be acceptable under the federal New Source Performance Standards for Stationary Gas Turbines, 40 CFR 60.335(b)(2) and (c) or the federal Acid Rain Program, 40 CFR 75, Appendix D, Optional SO₂ Emissions Data Protocol for Cas-Fired and Oil-Fired Units e.g., ASTM D4057-88 and ASTM D129-91.

Note: Condition 7.2.7(b)(ii) is for fuel testing methodology only, and is in no way intended to subject the source to those provisions.

7.2.8 Monitoring Requirements

- a. i. If an affected diesel engine is routinely operated or exercised to confirm that the affected diesel engine will operate when needed, the operation and opacity of the affected diesel engine shall be formally observed by operating personnel for the affected diesel engine or a member of Permittee's environmental staff on a regular basis to assure that the affected diesel engine is operating properly, which observations shall be made at least every six months.
 - ii. If an affected diesel engine is not routinely operated or exercised, i.e., the time interval between operation of an affected diesel engine is typically greater than six months, the operation and opacity of the affected diesel engine shall be formally observed as provided above each time the Permittee carries out a scheduled exercise of the affected diesel engine.
 - iii. The Permittee shall also conduct formal observations of operation and opacity of an affected diesel engine upon written request by the Illinois EPA. With the agreement of the Illinois EPA, the Permittee may schedule these observations to take place during periods when it would otherwise be operating the affected diesel engine.

Note: The "formally observation" required above is not intended to be a USEPA Test Method 9 opacity test, nor does the observation require a USEPA Test Method 9 certified observer. It is intended to be performed by personnel familiar with the operation of the affected diesel engine who would be able to make a determination based from the affected diesel engine who would be able to make a determination based from the observed opacity as to whether of not the affected diesel engine was running properly, and subsequently initiate a corrective action if necessary.

7.2.9 Recordkeeping Requirements

In addition to the records required by Condition 5.9, the Permittee shall maintain records of the following items for each affected diesel engine to demonstrate compliance with Conditions 5.6.1 and 7.2.3, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(b) of the Act:

- a. i. An operating log for each affected diesel engine, which shall include the following information:
 - A. Information for each time the affected diesel engine is operated, with date, time, duration, and purpose (i.e., exercise or power service).

 Monthly and annual records of hours of operation of each engine and total hours of operation.
 - B. Information for the observations conducted pursuant to Condition 7.2.8(a) or 7.2.7(a), with date, time, personnel, and findings.
 - The Permittee shall keep records for all opacity measurements made in accordance with USEPA Method 9 for an affected diesel engine that it conducts or that are conducted on its behalf by individuals who are qualified to make such observations for Condition 7.2.7(a). For each occasion on which such observations are made, these records shall include the identity of the observer, a description of the various observations that were made, the observed opacity, and copies of the raw data sheets for the observations.
 - II. The Permittee shall keep records for all formal observations of opacity conducted pursuant to Condition 7.2.8(a). For each occasion on which observations are made, these records shall include the date, time, identity of the observer, a description of the various observations that were made, whether or not the affected diesel engine was running properly, and whether or not corrective action is necessary and was subsequently initiated.
 - C. Information identifying any deviation from Condition 7.2.5(b).

- ii. A maintenance and repair log for each affected-diesel engine and associated equipment, listing activities performed with date.
- iii. The Permittee shall keep records of good operating practices for each affected diesel engine, as defined in Condition 7.2.5(a).
- b. Fuel usage for the affected diesel engine:
 - i. Total usage of fuel oil for the affected diesel engine, gallons/month and gallons/year.
- c. The following records related to the sulfur content of the oil fuel supply and SO₂ emissions of the affected diesel engine:
 - i. Records for each shipment of fuel for the affected diesel engine, including date, supplier, quantity (in gallons), sulfur content, and whether the SO₂ emissions from the burning of such fuel would meet the standard in Condition 7.2.3(e).
 - ii. The Permittee shall maintain records of the sulfur content of the fuel oil supply to the affected diesel engine, based on the weighted average of material in the storage tank, or the sulfur content of the supply shall be assumed to be the highest sulfur content in any shipment in the tank.
- d. Emissions from each affected diesel engine (i.e., NO_{*}, CO₇ SO₂, VOM, and PM) in tons/month and tons/year with supporting calculations and data as required by Condition 7.2.9.

7.2.10 Reporting Requirements

a. Reporting of Deviations

The Permittee shall promptly notify the Illinois EPA, Air Compliance Unit, of deviations of an affected diesel engine with the permit requirements as follows, pursuant to Section 39.5(7)(f)(ii) of the Act. Reports shall describe the probable cause of such deviations, and any corrective actions or preventive measures taken:

- i. Emissions of opacity, SO2, from the affected diesel engine in excess of the limits specified in Conditions 7.2.3 within 30 days of such occurrence.
- ii. Operation of the affected diesel engine in noncompliance with the requirements specified in Condition 7.2.5 within 30 days of such occurrence.

7.2.11 Operational Flexibility/Anticipated Operating Scenarios

Operational flexibility is not set for the affected diesel engine.

7.2.12 Compliance Procedures

- a. Compliance with the PM emission limitations of Conditions 7.2.3(b) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.2.5(a), the testing requirements in Condition 7.2.7(a), the monitoring requirements of Condition 7.2.8(a), the records required in Condition 7.2.9(a), and the reports required in Condition 7.2.10(a).
- b. i. Compliance with the SO₂ emission limitation of Condition 7.2.3(c)(i) is addressed by the requirements of Condition 7.2.5, the testing requirements in Condition 7.2.7(b), and the records and reports required in Conditions 7.2.9(b) and (c) and 7.2.10(a).
 - ii. For this purpose, complete conversion of sulfur into SO2 shall be assumed, e.g., SO2 emissions in lb/mmBtu are twice the sulfur content of the fuel supply, in lb/mmBtu, using the following equation:
- SO₂ ppm = Fuel sulfur content (1b/mmBtu) x 2 x 1/64 x 385.2 x 1,000,000 Engine exhaust rate factor (sef/mmBtu)

Note: Steichiometric combustion of distillate oil with the maximum available sulfur content, i.e., 1.0-percent, would result in an SO, concentration in the exhaust that is well below the 2000 ppm limit in Condition 7.2.3(c)(i), i.e., only about 500 ppm, based on 10,320 scf/mmBtu, the F factor for oil in USEPA's Reference Method 19.

- c. Compliance with the emission limits in Conditions 5.6 are addressed by the records and reports required in Conditions 7.2.9 and 7.2.10 and the emission factors and formulas listed below if suitable manufacture's emission rate data is not available:
 - i. Emission-factors for the affected diesel engines up to-600 horsepower:

	Emission Factors	
<u>Pollutant</u>	(lb/mmBtu)	(lb/hp-hr)
	Fuel Input	Power Output
MOV —	0.35	$\frac{2.46-x-10}{}$
— <u>PM</u>	0.31	$\frac{2.20 \times 10^{-93}}{}$
— 50 2	0.29	$\frac{2.05 \times 10^{-03}}{}$
— NO ∗	4.41	0.031
	0.95	6.68 x 10 -03

Electronic Filing - Received, Clekr's Office, April 24, 2009 * * * * * PCB 2009-098 * * * * *

The heat content of distillate fuel oil shall be assumed to be 137,030 Btu/gal as per AP-42.

Emissions = Distillate Fuel Oil Usage x Heat Content of Fuel Oil x Emission Factor

The emission factors are for Casoline And Diesel Industrial Engines from AP-42 Section 3.3 (dated 10/96).

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, certify that on this 24rd day of April, 2009, I have served electronically the attached APPEARANCES OF RENEE CIPRIANO, and JOSHUA R. MORE and APPEAL OF CAAPP PERMIT, upon the following person:

John T. Therriault, Assistant Clerk Illinois Pollution Control Board James R. Thompson Center Suite 11-500 100 West Randolph Chicago, Illinois 60601

and by first class mail, postage affixed, upon the following persons:

Division of Legal Counsel Illinois Environmental Protection Agency 1021 North Grand Avenue, East P.O. Box 19276 Springfield, Illinois 62794-9276

Joshua R. More

Renee Cipriano Joshua R. More SCHIFF HARDIN LLP 6600 Sears Tower 233 South Wacker Drive Chicago, Illinois 60606 312-258-5567

FAX: 312-258-5600 jmore@schiffhardin.com